
 
 

 

 

 

 

BOARD MEETING 

JULY 1, 2021 
 

TEXAS PENSION REVIEW BOARD 

P.O. BOX 13498 

AUSTIN, TX 78711-3498 

 

(512) 463-1736 

(800) 213-9425 

WWW.PRB.TEXAS.GOV 



 

TEXAS PENSION REVIEW BOARD 
MEETING AGENDA  

 

Thursday, July 1, 2021 – 10:00 AM 

By Teleconference and Videoconference 

Public Participation Dial-in Number: (877) 853-5247 (Toll-free) 
Zoom Meeting ID: 869 2683 3256 

The July 1, 2021 meeting of the Pension Review Board will be held by teleconference and 

videoconference as authorized under Sections 551.125 and 551.127 of the Texas Government Code. 

THIS MEETING WILL BE CONDUCTED BY TELECONFERENCE AND VIDEOCONFERENCE 

IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE GOVERNOR’S AUTHORIZATION OF MARCH 16, 2020, 

CONCERNING SUSPENSION OF CERTAIN OPEN MEETING LAW REQUIREMENTS IN 

RESPONSE TO THE DECLARATION OF STATE DISASTER OF MARCH 13, 2020 

CONCERNING THE COVID-19 (CORONAVIRUS) PANDEMIC. A quorum of members of the 

board will participate in the meeting and will be audible to the public. Members of the public may 

provide public comment by registering first with staff by submitting an email to 

Lindsay.Seymour@prb.texas.gov identifying the name of the speaker and topic, no later than 8:00 am 

on July 1, 2021. The presiding officer will call roll of board members, followed by calling roll of 

members of the public who have registered. The presiding officer will then ask if other attendees wish 

to provide comment, at which time each such attendees shall identify themselves by name and topic of 

the comment. Members of the public who have registered during roll call will be called by name at the 

appropriate time in the agenda. Attendees are requested to mute their connections when not addressing 

the board members. 

Access to the agenda materials of the meeting is provided at www.prb.texas.gov. A recording of the 

meeting will be available at www.prb.texas.gov. 

The Board may discuss or take action regarding any of the items on this agenda.  

1. Meeting called to order 

2. Roll call of Board members 

3. Roll call of members of the public 

4. Board administrative matters 

a. November 12, 2020 meeting minutes 

b. Recognition of outgoing Board member 

c. Introduction of new Board members 

d. Election of Vice Chair for 2021 

2

mailto:Lindsay.Seymour@prb.texas.gov
http://www.prb.texas.gov/
file:///C:/Users/michelle.kranes/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.Outlook/114D9DCB/www.prb.texas.gov


5. Actuarial Committee  

a. Public retirement system reporting and compliance, including noncompliant retirement 
systems under Section 801.209 of the Texas Government Code   

b. Actuarial Valuation Report 

c. Systems subject to the Funding Soundness Restoration Plan (FSRP) requirement, 

including compliance  

d. Intensive actuarial review of Midland Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 

6. Investment Committee  

a. Investment Practices and Performance Evaluations received as required by 

Government Code Section 802.109, including compliance 

b. Preliminary investment expense reporting as required by Texas Government Code 

Section 802.103(a)(3) and Chapter 609, Texas Administrative Code 

7. Education and Research Committee  

a. MET online course review 

b. 2021 Evaluation of PRB Educational Services  

8. 87th Regular Session 

a. Legislation passed, including the following: 

i. HB 3898 (relating to the funding of public retirement systems) 

ii. SB 321 (relating to contributions to, benefits from, and the administration of the 

Employees Retirement System of Texas) 

iii. HB 4368 (relating to the administration of certain municipal police retirement 

systems)  

b. PRB budget appropriation for Fiscal Years 2022 and 2023 under General 

Appropriations Act, 87th Legislature (SB 1) 

c. Revised Government Code publication, Title 8, Subtitle A 

d. Need for additional rules to implement statute, including changes to reporting 

requirements enacted by the 87th Legislature 

9. Amendments to the Board Bylaws, including changes to standing committees of the Board 

10. Committee assignments for 2021 

11. Executive Director’s Report 

a. 2021 Texas Workforce Commission, Civil Rights Division Review of Personnel Policies 

and Procedures  

b. Updated Fiscal Year 2021 Operating Budget 

c. Approval of Fiscal Year 2022 Operating Budget 

d. Staff update 

e. Update on virtual meetings 

3



f. Update on Texas Public Pension Data Center 

g. 2021 TEXPERS Summer Educational Forum  

12. Call for future PRB agenda items 

13. Date and location of next PRB meeting – Thursday, September 16, 2021 

14. Invitation for public comment  

15. Adjournment 

 

 

 

NOTE: Persons with disabilities who plan to attend this meeting and who may need special assistance are requested to contact 
Mr. Wes Allen at (800) 213-9425/ (512) 463-1736 three to five (3-5) working days prior to the meeting date so that appropriate 
arrangements can be made.  The Board may go into executive/closed session regarding any item on the agenda if permitted 
under the Open Meetings Act, Texas Government Code Annotated, Chapter 551. 

 

 

4



 

 

 

 

 

 

1. Meeting called to order 

  

5



 

 

 

 

 

 

2. Roll call of Board members 

  

6



 

 

 

 

 

 

3. Roll call of members of the public 

  

7



 

 

 

 

 

 

4. Board administrative matters 

 

 

 

 

 

 

8



 

 

 

 

 

4a. November 12, 2020 meeting minutes 

  

9



 

1 
 

 

Board Meeting Minutes 

November 12, 2020 

 

1. Meeting called to order (0:00) 

The third meeting of 2020 of the Pension Review Board (PRB) began on Thursday, November 12, 
2020 at 10:03 a.m. via teleconference. 

2. Roll call of board Members (0:56) 

Board members Present 

Chair Stephanie Leibe Vice Chair Keith Brainard 
Marcia Dush Rossy Fariña-Strauss 
Ernest Richards Christopher Zook 

A quorum being present, the meeting was called to order by Chair Leibe. 

3. Roll call of members of the public (1:35) 

Pre-registered members of the public: 

Mr. David Stacy 

4. Board administrative matters (2:28) 

a. June 30, 2020 meeting minutes 

Chair Leibe entertained a motion to suspend the reading of minutes of the June 30, 2020 
meeting and approve them as circulated. 

The motion was made by Mr. Richards and seconded by Ms. Dush. 

      The motion passed unanimously. 
b. Recognition of outgoing board member (3:45) 

Chair Leibe recognized outgoing board member Shari Shivers for her service as a board 
member. 

5. Actuarial Committee matters (5:33) 

a. Actuarial Valuation Report (5:43) 

Kenny Herbold provided a summary of the Actuarial Valuation (AV) report which included 
36 new AVs since the June meeting. Most AVs included 2019 investment returns, which he 
noted were generally good. Additionally, the report did not reflect the most recent 
valuations for the Teacher Retirement System (TRS), Employees Retirement System (ERS), 
or the three Houston plans. He stated that the AVs for these systems would be the first to 
show the COVID-19 impact on investments.  

Mr. Herbold noted that 14 of the 36 valuations received included discount rate reductions 
and the average discount rate was moving closer to 7.25 percent. 

10



Texas Pension Review Board Minutes 
Nov. 12, 2020 

2 
 

Ms. Dush expressed concerns about systems with funded ratios under 50 percent from 
either an actuarial or GASB standpoint. She stated she was interested in continuing 
intensive reviews and focusing on systems with low funded ratios. She also stated she 
would like to see updates on systems that have already been through an intensive review 
and asked if there would be an update to the legislature about those systems.  

Anumeha Kumar stated that there will be an update on the systems that have had intensive 
reviews in the Biennial Report to the legislature, and she said staff could provide an annual 
update as a regular report to the Actuarial Committee. 

b. Systems subject to Funding Soundness Restoration Plan (FSRP) requirement, including 
compliance (11:18) 

Mr. Herbold provided an update about systems currently subject to FSRP requirements, 
noting that representatives from Irving Firemen’s Relief and Retirement Fund, Midland 
Firemen’s Relief and Retirement Fund, and Orange Firemen’s Relief and Retirement Fund 
attended Actuarial Committee meetings and informed the committee about their progress 
on the FSRPs and changes. Marshall Firemen’s Relief and Retirement Fund sent a letter in 
late June that mentioned increased employee contributions, but the fund has not provided 
a formal FSRP yet. Beaumont Firemen’s Relief and Retirement Fund performed studies on 
benefit changes and a contribution increase schedule has been approved. He noted that 
Beaumont Fire would have an election in November on additional benefit changes and the 
fund was looking to implement a new tier for new hires. He mentioned that the PRB could 
expect to get final information from Beaumont Fire soon. Mr. Herbold added that Longview 
Firemen’s Relief and Retirement Fund had informed staff that the system was experiencing 
COVID-19-related budget constraints but had not yet submitted any additional information 
since the PRB’s last meeting. 

Additionally, Mr. Herbold noted that Dallas Employees’ Retirement Fund and Plainview 
Firemen’s Relief and Retirement Fund became subject to FSRPs. He stated that both 
systems changed their discount rates and other assumptions, which affected their 
amortization periods, and that staff were waiting to hear back from both systems after 
sending notification letters.  

Mr. Herbold added there were several systems that were at risk of being subject to FSRPs 
since their most recent actuarial valuations showed amortization periods greater than 40 
years and that three systems were working on their FSRPs, while Odessa Fire had recently 
submitted an actuarial valuation with an amortization period below 40 years after their 
revised FSRP and will be removed from the list. 

c. Funding policies received as required by Government Code Section 802.2011 (SB 2224) 
(18:50) 

Ms. Kumar noted that most systems have submitted funding policies, and some have 
updated their policies based on committee recommendations to change to a closed 
actuarially determined contribution benchmark rather than a rolling benchmark. Other 
systems have kept their rolling benchmarks, but the committee did not decide to include 
closed benchmarks as a formal recommendation to the legislature. 

d. Recommended changes to the funding policy requirements under Section 802.2011 and 
FSRP requirements under Sections 802.2015 and 802.2016 of the Government Code 
(21:16) 

Mr. Brainard explained the board’s statutory mandate to recommend legislation and that 

11



Texas Pension Review Board Minutes 
Nov. 12, 2020 

3 
 

the PRB is the only state-level advocate for plan sponsors to prioritize adequate pension 
funding. He stated that the Actuarial Committee was recommending changes to the FSRP 
statute to incorporate stakeholder feedback. The committee also recommended updating 
the FSRP statute to make it consistent with the Pension Funding Guidelines. He stated that 
the committee was working to make sure that the updated FSRP requirements would not 
go into effect until 2025 and added that the committee believes the proposed statutory 
changes will help systems move towards full funding.  

Michelle Downie Kranes outlined the recommendations and explained the process, final 
recommendations, and public comments. 

Ms. Dush asked for clarification on the recommendation for updated FSRP triggering 
mechanisms and if it would include a look-back before September 2025. Ms. Kranes 
explained staff included language in the recommendations to establish the goal that the 30-
year amortization period would not be required until 2025; however, a lookback would be 
at the discretion of the legislature, should they draft a bill. 

Ms. Dush noted she wanted to make sure the legislature could help the systems that have 
been putting in the effort to work towards solutions and decrease their amortization 
periods under the current rules. 

Mr. Brainard explained that while both a retirement system and its sponsor are responsible 
for the funding of the plan, under current statute the sponsors are not required to support 
funding policies. He said this has been a common complaint from systems, so the first 
recommendation was to add the sponsor to the funding policy process. 

Mr. Brainard mentioned a comment noting that sponsors and their governing bodies can 
make rate changes without evaluating the effects on the plan, while systems are required 
to consider those factors.  

Chair Leibe questioned the distinction between the governing body adopting the FSRP 
through official action compared to acknowledging the system’s board adopting the 
funding policy or FSRP. Ms. Kranes stated that under existing statute the FSRPs were 
supposed to be a joint product of the system and sponsor. Ms. Kumar said this 
recommendation was meant to clarify the rules since there have been instances when staff 
had to ask systems if the FSRPs were developed jointly with the sponsor or alone. 

AG Counsel Melissa Juarez suggested not to leave any ambiguity in recommendations for 
the legislature and suggested including that it be adopted at an open meeting. 

Ms. Leibe asked for further clarification about the current process. Ms. Kranes explained 
that many FSRPs include input and a commitment from sponsors, but not all of them do; 
this requirement would clarify that both entities are committed to the FSRP. 

Ms. Kranes explained the tiered FSRP trigger and the part of the recommendation to allow 
systems that have implemented a closed funding period and actuarially determined 
contributions to be exempt from the new requirements. She stated that this was intended 
so that systems like the Fort Worth Employees Retirement Fund that had made changes 
before would not have to start over if already moving towards full funding. 

Mr. Brainard mentioned there were public comments that requested not changing the 
trigger from a 40-year amortization period until 2025 and asked if the current language of 
the recommendation would do that or if the board needed to change the language.  

12



Texas Pension Review Board Minutes 
Nov. 12, 2020 

4 
 

Ms. Kumar explained that the board revised its funding guidelines in 2017 and stated that 
the 30-year threshold would not take effect until 2025. The recommendation was intended 
to keep that promise by using a tiered trigger and delaying the 30-year requirement until 
2025 and to create a grandfathering provision for systems that have already made or will 
make changes to improve funding by 2025.  

Ms. Kranes explained the recommendation to extend the time allowed to prepare FSRPs to 
either one year or two rather than six months. She also mentioned currently some FSRPs 
relied on future actions, which were hard for staff to evaluate, so extending the time frame 
to complete the FSRP could come with a requirement that key actions be taken by the time 
the FSRP was completed. She explained that the recommendation would change the 10-
year period to adopt an FSRP to two years and change the process for revised FSRPs to only 
be triggered if a system became subject to an FSRP within 10 years of a previous one. The 
revised FSRP would include stricter requirements to prevent systems from having to 
repeatedly revise FSRPs. The board discussed the option to increase the time to develop an 
FSRP and ultimately recommended providing two years rather than the current six months. 

Chair Leibe asked for clarification if the recommendation to require an aggregate analysis 
of the changes would require only an aggregate analysis or an analysis of both the 
aggregate effects and the individual effects of proposed changes. Mr. Herbold explained 
that the individual changes were not necessary if a plan submitted an aggregate analysis, 
but since some FSRPs received had only presented analysis of individual changes the effects 
can interact instead of having simple cumulative effects.  

Ms. Kumar added that this was intended to clarify what information the PRB receives. Staff 
wanted to be conscious of the cost of reporting requirements and thought that 
emphasizing the most important information to evaluate the changes should help reduce 
the costs to the systems. Ms. Dush stated that allowing two years to complete the FSRP and 
requiring current changes rather than future changes could also help with some existing 
problems. 

Mr. Brainard asked for clarification about the difference between an actuarial analysis and 
an actuarial projection because of a comment received. Mr. Herbold explained that an 
amortization period calculation in an analysis shows a projection of when the plan will be 
funded compared to a detailed projection for every year, which may affect the cost. 

  Mr. Brainard invited public comments throughout, but there were none. 

Mr. Brainard entertained a motion to adopt the recommendations as amended.  

The motion was made by Ms. Dush and seconded by Chair Leibe. 

The motion passed unanimously.  

e. Public retirement system reporting and compliance, including noncompliant retirement 
systems under Section 801.209 of the Texas Government Code (1:05:16) 

Ms. Kumar explained that the report could not be completed due to database issues; 
however, the report would be ready for the next meeting. 

6. Investment Committee matters (1:06:45) 

a. Investment Practices and Performance Evaluations received as required by Government 
Code Section 802.109 (SB 322), including compliance (Included in 6c, 1:09:03) 

This item was taken up as part of item 6c. 

13



Texas Pension Review Board Minutes 
Nov. 12, 2020 

5 
 

b. Recommended improvements to investment Practices and Performance Evaluation 
statute (Included in 6c, 1:30:39) 

This item was taken up as part of item 6c. 

c. Draft Investment Performance Report (1:08:27) 

Robert Munter presented the Investment Practices and Performance Evaluations (IPPEs), 
the legislative recommendations to improve the IPPE statute, and the draft PRB Investment 
Performance Report. 

Mr. Munter explained there were 62 systems covered by the IPPE requirements. Since 
some evaluations included more than one system, 55 IPPEs were expected. Of the expected 
evaluations, 51 were received and included in the analysis. Two additional evaluations were 
submitted for systems with less than $30 million in assets. He said staff reached out to the 
four remaining systems and learned they were experiencing COVID-related delays; Harris 
County Hospital District Pension Plan and Corpus Christi Regional Transportation Authority 
provided expected completion dates, and Midland Fire and Nacogdoches County Hospital 
District Retirement Plan did not provide expected completion dates at the time. 

Mr. Munter stated that the biggest recurring issue was investment fees, which appeared in 
four of the five topic areas staff created to categorize results. The most common 
recommendation was performing an annual review of investment policy statements, and 
other recommendations included fee benchmarking compared to similar systems, using 
net-of-fee performance to evaluate managers, assigning a role to formally review fees, and 
documenting the rationale for hiring and firing investment managers.  

Mr. Zook highlighted what he considered two important factors: the importance of looking 
at returns net-of-fees rather than gross returns when evaluating investment managers 
since that is what systems actually receive, and the differences between asset-only analysis 
and asset-liability analysis when making asset allocation decisions. He commented that the 
summary report should give systems and the public a better comparison of the fees 
different systems pay. Ms. Dush reemphasized the importance of asset-liability analysis 
since short-term liquidity requirements can affect outcomes and pointed out that improved 
modeling has reduced the cost of asset-liability assessments in recent years. 

Mr. Munter presented the legislative recommendations from the investment committee 
for consideration of the board. He explained that when preparing the IPPEs several systems 
asked staff to clarify what should be included in an IPPE and that the legislative intent of 
this requirement was to improve transparency in decision making. The first 
recommendation was to require IPPEs to include a rationale for the recommendations that 
are made or why recommendations are not necessary. The second was to include a formal 
review-and-comment process to ensure that retirement system boards are reviewing and 
considering the recommended changes from evaluations and to allow evaluations to 
remain independent while still allowing systems to review and comment on the 
suggestions. The third was for the legislature to consider the feasibility of precluding a firm 
that helped a system develop the existing investment policies from performing the 
evaluation. He said that after reviewing IPPEs, the Investment Committee found that the 
data suggest that third-party evaluators typically offered recommendations while existing 
consultants were less likely to suggest improvements. 

Mr. Brainard stated he hoped that the legislature would require the use of a separate, 
independent firm to provide a more objective review. 

14



Texas Pension Review Board Minutes 
Nov. 12, 2020 

6 
 

Mr. Munter presented the fourth recommendation to require evaluators to identify 
qualifications and potential conflicts-of-interest. Chair Leibe asked about how conflicts- of-
interest are determined. Mr. Munter explained there are standard practices in the 
investment industry, such as disclosing existing relationships between parties that may 
influence evaluations, and the system’s board would determine if that conflict would 
preclude someone from doing the work appropriately. 

Mr. Zook stated that the intent is to inform stakeholders and the PRB if there is anything 
that could undermine the evaluation and it is often left open since it would be difficult to 
outline every possible situation. He said he expected the legislature would define the term 
within statute to avoid ambiguity. 

Mr. Richards asked if disclosing a conflict-of-interest would preclude someone from doing 
the evaluation. Mr. Zook said it does not necessarily preclude them, but it would need to be 
disclosed so outside observers are aware and know that it was determined that the 
system’s governing body decided it did not preclude them.  

Ms. Dush asked if members had access to these performance evaluations to check if their 
systems were adopting any recommendations. Ms. Kumar explained there is a requirement 
for the PRB to make the summary available on its website and another requirement for 
systems to post information they submit to the PRB on their own websites, so staff would 
check if the IPPEs were included in existing requirements. Ms. Dush highlighted the 
importance of letting members and stakeholders have access to these documents to know 
if systems act or fail to act on the recommendations they are given. 

Mr. Munter presented the Draft Investment Performance Report. Mr. Herbold pointed out 
that the report included summaries of all the individual evaluations to highlight major 
takeaways. The draft report was included with the board meeting packet. 

Mr. Zook requested public comments since an individual registered to speak on this item, 
but no public comments were made at this time. 

Chair Leibe entertained a motion to approve the Draft Investment Performance Report and 
adopt the recommendations to the legislature concerning the investment practices and 
performance evaluation requirement, incorporating any changes agreed upon by the 
board, and further direct staff to work with the board and committee chair to finalize the 
report for publication in the agency’s 2019-2020 Biennial Report.  

The motion was made by Mr. Zook and seconded by Mr. Brainard.  

The motion passed unanimously. 
7. Education and Research Committee matters (1:57:05) 

a. MET compliance reporting (1:57:28) 

This was taken up in item 7b. 

b. MET sponsor update (1:57:36) 

Bryan Burnham noted demand for online education and continuing education 
opportunities have been very high since many in-person events were cancelled and budget 
constraints tightened due to the pandemic. He stated three new sponsors for core and 
continuing education courses had been accredited. TEXPERS has also added continuing 
education webinars. 

 

15



Texas Pension Review Board Minutes 
Nov. 12, 2020 

7 
 

8. Possible Texas public pension governance study (2:00:21) 

Mr. Brainard presented his prepared remarks. He noted that at the September 29 Actuarial Committee 
meeting, the PRB received critical feedback, and he stated that he heard and understood the 
frustration that was expressed. He stated that he felt although there are some financial and economic 
reasons underlying problems facing public pension plans, the biggest problem by far is that the legal 
arrangement that regulates public pensions in Texas is exceedingly poor.  

He noted state statutes are not designed to foster public pension funding success, providing examples 
such as how some systems require legislative action to adjust benefits or financing arrangements while 
others can make those decisions locally, and that benefit levels vary widely. He stated that there is no 
statutory requirement for promised benefits to align with what can be paid for. Depending on the 
system, the entity responsible for setting benefits may be different from the one that sets funding 
levels, and those entities may not be required to consult with one another. 

The current regulatory and legal landscape does not encourage accountability and consensus, so 
something needs to change. Good public policy should be consistent and include input from all 
stakeholders. He felt that since the PRB is responsible for making recommendations for improving 
policies, practices, and legislation, the board should direct the staff to produce a governance study. 

Chair Leibe entertained a motion to direct staff to perform a study of the public pension governance in 
Texas and to recommend improvements.  

Motion made by Mr. Brainard and seconded by Ms. Dush.   
The motion passed unanimously.  

9. Legislative committee matters (2:13:01) 

a. 2019-2020 Biennial Report (2:13:10) 

Ms. Kumar explained that the Biennial Report is a statutorily required report in which the 
agency explains its work and findings over the course of the biennium. She noted that it is a 
key report for the agency as it includes any legislative recommendations relating to public 
retirement systems. 

b. 2021 Guide to Public Retirement Systems in Texas (2:14:25) 

Ms. Kumar noted that this publication is a compendium of current public pension data and 
would be submitted to the legislature when considering pension bills. She noted the 
publication was streamlined because it was very long, and the online data center now 
includes most of the information previously in the guide. 

c. 87th Legislative Session Update (2:15:28) 

Ms. Kumar stated that the agency had its joint budget hearing with staff from the 
Legislative Budget Board and Office of the Governor the previous week. The PRB had one 
exceptional item request to avoid the five percent cut that would affect agency services. 
The request for funding for IT upgrades would be deferred until the next budget cycle. 

Staff would provide updates to the board about the format of the 87th Session since the 
Capitol was still closed due to COVID-19. 

10. Executive Director’s Report (2:18:50) 

a. Updated Fiscal Year 2021 Operating Budget (2:18:56) 

Ms. Kumar stated that the legislature had asked agencies to return five percent of their 
operating budgets, and the current budget was on track with that request. 

16



Texas Pension Review Board Minutes 
Nov. 12, 2020 

8 
 

b. Staff update (2:19:19) 

Ms. Kumar noted that two employees had left since the June board meeting, and the 
agency is trying to fill those. However, the thirteenth FTE position will be held vacant until 
the budget situation is clearer, since staff salaries are such a large portion of the budget. 

11. Call for future PRB agenda items (2:20:24) 

Mr. Zook recommended adding an agenda item to perform the investment fee benchmarking 
study, but it would likely need to wait until after legislative session when the budget is determined. 

12. Date and location of future PRB meetings-TBD (2:21:31) 

Chair Leibe stated that the next board meeting will be in 2021. There were currently no committee 
meetings set, but staff would reach out to schedule them soon. The next board meeting will most 
likely be in June after the legislative session. 

13. Invitation for public comment (2:23:00) 

There were no public comments. 

14. Adjournment (2:23:36) 

Chair Leibe adjourned the meeting at 12:26 pm.  

In Attendance: 

PRB Staff Present 

Anumeha Kumar Michelle Downie Kranes 
Kenneth J. Herbold Bryan Burnham 
James King Robert Munter 
Ashley Rendon Mariah Miller 
Wes Allen  

 
 
 
 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Chair Stephanie Leibe 

17



 

 

 

 

 

4b. Recognition of outgoing Board member 

 

 

 

 

 

 

18



 

 

 

 

 

4c. Introduction of new Board members 

 

 

 

 

 

 

19



 

 

 

 

 

4d. Election of Vice Chair for 2021 

 

 

 

 

 

 

20



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5. Actuarial Committee 

  

21



 

 

 

 

 

5a. Public retirement system reporting and compliance, including 

noncompliant retirement systems under Section 801.209 of the 

Texas Government Code    

22



Pension Review Board 
July 1, 2021 
 

 
 

 

Public Retirement System Compliance and Reporting  
As of June 18, 2021 

 
 

Compliance 

  Current Board Meeting 6.30.2020 Meeting 

Non-Compliant Plans 10 6 

Compliant Plans 89 93 

Total Plans Registered 99 99 

 
 

Summary of Plans Non-Compliant over 60 Days 

Plan Type Current Board Meeting 6.30.2020 Meeting 

Defined Benefit 3 2 

 
 

Plans Non-Compliant over 60 Days 

In accordance with 801.209(b) of the Texas Government Code, this list includes all plans who have not 
submitted one or more of the following reports to the Texas Pension Review Board by the 60th day after 
the date the reports are due: annual financial, membership, and investment returns and assumptions 
report (PRB-1000). 

Fiscal Year Retirement System Due Date 

2020 Nacogdoches County Hospital District Retirement Plan 1/27/2021 

2019 Midland Firemen’s Relief & Retirement Fund 7/29/2020 

2019 University Park Firemen’s Relief & Retirement Fund 7/29/2020 

 
 

Total Net Assets (Based on most recent financial reports) 

  Current Board Meeting 6.30.2020 Meeting 

Total Net Assets $301,365,704,837 $282,692,156,638 

 
 

23



 

 

 

 

 

5b. Actuarial Valuation Report 

 

 

 

 

 

 

24



Actuarial Valuation Report

July 1, 2021

Summary of Key Statistics

Assets and Liabilities

Current Actuarial Valuation

7/1/2021 11/12/2020 Prior Actuarial Valuation

Funded Ratio 77.0% 77.2% 76.8%

Market Value of Assets (MVA) 304,280,888,598$        293,208,832,639$        286,794,858,683$          

Actuarial Value of Assets (AVA) 305,310,576,544$        294,463,821,128$        291,539,281,927$          

Actuarial Accrued Liability (AAL) 396,384,500,564$        381,233,662,547$        379,713,487,683$          

Unfunded Actuarial Accrued 

Liability (UAAL = AAL - AVA) 91,073,924,020$          86,769,841,419$          88,174,205,756$            

Plan Amortization Periods

Current Actuarial Valuation

7/1/2021 11/12/2020 Prior Actuarial Valuation

Infinite 11 12 10

>= 40 years, but not infinite 15 13 12

> 30 years, < 40 years 11 11 9

> 25 years, <= 30 years 18 17 18

>= 10 years, <= 25 years 32 35 39

> 0 years, < 10 years 7 6 6

0 years 5 5 5

Total Plans Registered 99 99 99

Plan Discount Rates

Current Actuarial Valuation

7/1/2021 11/12/2020 Prior Actuarial Valuation

>=8% 2 2 6

> 7.50%, < 8.00% 12 15 23

7.50% 23 26 17

> 7.00%, < 7.50% 17 20 18

7.00% 24 20 21

> 6.50%, < 7.00% 10 7 6

<= 6.50% 11 9 8

Total Plans Registered 99 99 99

Current Actuarial Valuation

7/1/2021 11/12/2020 Prior Actuarial Valuation

 Mean 7.14% 7.22% 7.29%

 Standard Deviation 0.50% 0.49% 0.50%

 Median 7.25% 7.25% 7.25%

 Liability Weighted Mean 7.22% 7.29% 7.29%

 Liability Weighted Median 7.25% 7.25% 7.25%

25



Actuarial Valuation Report

July 1, 2021

Current Actuarial Valuation Prior Actuarial Valuation

Plan Name

Plan 

Status 

(1)

Effective 

Date

Discount 

Rate

Effective 

Amort 

Period (2)

Funded 

Ratio %

Market Value 

of Assets

(MVA)

Actuarial Value 

of Assets

(AVA)

 Unfunded Actuarial 

Accrued Liability 

(UAAL = AAL - AVA) 

UAAL 

as % of

Payroll

Effective 

Date

Prior 

Effective 

Amort 

Period (2)

Funded 

Ratio %

Employees Retirement System of Texas Active 8/31/2020 7.00% Infinite 66.0 27,946,206,540$           28,543,207,745$          14,715,104,328$          203.77% 8/31/2019 Infinite 70.5

Law Enforcement & Custodial Off Sup. Ret. Fund  Active 8/31/2020 7.00% Infinite 60.1 947,324,194$                968,062,761$               641,524,299$               39.37% 8/31/2019 Infinite 65.3

Austin Police Retirement System Active 12/31/2019 7.25% Infinite 58.4 857,839,229$                852,294,229$               607,235,559$               349.30% 12/31/2018 Infinite 58.1

Judicial Retirement System of Texas Plan Two Active 8/31/2020 7.00% Infinite 82.3 477,331,237$                486,802,031$               104,428,095$               116.28% 8/31/2019 Infinite 87.5

Beaumont Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active 12/31/2018 7.50% Infinite 55.8 105,769,426$                111,769,628$               88,543,261$                 457.43% 12/31/2016 104.0 67.5

Midland Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active 12/31/2019 7.50% Infinite 51.1 84,848,966$                  90,753,400$                 86,848,661$                 432.24% 12/31/2017 Infinite 60.9

McAllen Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active 9/30/2018 7.50% Infinite 68.2 52,675,409$                  51,901,271$                 24,240,176$                 196.53% 10/1/2016 33.4 69.1

Longview Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active 12/31/2019 7.50% Infinite 39.4 45,779,786$                  44,348,518$                 68,367,542$                 504.54% 12/31/2018 Infinite 39.9

Conroe Fire Fighters' Retirement Fund Active 12/31/2019 7.50% Infinite 58.4 29,561,207$                  29,523,182$                 21,025,245$                 200.13% 12/31/2018 Infinite 58.1

Orange Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active 1/1/2019 7.75% Infinite 46.3 7,961,733$                    7,961,733$                   9,241,746$                   360.64% 1/1/2017 69.3 49.9

Atlanta Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active 12/31/2018 7.40% Infinite 80.0 3,801,042$                    4,181,146$                   1,043,126$                   184.83% 12/31/2016 28.4 82.1

Brownwood Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active 12/31/2019 7.00% 94.7 42.8 4,655,263$                    4,461,500$                   5,975,941$                   297.83% 12/31/2017 38.6 45.0

Plainview Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active 12/31/2019 7.50% 79.7 34.0 6,238,767$                    5,989,437$                   11,633,150$                 576.43% 12/31/2017 44.8 37.7

Dallas Employees' Retirement Fund Active 12/31/2019 7.25% 65.0 75.7 3,658,088,000$             3,682,959,000$            1,180,366,000$            272.04% 12/31/2018 46.0 80.0

Sweetwater Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active 12/31/2018 8.00% 63.3 63.9 7,760,982$                    8,770,824$                   4,947,393$                   294.74% 12/31/2016 27.5 70.0

Marshall Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active 12/31/2018 7.50% 59.0 36.7 7,278,840$                    7,278,840$                   12,576,960$                 429.30% 12/31/2016 56.4 42.0

Texarkana Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active 12/31/2019 7.60% 58.3 80.0 36,402,489$                  35,443,388$                 8,854,932$                   202.16% 12/31/2017 15.0 86.3

Galveston Firefighter's Relief & Retirement Fund Active 12/31/2019 7.50% 57.6 64.9 49,030,850$                  47,792,470$                 25,845,485$                 294.44% 12/31/2017 26.8 69.2

Dallas Police & Fire Pension System-Combined Plan Active 1/1/2020 7.00% 55.0 45.7 2,057,857,317$             2,160,125,611$            2,563,846,869$            645.88% 1/1/2019 38.0 48.1

Cleburne Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active 12/31/2018 7.35% 48.6 59.6 19,362,808$                  21,731,172$                 14,724,082$                 324.13% 12/31/2016 28.8 66.7

Irving Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active 12/31/2019 7.00% 43.6 65.4 195,803,334$                190,715,524$               100,839,331$               267.38% 12/31/2017 Infinite 71.6

Wichita Falls Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active 1/1/2020 7.75% 43.3 56.8 52,839,714$                  52,839,714$                 40,226,568$                 326.00% 1/1/2018 Infinite 57.7

Fort Worth Employees' Retirement Fund Active 12/31/2019 7.00% 43.0 52.3 2,396,727,586$             2,400,393,264$            2,186,491,299$            433.49% 12/31/2018 44.0 52.4

Laredo Firefighters Retirement System Active 9/30/2018 7.50% 43.0 59.9 154,813,837$                155,509,979$               104,273,436$               282.55% 9/30/2016 28.0 59.3

Texas City Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active 12/31/2018 7.50% 41.1 45.9 14,389,108$                  15,828,019$                 18,643,387$                 348.98% 12/31/2016 28.0 50.4

Greenville Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active 12/31/2018 7.75% 40.7 46.6 12,254,104$                  13,479,514$                 15,438,433$                 368.76% 12/31/2016 55.0 47.7

Killeen Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active 9/30/2018 7.50% 39.8 69.4 43,947,221$                  42,970,465$                 18,990,872$                 131.39% 9/30/2016 22.8 69.7

Big Spring Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active 1/1/2019 7.75% 38.3 53.2 10,902,959$                  11,874,904$                 10,439,548$                 245.07% 1/1/2017 36.2 54.9

Amarillo Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active 12/31/2019 7.50% 38.1 82.0 193,539,560$                177,211,704$               38,901,102$                 185.22% 12/31/2017 43.5 81.5

This report is a compilation of pension data reported by retirement systems in their most recent AVs, sorted by amortization period.

1

26



Actuarial Valuation Report

July 1, 2021

Current Actuarial Valuation Prior Actuarial Valuation

Plan Name

Plan 

Status 

(1)

Effective 

Date

Discount 

Rate

Effective 

Amort 

Period (2)

Funded 

Ratio %

Market Value 

of Assets

(MVA)

Actuarial Value 

of Assets

(AVA)

 Unfunded Actuarial 

Accrued Liability 

(UAAL = AAL - AVA) 

UAAL 

as % of

Payroll

Effective 

Date

Prior 

Effective 

Amort 

Period (2)

Funded 

Ratio %

Harlingen Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active 9/30/2019 7.75% 38.0 64.5 33,712,925$                  33,712,925$                 18,528,703$                 277.57% 9/30/2017 59.1 66.1

San Angelo Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active 12/31/2019 7.80% 37.6 62.0 71,755,778$                  69,872,462$                 42,886,258$                 339.34% 12/31/2017 31.3 64.9

Odessa Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active 1/1/2020 7.50% 37.5 36.8 44,792,900$                  43,361,750$                 74,452,902$                 544.63% 1/1/2019 77.5 39.3

Lubbock Fire Pension Fund Active 12/31/2018 7.75% 33.0 70.8 186,484,535$                199,266,188$               82,173,796$                 241.06% 12/31/2016 33.5 72.6

Paris Firefighters' Relief & Retirement Fund Active 12/31/2018 7.25% 32.1 30.5 4,152,310$                    4,663,640$                   10,625,400$                 382.48% 12/31/2016 41.9 35.6

Austin Employees' Retirement System Active 12/31/2020 7.00% 32.0 65.3 3,199,546,583$             3,069,233,497$            1,631,981,669$            223.79% 12/31/2019 40.0 63.5

Abilene Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active 10/1/2019 7.50% 31.4 49.1 55,688,061$                  58,101,368$                 60,298,270$                 393.82% 10/1/2017 31.9 55.7

Lufkin Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active 12/31/2018 7.50% 30.7 48.8 15,659,035$                  17,334,531$                 18,178,233$                 349.28% 12/31/2016 33.1 46.7

El Paso Police Pension Fund Active 1/1/2020 7.75% 29.9 76.3 932,430,228$                888,936,511$               275,499,329$               298.45% 1/1/2018 30.5 78.3

Corpus Christi Fire Fighters' Retirement System Active 12/31/2018 7.50% 29.8 60.2 139,811,086$                151,136,552$               99,896,125$                 305.70% 12/31/2016 23.1 62.1

Tyler Firefighters' Relief & Retirement Fund Active 12/31/2019 7.25% 29.0 71.1 74,572,570$                  72,534,797$                 29,442,082$                 240.14% 12/31/2017 25.5 76.2

Corsicana Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active 12/31/2018 7.00% 28.9 50.7 8,563,597$                    9,310,272$                   9,065,130$                   218.76% 12/31/2016 28.9 53.1

University Park Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Closed 12/31/2018 7.50% 28.8 43.4 9,447,674$                    10,460,367$                 13,664,013$                 441.37% 12/31/2016 Infinite 44.0

Fort Worth Employees' Retirement Fund Staff Plan (3) Active 12/31/2020 7.00% 28.2 70.7 6,834,662$                    6,592,997$                   2,734,377$                   146.84% 12/31/2019 29.2 67.5

Port Arthur Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active 12/31/2019 7.50% 27.3 75.0 51,911,829$                  50,280,562$                 16,771,865$                 180.33% 12/31/2017 23.7 74.2

Houston Municipal Employees Pension System Active 7/1/2020 7.00% 27.1 59.2 2,881,788,000$             3,074,339,000$            2,122,008,000$            330.40% 7/1/2019 28.0 59.3

Teacher Retirement System of Texas Active 8/31/2020 7.25% 27.0 76.8 165,416,245,243$         167,432,159,118$        50,605,424,379$          101.24% 8/31/2019 29.0 76.4

Houston Police Officers' Pension System Active 7/1/2020 7.00% 27.0 82.4 5,572,476,000$             5,631,533,000$            1,204,149,000$            255.17% 7/1/2019 28.0 81.7

Houston Firefighters' Relief & Retirement Fund Active 7/1/2020 7.00% 27.0 86.2 4,102,932,000$             4,251,851,000$            680,456,000$               261.15% 7/1/2019 28.0 82.9

CPS Energy Pension Plan Active 1/1/2020 7.00% 27.0 82.7 1,779,033,857$             1,719,537,036$            360,097,480$               125.49% 1/1/2019 21.0 82.3

Galveston Employees' Retirement Plan for Police Active 1/1/2021 7.00% 27.0 38.0 22,771,571$                  22,845,333$                 37,256,435$                 290.39% 1/1/2020 28.0 36.4

El Paso Firemen's Pension Fund Active 1/1/2020 7.75% 26.6 76.5 643,133,030$                615,418,214$               189,530,926$               281.17% 1/1/2018 28.0 77.8

Temple Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active 9/30/2020 7.75% 26.6 70.5 48,418,257$                  47,731,472$                 19,976,863$                 205.23% 9/30/2018 28.6 73.0

San Benito Firemen Relief & Retirement Fund Active 9/30/2019 7.50% 26.1 60.9 3,927,895$                    3,927,895$                   2,523,394$                   184.91% 9/30/2017 21.8 60.7

University Health System Pension Plan Active 1/1/2018 7.00% 26.0 70.7 363,779,588$                347,115,543$               143,589,317$               39.14% 1/1/2017 27.0 67.5

Irving Supplemental Benefit Plan Active 1/1/2020 6.75% 26.0 73.5 70,213,418$                  67,147,643$                 24,275,598$                 21.43% 1/1/2019 23.0 73.5

Dallas Co. Hospital Dist. Retirement Income Plan Active 1/1/2020 6.00% 24.0 64.8 1,173,720,580$             1,126,710,039$            611,546,606$               89.21% 1/1/2019 25.0 71.5

Houston MTA Workers Union Pension Plan Closed 1/1/2020 6.25% 23.0 64.2 294,629,862$                284,189,712$               158,635,309$               175.09% 1/1/2019 24.0 62.5

San Antonio Metropolitan Transit Retirement Plan Active 10/1/2018 7.25% 23.0 64.1 298,393,798$                282,899,551$               158,753,455$               139.47% 10/1/2017 24.0 62.4

This report is a compilation of pension data reported by retirement systems in their most recent AVs, sorted by amortization period.

2

27



Actuarial Valuation Report

July 1, 2021

Current Actuarial Valuation Prior Actuarial Valuation

Plan Name

Plan 

Status 

(1)

Effective 

Date

Discount 

Rate

Effective 

Amort 

Period (2)

Funded 

Ratio %

Market Value 

of Assets

(MVA)

Actuarial Value 

of Assets

(AVA)

 Unfunded Actuarial 

Accrued Liability 

(UAAL = AAL - AVA) 

UAAL 

as % of

Payroll

Effective 

Date

Prior 

Effective 

Amort 

Period (2)

Funded 

Ratio %

Houston MTA Non-Union Pension Plan Closed 1/1/2020 6.25% 23.0 60.5 186,645,413$                181,431,446$               118,527,718$               303.71% 1/1/2019 24.0 61.8

Austin Fire Fighters Relief & Retirement Fund Active 12/31/2019 7.50% 21.9 86.8 1,029,892,806$             1,001,980,211$            152,385,418$               159.33% 12/31/2018 17.9 88.0

Lower Colorado River Authority Retirement Plan Closed 1/1/2020 7.00% 20.0 67.7 428,877,867$                431,497,129$               205,980,317$               202.35% 1/1/2019 18.0 70.3

Dallas Police & Fire Pension System-Supplemental (4) Active 1/1/2020 7.00% 20.0 48.3 17,307,433$                  17,307,433$                 18,523,051$                 3091.36% 1/1/2019 10.0 57.6

Galveston Wharves Pension Plan Closed 1/1/2021 7.25% 20.0 93.2 15,560,833$                  15,560,833$                 1,143,704$                   110.84% 1/1/2020 21.0 89.9

Texas Emergency Services Retirement System Active 8/31/2020 7.50% 19.0 83.3 125,229,661$                125,366,915$               25,073,628$                 N/A 8/31/2018 24.0 83.4

Employees of Brownsville Navigation District Active 1/1/2019 6.15% 19.0 57.6 4,890,148$                    5,254,517$                   3,873,642$                   89.19% 1/1/2018 20.0 54.3

Denton Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active 12/31/2019 6.75% 18.3 80.8 103,815,795$                98,109,262$                 23,333,103$                 115.79% 12/31/2017 14.6 82.1

Sweeny Community Hospital Closed 1/1/2020 7.00% 18.0 88.8 3,490,459$                    3,306,373$                   415,513$                      65.55% 1/1/2019 19.0 86.4

Waxahachie Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active 10/1/2020 7.00% 17.5 74.9 19,854,398$                  19,854,398$                 6,666,173$                   123.55% 10/1/2018 18.9 73.1

Galveston Employees' Retirement Fund Active 12/31/2020 7.25% 16.4 79.5 63,037,200$                  59,408,885$                 15,338,807$                 56.43% 12/31/2019 16.5 77.5

Weslaco Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active 9/30/2020 7.25% 16.3 73.3 12,832,351$                  13,554,752$                 4,945,699$                   100.10% 9/30/2018 14.1 72.0

City of El Paso Employees Retirement Trust Active 9/1/2020 7.25% 16.0 80.0 877,989,396$                867,570,209$               217,451,962$               129.60% 9/1/2018 14.0 80.3

Texas Municipal Retirement System (5) Active 12/31/2020 6.75% 16.2 89.5 34,282,893,034$           33,609,583,130$          3,926,285,638$            53.91% 12/31/2019 17.2 88.0

Harris County Hospital District Pension Plan (3) Closed 1/1/2020 6.75% 15.8 73.0 737,879,367$                707,893,800$               261,858,773$               167.34% 1/1/2019 16.4 74.0

DFW Airport Board Active 1/1/2020 7.25% 15.0 85.8 549,954,511$                543,581,900$               89,741,623$                 173.42% 1/1/2019 16.0 83.7

DFW Airport Board DPS Active 1/1/2020 7.25% 15.0 81.2 215,337,151$                212,881,725$               49,148,757$                 146.11% 1/1/2019 16.0 78.5

Plano Retirement Security Plan Active 12/31/2019 6.75% 15.0 95.4 167,755,102$                160,483,170$               7,711,014$                   4.87% 12/31/2017 0.0 100.8

Corpus Christi Regional Transportation Authority Active 1/1/2020 7.30% 14.0 92.1 42,170,049$                  41,116,802$                 3,508,696$                   31.97% 1/1/2019 15.0 91.8

San Antonio Fire & Police Pension Fund Active 1/1/2020 7.25% 13.7 87.6 3,408,690,035$             3,434,094,746$            484,429,050$               141.90% 1/1/2019 13.9 87.9

DART Employees (3) Closed 10/1/2019 6.75% 12.3 80.5 185,583,667$                190,481,841$               46,127,286$                 366.26% 10/1/2018 12.8 79.2

Denison Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active 12/31/2019 7.50% 12.2 75.3 20,225,141$                  17,982,601$                 5,901,574$                   169.53% 12/31/2017 15.8 77.3

Capital MTA Bargaining Frozen 1/1/2020 6.75% 12.0 52.1 35,284,632$                  33,780,736$                 31,103,216$                 N/A 1/1/2019 20.0 50.6

Brazos River Authority Retirement Plan Frozen 3/1/2020 6.50% 12.0 63.5 20,463,482$                  20,372,697$                 11,705,422$                 N/A 3/1/2019 13.0 61.7

Capital MTA Admin Employees (6) Active 1/1/2020 6.75% 11.7 77.8 37,818,736$                  35,895,259$                 10,259,320$                 41.53% 1/1/2019 20.0 76.9

Texas County & District Retirement System (5) Active 12/31/2019 8.00% 11.3 89.4 33,833,510,529$           32,789,744,843$          3,880,435,865$            52.85% 12/31/2018 12.6 88.5

Port of Houston Authority Retirement Plan Closed 8/1/2020 6.25% 11.0 93.4 191,251,270$                191,251,270$               13,596,861$                 45.80% 8/1/2019 30.0 92.9

Northeast Medical Center Hospital Retirement Plan (4) Frozen 7/1/2019 7.25% 10.0 82.7 9,405,456$                    9,405,456$                   1,963,048$                   N/A 7/1/2018 10.0 83.8

Nacogdoches County Hospital District Frozen 7/1/2020 6.75% 10.0 72.5 8,895,538$                    8,895,538$                   3,379,266$                   N/A 7/1/2019 22.0 96.8

This report is a compilation of pension data reported by retirement systems in their most recent AVs, sorted by amortization period.

3

28



Actuarial Valuation Report

July 1, 2021

Current Actuarial Valuation Prior Actuarial Valuation

Plan Name

Plan 

Status 

(1)

Effective 

Date

Discount 

Rate

Effective 

Amort 

Period (2)

Funded 

Ratio %

Market Value 

of Assets

(MVA)

Actuarial Value 

of Assets

(AVA)

 Unfunded Actuarial 

Accrued Liability 

(UAAL = AAL - AVA) 

UAAL 

as % of

Payroll

Effective 

Date

Prior 

Effective 

Amort 

Period (2)

Funded 

Ratio %

Guadalupe-Blanco River Authority Frozen 1/1/2020 6.50% 9.0 84.2 33,392,523$                  31,821,263$                 5,972,779$                   N/A 1/1/2019 10.0 86.9

Colorado River Municipal Water Dist. (3) Active 1/1/2020 6.00% 7.1 88.3 10,699,777$                  10,699,777$                 1,413,550$                   44.47% 1/1/2019 8.5 83.3

Refugio County Memorial Hospital (3) Frozen 11/1/2019 6.00% 5.2 96.5 1,861,692$                    1,861,692$                   68,240$                        N/A 11/1/2018 7.0 97.8

Guadalupe Regional Medical Center Active 1/1/2020 7.00% 5.0 99.1 83,831,107$                  78,104,845$                 709,550$                      2.40% 1/1/2019 12.0 96.5

Travis County ESD #6 FRRF Active 12/31/2019 7.00% 4.6 88.6 28,086,052$                  26,598,293$                 3,417,649$                   48.47% 12/31/2017 3.3 87.2

JPS - Tarrant County Hospital District Active 10/1/2019 7.00% 3.5 95.3 312,670,342$                308,994,339$               15,398,047$                 5.28% 10/1/2018 5.0 93.6

Northwest Texas Healthcare System Retirement Plan Frozen 10/1/2019 7.50% 1.0 96.2 23,912,245$                  23,900,053$                 944,540$                      N/A 10/1/2018 2.0 90.1

Citizens Medical Center Active 3/1/2020 6.75% 0.0 106.1 114,266,627$                114,815,280$               (6,627,783)$                  -11.60% 3/1/2019 0.0 110.4

The Woodlands Firefighters' Retirement System Active 1/1/2020 7.00% 0.0 107.0 42,315,851$                  42,315,851$                 (2,769,663)$                  -22.22% 1/1/2019 3.6 97.8

Arlington Employees Deferred Income Plan Active 6/30/2019 5.00% 0.0 107.2 2,999,905$                    2,999,905$                   (200,717)$                     -5.33% 6/30/2018 0.0 106.2

Anson General Hospital Frozen 7/1/2020 6.00% 0.0 110.9 1,806,754$                    1,771,758$                   (174,509)$                     -172.71% 7/1/2019 0.0 110.1

El Paso Firemen & Policemen's Pension Staff Plan Active 1/1/2020 7.75% 0.0 113.7 685,883$                       661,663$                      (79,547)$                       -9.54% 1/1/2018 0.0 113.1

 Grand Totals: 77.0% 304,280,888,598$         305,310,576,544$        91,073,924,020$          76.8%

Notes

(1) Plan status indicates whether a plan is active (admitting new hires), closed to new hires (but still accruing benefits), or frozen (not accruing benefits).

(2) The effective amortization period is the time it would take to theoretically eliminate the UAAL assuming no future gains or losses and taking into account both the plan's stated and historical contribution policy.

(3) Amortization period is calculated by the PRB.

(4) Reported amortization period is based on an open amortization funding policy.

(5) Amortization period is calculated using system-wide aggregate UAAL and payroll amounts.

(6) Current amortization period is calcualted by the PRB. Prior amortization period is based on an open amortization funding policy.

This report is a compilation of pension data reported by retirement systems in their most recent AVs, sorted by amortization period.

4

29



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

30



AV Supplemental Report
July 1, 2021

(Dollars in Millions)

(a) (b) (a) - (b) (b) / (a)

Plan Name
Fiscal Year 

End
Discount 

Rate

Total Pension 
Liability (TPL)

(1)

Fiduciary 
Net Position

(2)

Net Pension 
Liability (NPL)

(3)

NPL 
Funded 
Ratio %

NPL at Disc.
Rate -1% 

(4)

NPL -1% 
Funded 
Ratio %

10 Year 
Net Return 

(5)

Abilene Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 9/30/2019 7.50% 118.74$              55.69$              63.05$                46.9 73.51$               43.1 6.48% N/A
Amarillo Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 12/31/2019 7.50% 216.11$              193.54$            22.57$                89.6 48.61$               79.9 9.87% N/A
Anson General Hospital 6/30/2020 6.00% 1.63$                  1.81$                (0.17)$                 110.6 (0.02)$                101.0 8.03% N/A
Arlington Employees Deferred Income Plan 6/30/2020 5.00% 2.99$                  3.27$                (0.28)$                 109.2 (0.00)$                100.1 3.95% N/A
Atlanta Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 12/31/2019 4.82% 7.44$                  4.37$                3.07$                  58.7 4.19$                 51.0 6.66% 2045
Austin Employees' Retirement System 12/31/2019 7.00% 4,487.88$           2,928.03$         1,559.85$           65.2 2,127.42$          57.9 8.16% N/A
Austin Fire Fighters Relief & Retirement Fund 12/31/2019 7.50% 1,156.02$           1,029.89$         126.13$              89.1 236.67$             81.3 8.18% N/A
Austin Police Retirement System 12/31/2019 4.10% 2,175.17$           857.84$            1,317.33$           39.4 1,663.20$          34.0 6.33% 2045
Beaumont Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 12/31/2019 3.69% 309.51$              120.73$            188.79$              39.0 231.41$             34.3 7.78% 2059
Big Spring Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 12/31/2019 7.75% 23.52$                13.23$              10.29$                56.2 13.44$               49.6 7.22% N/A
Brazos River Authority Retirement Plan 2/29/2020 6.50% 31.93$                20.46$              11.47$                64.1 14.80$               58.0 6.57% N/A
Brownwood Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 12/31/2019 7.25% 9.98$                  4.66$                5.33$                  46.6 6.59$                 41.4 5.96% N/A
CPS Energy Pension Plan 12/31/2020 7.00% 2,158.67$           1,919.63$         239.03$              88.9 510.23$             79.0 8.10% N/A
Capital MTA Admin Employees 12/31/2019 5.10% 60.80$                37.82$              22.99$                62.2 32.75$               53.6 8.41% 2058
Capital MTA Bargaining 12/31/2019 6.75% 64.88$                35.28$              29.60$                54.4 35.83$               49.6 8.24% N/A
Citizens Medical Center 2/29/2020 7.00% 105.52$              114.25$            (8.74)$                 108.3 5.21$                 95.6 8.60% N/A
City of El Paso Employees Retirement Trust 8/31/2020 7.50% 1,083.48$           877.99$            205.49$              81.0 338.07$             72.2 8.56% N/A
Cleburne Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 12/31/2019 7.35% 38.12$                22.00$              16.12$                57.7 20.41$               51.9 6.96% N/A
Colorado River Municipal Water Dist. 12/31/2019 6.00% 11.79$                10.70$              1.09$                  90.7 1.87$                 85.1 7.52% N/A
Conroe Fire Fighters' Retirement Fund 12/31/2019 5.53% 69.52$                29.56$              39.96$                42.5 51.15$               36.6 5.57% 2063
Corpus Christi Fire Fighters' Retirement System 12/31/2019 7.50% 260.21$              157.59$            102.63$              60.6 131.65$             54.5 7.57% N/A
Corpus Christi Regional Transportation Authority 12/31/2019 7.30% 44.63$                42.17$              2.46$                  94.5 7.72$                 84.5 8.24% N/A
Corsicana Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 12/31/2019 7.00% 18.97$                9.90$                9.07$                  52.2 11.60$               46.1 5.71% N/A
DART Employees 9/30/2019 6.75% 236.61$              185.58$            51.03$                78.4 74.44$               71.4 7.07% N/A
DFW Airport Board 12/31/2019 7.25% 633.32$              549.95$            83.37$                86.8 168.49$             76.5 7.60% N/A
DFW Airport Board DPS 12/31/2019 7.25% 262.03$              215.34$            46.69$                82.2 85.88$               71.5 7.60% N/A
Dallas Co. Hospital Dist. Retirement Income Plan 12/31/2019 6.75% 1,576.85$           1,173.30$         403.55$              74.4 624.35$             65.3 7.71% N/A
Dallas Employees' Retirement Fund 12/31/2019 5.93% 5,658.73$           3,658.09$         2,000.64$           64.6 2,748.26$          57.1 8.56% 2058
Dallas Police & Fire Pension System-Combined Plan 12/31/2019 7.00% 4,731.96$           2,057.86$         2,674.10$           43.5 3,212.53$          39.0 3.31% N/A
Dallas Police & Fire Pension System-Supplemental 12/31/2019 7.00% 35.84$                17.31$              18.53$                48.3 21.76$               44.3 3.31% N/A
Denison Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 12/31/2019 7.50% 23.61$                20.23$              3.39$                  85.6 6.07$                 76.9 8.79% N/A
Denton Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 12/31/2019 6.75% 116.47$              103.82$            12.65$                89.1 27.09$               79.3 9.33% N/A
El Paso Firemen & Policemen's Pension Staff Plan (7) 12/31/2019 7.75% 0.55$                  0.69$                (0.13)$                 123.9 (0.05)$                108.1 7.63% N/A
El Paso Firemen's Pension Fund 12/31/2019 7.75% 809.33$              645.01$            164.32$              79.7 278.73$             69.8 7.96% N/A
El Paso Police Pension Fund 12/31/2019 7.75% 1,161.70$           935.19$            226.52$              80.5 390.85$             70.5 7.96% N/A
Employees Retirement System of Texas 8/31/2020 3.62% 65,936.88$         27,946.21$       37,990.67$         42.4 48,372.38$        36.6 8.12% 2044

Expected 
Depletion 

Date 
(6)

This report is a compilation of pension data reported by retirement systems to the PRB in their most recently published Annual Financial Report and PRB-1000.

1
31



AV Supplemental Report
July 1, 2021

(Dollars in Millions)

(a) (b) (a) - (b) (b) / (a)

Plan Name
Fiscal Year 

End
Discount 

Rate

Total Pension 
Liability (TPL)

(1)

Fiduciary 
Net Position

(2)

Net Pension 
Liability (NPL)

(3)

NPL 
Funded 
Ratio %

NPL at Disc.
Rate -1% 

(4)

NPL -1% 
Funded 
Ratio %

10 Year 
Net Return 

(5)

Expected 
Depletion 

Date 
(6)

Employees of Brownsville Navigation District 12/31/2019 6.75% 8.51$                  5.95$                2.57$                  69.9 3.23$                 64.8 7.24% N/A
Fort Worth Employees' Retirement Fund 9/30/2020 7.00% 4,728.03$           2,368.16$         2,359.87$           50.1 2,945.54$          44.6 6.61% N/A
Fort Worth Employees' Retirement Fund Staff Plan 9/30/2020 7.00% 9.06$                  6.00$                3.06$                  66.2 4.43$                 57.5 6.61% N/A
Galveston Employees' Retirement Fund 12/31/2019 7.25% 70.81$                57.50$              13.32$                81.2 21.35$               72.9 7.37% N/A
Galveston Employees' Retirement Plan for Police 12/31/2019 7.00% 59.11$                21.95$              37.16$                37.1 44.49$               33.0 6.32% N/A
Galveston Firefighter's Relief & Retirement Fund 12/31/2019 7.75% 69.70$                49.03$              20.67$                70.3 28.45$               63.3 6.76% N/A
Galveston Wharves Pension Plan 12/31/2019 7.25% 16.44$                14.83$              1.61$                  90.2 3.25$                 82.0 9.17% N/A
Greenville Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 12/31/2019 7.75% 30.03$                14.29$              15.73$                47.6 19.05$               42.9 7.12% N/A
Guadalupe Regional Medical Center 12/31/2019 7.00% 80.17$                83.83$              (3.66)$                 104.6 7.51$                 91.8 9.68% N/A
Guadalupe-Blanco River Authority 12/31/2019 6.75% 36.07$                33.39$              2.67$                  92.6 6.70$                 83.3 7.41% N/A
Harlingen Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 9/30/2019 7.75% 53.00$                33.71$              19.29$                63.6 25.34$               57.1 7.61% N/A
Harris County Hospital District Pension Plan 12/31/2019 6.75% 962.26$              737.32$            224.94$              76.6 336.86$             68.6 8.90% N/A
Houston Firefighters' Relief & Retirement Fund 6/30/2020 7.25% 5,084.71$           4,102.93$         981.78$              80.7 1,507.57$          73.1 7.65% N/A
Houston MTA Non-Union Pension Plan 12/31/2019 6.25% 301.37$              186.65$            114.72$              61.9 147.29$             55.9 7.80% N/A
Houston MTA Workers Union Pension Plan 12/31/2019 6.25% 429.29$              294.63$            134.66$              68.6 182.93$             61.7 7.90% N/A
Houston Municipal Employees Pension System 6/30/2020 7.00% 5,332.87$           2,881.79$         2,451.08$           54.0 3,016.68$          48.9 7.96% N/A
Houston Police Officers' Pension System 6/30/2020 7.00% 7,083.96$           5,572.48$         1,511.49$           78.7 2,278.13$          71.0 7.90% N/A
Irving Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 12/31/2019 7.00% 291.56$              199.47$            92.09$                68.4 125.61$             61.4 8.29% N/A
Irving Supplemental Benefit Plan 12/31/2019 6.75% 91.42$                70.21$              21.21$                76.8 33.89$               67.4 6.13% N/A
JPS - Tarrant County Hospital District 9/30/2019 7.00% 324.44$              312.71$            11.73$                96.4 51.54$               85.9 0.00% N/A
Judicial Retirement System of Texas Plan Two 8/31/2020 4.19% 781.67$              477.33$            304.34$              61.1 396.59$             54.6 8.12% 2041
Killeen Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 9/30/2019 7.50% 66.10$                45.86$              20.24$                69.4 30.04$               60.4 5.85% N/A
Laredo Firefighters Retirement System 9/30/2020 7.50% 291.37$              167.67$            123.70$              57.5 162.15$             50.8 5.89% N/A
Law Enforcement & Custodial Off Sup. Ret. Fund  8/31/2020 2.87% 2,862.46$           947.32$            1,915.13$           33.1 2,448.88$          27.9 8.12% 2036
Longview Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 12/31/2019 4.21% 167.80$              45.78$              122.02$              27.3 148.04$             23.6 5.69% 2038
Lower Colorado River Authority Retirement Plan 12/31/2019 7.00% 637.48$              429.88$            207.60$              67.4 273.20$             61.1 7.10% N/A
Lubbock Fire Pension Fund 12/31/2019 7.75% 293.02$              211.55$            81.47$                72.2 117.02$             64.4 6.68% N/A
Lufkin Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 12/31/2019 7.50% 37.25$                18.98$              18.27$                50.9 22.39$               45.9 6.84% N/A
Marshall Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 12/31/2019 7.50% 20.80$                8.27$                12.52$                39.8 15.23$               35.2 7.14% N/A
McAllen Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 9/30/2019 5.67% 99.61$                53.97$              45.64$                54.2 59.69$               47.5 6.68% 2062
Midland Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 12/31/2018 5.29% 208.63$              80.01$              128.62$              38.4 157.43$             33.7 5.39% 2043
Nacogdoches County Hospital District 6/30/2019 7.25% 48.19$                45.98$              2.21$                  95.4 7.35$                 86.2 9.51% N/A
Northeast Medical Center Hospital Retirement Plan 6/30/2020 6.70% 12.32$                8.90$                3.43$                  72.2 4.44$                 66.7 8.81% 2057
Northwest Texas Healthcare System Retirement Plan 9/30/2019 7.50% 24.70$                23.91$              0.79$                  96.8 2.81$                 89.5 6.83% N/A
Odessa Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 12/31/2019 7.50% 115.74$              44.79$              70.95$                38.7 84.61$               34.6 6.88% N/A
Orange Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 12/31/2019 6.67% 19.47$                8.94$                10.53$                45.9 12.82$               41.1 6.77% 2060

This report is a compilation of pension data reported by retirement systems to the PRB in their most recently published Annual Financial Report and PRB-1000.

2
32



AV Supplemental Report
July 1, 2021

(Dollars in Millions)

(a) (b) (a) - (b) (b) / (a)

Plan Name
Fiscal Year 

End
Discount 

Rate

Total Pension 
Liability (TPL)

(1)

Fiduciary 
Net Position

(2)

Net Pension 
Liability (NPL)

(3)

NPL 
Funded 
Ratio %

NPL at Disc.
Rate -1% 

(4)

NPL -1% 
Funded 
Ratio %

10 Year 
Net Return 

(5)

Expected 
Depletion 

Date 
(6)

Paris Firefighters' Relief & Retirement Fund 12/31/2019 7.25% 15.39$                4.50$                10.89$                29.2 12.49$               26.5 4.76% N/A
Plainview Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 12/31/2019 7.50% 17.62$                6.24$                11.38$                35.4 13.41$               31.7 6.43% N/A
Plano Retirement Security Plan 12/31/2019 6.75% 168.19$              167.76$            0.44$                  99.7 25.37$               86.9 8.81% N/A
Port Arthur Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 12/31/2019 7.50% 69.96$                51.91$              18.05$                74.2 25.48$               67.1 7.72% N/A
Port of Houston Authority Retirement Plan 7/31/2020 6.25% 203.78$              191.25$            12.53$                93.9 36.57$               83.9 7.18% N/A
Refugio County Memorial Hospital 10/31/2019 6.00% 1.94$                  1.86$                0.08$                  96.0 0.35$                 84.1 6.53% N/A
San Angelo Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 12/31/2019 7.80% 112.76$              71.68$              41.08$                63.6 54.14$               57.0 7.68% N/A
San Antonio Fire & Police Pension Fund 12/31/2019 7.25% 3,922.67$           3,408.69$         513.98$              86.9 1,065.59$          76.2 7.70% N/A
San Antonio Metropolitan Transit Retirement Plan (8) 9/30/2019 7.25% 456.21$              303.01$            153.20$              66.4 203.00$             59.9 N/A N/A
San Benito Firemen Relief & Retirement Fund 9/30/2019 7.50% 6.45$                  3.93$                2.52$                  60.9 3.35$                 54.0 3.96% N/A
Sweeny Community Hospital 12/31/2019 7.00% 3.70$                  3.49$                0.21$                  94.4 0.44$                 88.7 9.18% N/A
Sweetwater Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 12/31/2019 8.00% 14.37$                9.02$                5.35$                  62.8 7.00$                 56.3 6.82% N/A
Teacher Retirement System of Texas 8/31/2020 7.25% 218,974.21$       165,416.25$     53,557.96$         75.5 82,585.42$        66.7 8.83% N/A
Temple Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 9/30/2019 7.75% 63.03$                45.57$              17.46$                72.3 24.71$               64.8 6.33% N/A
Texarkana Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 12/31/2019 7.60% 44.30$                36.40$              7.90$                  82.2 12.77$               74.0 7.45% N/A
Texas City Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 12/31/2019 7.50% 35.25$                16.48$              18.78$                46.7 22.89$               41.9 6.10% N/A
Texas County & District Retirement System (9) 12/31/2019 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 8.10% N/A
Texas Emergency Services Retirement System 8/31/2020 7.50% 150.44$              125.23$            25.21$                83.2 48.57$               72.1 9.01% N/A
Texas Municipal Retirement System (9) 12/31/2019 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 6.86% N/A
The Woodlands Firefighters' Retirement System (7) 12/31/2019 7.00% 39.55$                42.32$              (2.77)$                 107.0 3.51$                 92.3 4.94% N/A
Travis County ESD #6 FRRF 12/31/2019 7.00% 32.47$                28.09$              4.39$                  86.5 9.78$                 74.2 7.31% N/A
Tyler Firefighters' Relief & Retirement Fund 12/31/2019 7.50% 98.96$                74.57$              24.38$                75.4 34.83$               68.2 7.57% N/A
University Health System Pension Plan 12/31/2019 7.00% 583.57$              436.56$            147.01$              74.8 225.22$             66.0 8.63% N/A
University Park Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 12/31/2018 7.50% 24.30$                9.45$                14.85$                38.9 17.70$               34.8 6.48% N/A
Waxahachie Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 9/30/2019 7.00% 25.13$                18.11$              7.03$                  72.0 10.34$               63.6 6.84% N/A
Weslaco Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 9/30/2019 7.25% 16.74$                11.93$              4.81$                  71.3 7.41$                 61.7 5.64% N/A
Wichita Falls Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 12/31/2019 4.99% 125.91$              52.88$              73.03$                42.0 90.18$               37.0 7.74% 2046

 Grand Totals: 349,597.75$      236,202.13$    113,395.63$       67.6% 160,850$          59.5%

Notes
(1) Total Pension Liability is the actuarial accrued liability calculated in accordance with GASB 67, as reported in the system's Annual Financial Report.
(2) Fiduciary Net Position is the market value of assets as of the Fiscal Year End, as reported in the system's Annual Finaicial Report.
(3) Net Pension Liability is measured as the Total Pension Liability less the amount of the pension plan’s Fiduciary Net Position.
(4) Net Pension Liability measured using a discount rate 1% lower than the stated discount rate.
(5) 10 Year Net Return (gross return net of investment expenses) as reported for the Fiscal Year on the PRB-1000 Investment Returns and Assumptions Report.
(6) Expected Depletion date is reported in GASB 67 when applicable.
(7) The plan is less than 10 years old; return is calculated since date of inception.
(8) A 10 Year Net Return was not available from this plan. 
(9) Plan is an Agent Multiple Employer Defined Benefit Plan and is not subject to the majority of GASB 67 reporting requirements.

This report is a compilation of pension data reported by retirement systems to the PRB in their most recently published Annual Financial Report and PRB-1000.

3
33



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

34



Contribution Report
July 1, 2021

(a) (b) (c) = (a) - (b) (d) (e) = (c) + (d) (f) (f) / (e) 

Plan Name
Plan 

Status (1)
Fiscal Year 

End
Covered
Payroll

Total NC
(% of Pay) 

(2), (3)

EE Cont
(% of Pay) 

(3)

ER Normal 
Cost

(% of Pay) 
(3)

Amort Pmt
(% of Pay) 

(3)

ER Rec Cont
(% of Pay) 

(3), (4)

Actual
ER Cont

(% of Pay) 
(5)

Actual ER 
Cont Type

Percent of 
Rec Cont 

Paid

Nacogdoches County Hospital District Frozen 6/30/2019 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A Actuarial 0%

Refugio County Memorial Hospital Frozen 10/31/2019 2,928,887$              0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.25% 0.25% 0.00% Actuarial 0%

Law Enforcement & Custodial Off Sup. Ret. Fund  Active 8/31/2020 1,662,147,480$       2.08% 0.50% 1.58% 1.83% 3.41% 1.34% Other 39%

Beaumont Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active 12/31/2019 19,019,948$            20.20% 15.50% 4.70% 27.50% 32.20% 15.50% Fixed 48%

Orange Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active 12/31/2019 2,523,746$              12.24% 12.50% 0.00% 23.45% 23.19% 14.94% Fixed 64%

Wichita Falls Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active 12/31/2019 11,295,885$            15.19% 13.00% 2.19% 17.34% 19.53% 12.77% Other 65%

Austin Police Retirement System Active 12/31/2019 168,782,554$          24.99% 13.00% 11.99% 19.98% 31.97% 21.33% Fixed 67%

Dallas Employees' Retirement Fund Active 12/31/2019 433,591,000$          20.95% 13.32% 7.63% 13.64% 21.27% 14.34% Other 67%

Longview Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active 12/31/2019 13,359,496$            16.74% 16.76% 0.00% 27.98% 27.96% 19.10% Fixed 68%

Midland Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active 12/31/2018 17,568,234$            25.98% 14.20% 11.78% 20.08% 31.86% 22.20% Fixed 70%

Odessa Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active 12/31/2019 13,948,594$            14.89% 18.00% 0.00% 31.97% 28.86% 20.18% Fixed 70%

Irving Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active 12/31/2019 36,988,450$            21.22% 13.00% 8.22% 13.80% 22.02% 16.15% Fixed 73%

Conroe Fire Fighters' Retirement Fund Active 12/31/2019 10,217,674$            21.89% 13.24% 8.65% 11.26% 19.91% 15.00% Fixed 75%

McAllen Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active 9/30/2019 12,505,315$            16.89% 12.00% 4.89% 12.31% 17.20% 13.00% Fixed 76%

Sweetwater Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active 12/31/2019 1,659,628$              23.01% 17.00% 6.01% 17.64% 23.65% 18.00% Fixed 76%

Marshall Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active 12/31/2019 2,816,321$              17.30% 14.00% 3.30% 22.70% 26.00% 20.15% Fixed 77%

Fort Worth Employees' Retirement Fund Active 9/30/2020 509,575,065$          17.50% 11.10% 6.40% 25.03% 31.43% 24.48% Actuarial 78%

Employees Retirement System of Texas (7) Active 8/31/2020 7,158,435,103$       13.76% 9.50% 4.26% 9.50% 13.76% 11.79% Fixed 86%

Dallas Police & Fire Pension System-Supplemental Active 12/31/2019 622,000$                 42.44% 13.98% 28.46% 257.09% 285.55% 246.02% Actuarial 86%

Texas City Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active 12/31/2019 5,521,000$              14.30% 16.00% 0.00% 20.40% 18.70% 16.17% Fixed 86%

Cleburne Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active 12/31/2019 4,603,850$              20.27% 14.00% 6.27% 19.16% 25.43% 22.00% Other 87%

Judicial Retirement System of Texas Plan Two Active 8/31/2020 88,578,603$            23.14% 9.39% 13.75% 4.70% 18.45% 16.02% Fixed 87%

Harlingen Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active 9/30/2019 6,486,567$              18.74% 15.00% 3.74% 14.57% 18.31% 15.92% Fixed 87%

Houston Firefighters' Relief & Retirement Fund Active 6/30/2020 259,235,000$          27.59% 10.50% 17.09% 20.07% 37.16% 32.34% Actuarial 87%

Laredo Firefighters Retirement System Active 9/30/2020 39,542,040$            20.90% 15.00% 5.90% 17.65% 23.55% 20.60% Fixed 87%

Colorado River Municipal Water Dist. Active 12/31/2019 3,604,131$              10.08% 0.00% 10.08% 8.57% 18.65% 16.38% Actuarial 88%

Atlanta Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active 12/31/2019 601,869$                 19.96% 13.00% 6.96% 9.64% 16.60% 14.78% Fixed 89%

Greenville Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active 12/31/2019 4,343,865$              17.64% 16.30% 1.34% 20.86% 22.20% 19.80% Fixed 89%

This report is a compilation of pension data reported by retirement systems to the PRB in their most recently published Annual Financial Report and Actuarial Valuations.

1
35



Contribution Report
July 1, 2021

(a) (b) (c) = (a) - (b) (d) (e) = (c) + (d) (f) (f) / (e) 

Plan Name
Plan 

Status (1)
Fiscal Year 

End
Covered
Payroll

Total NC
(% of Pay) 

(2), (3)

EE Cont
(% of Pay) 

(3)

ER Normal 
Cost

(% of Pay) 
(3)

Amort Pmt
(% of Pay) 

(3)

ER Rec Cont
(% of Pay) 

(3), (4)

Actual
ER Cont

(% of Pay) 
(5)

Actual ER 
Cont Type

Percent of 
Rec Cont 

Paid

Plainview Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active 12/31/2019 2,006,573$              15.23% 15.00% 0.23% 29.38% 29.61% 26.73% Fixed 90%

Amarillo Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active 12/31/2019 20,101,508$            25.60% 13.00% 12.60% 8.89% 21.49% 19.67% Fixed 92%

Capital MTA Admin Employees Active 12/31/2019 26,490,906$            8.35% 0.00% 8.35% 4.19% 12.54% 11.50% Actuarial 92%

Port Arthur Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active 12/31/2019 10,281,941$            16.10% 13.50% 2.60% 11.45% 14.05% 13.01% Other 93%

Big Spring Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active 12/31/2019 4,259,859$              17.53% 13.00% 4.53% 11.97% 16.50% 15.30% Fixed 93%

Teacher Retirement System of Texas Active 8/31/2020 48,530,876,156$     11.76% 7.70% 4.06% 5.27% 9.33% 8.66% Fixed 93%

Austin Employees' Retirement System Active 12/31/2019 686,720,461$          17.46% 8.00% 9.46% 9.91% 19.37% 18.00% Fixed 93%

Killeen Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active 9/30/2019 14,763,291$            17.02% 11.00% 6.02% 7.96% 13.98% 13.00% Fixed 93%

El Paso Police Pension Fund Active 12/31/2019 95,292,546$            21.23% 18.00% 3.23% 16.59% 19.82% 18.50% Fixed 93%

Lubbock Fire Pension Fund Active 12/31/2019 34,639,673$            21.53% 14.98% 6.55% 16.54% 23.09% 21.81% Other 94%

Paris Firefighters' Relief & Retirement Fund Active 12/31/2019 2,808,113$              9.63% 16.00% 0.00% 21.11% 14.74% 14.00% Fixed 95%

San Angelo Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active 12/31/2019 12,562,703$            21.58% 16.45% 5.13% 15.42% 20.55% 19.58% Fixed 95%

Houston Municipal Employees Pension System Active 6/30/2020 625,055,807$          11.32% 3.00% 8.32% 21.07% 29.39% 28.23% Actuarial 96%

Abilene Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active 9/30/2019 14,246,004$            16.61% 13.20% 3.41% 16.55% 19.96% 19.25% Fixed 96%

Brownwood Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active 12/31/2019 2,016,738$              14.77% 8.00% 6.77% 14.96% 21.73% 21.31% Fixed 98%

Corpus Christi Fire Fighters' Retirement System Active 12/31/2019 33,683,725$            16.11% 13.10% 3.01% 18.27% 21.28% 20.90% Fixed 98%

CPS Energy Pension Plan Active 12/31/2020 285,863,324$          13.97% 5.00% 8.97% 10.88% 19.85% 19.53% Actuarial 98%

Lufkin Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active 12/31/2019 5,331,845$              16.43% 14.20% 2.23% 21.00% 23.23% 23.00% Fixed 99%

Travis County ESD #6 FRRF Active 12/31/2019 6,965,200$              24.11% 20.00% 4.11% 15.09% 19.20% 19.20% Fixed 100%

Galveston Employees' Retirement Fund Active 12/31/2019 26,941,018$            9.81% 6.00% 3.81% 5.19% 9.00% 9.00% Fixed 100%

Denison Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active 12/31/2019 3,529,767$              14.19% 12.00% 2.19% 12.81% 15.00% 15.00% Fixed 100%

Galveston Firefighter's Relief & Retirement Fund Active 12/31/2019 8,244,583$              19.50% 18.00% 1.50% 15.50% 17.00% 17.00% Fixed 100%

Brazos River Authority Retirement Plan (6) Frozen 2/29/2020 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A Actuarial 100%

Northeast Medical Center Hospital Retirement Plan (6) Frozen 6/30/2020 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A Actuarial 100%

Denton Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active 12/31/2019 19,674,270$            21.77% 12.60% 9.17% 9.33% 18.50% 18.50% Other 100%

JPS - Tarrant County Hospital District Active 9/30/2019 276,492,971$          6.38% 1.91% 4.47% 1.78% 6.25% 6.25% Other 100%

Harris County Hospital District Pension Plan Closed 12/31/2019 163,835,000$          4.92% 0.00% 4.92% 15.60% 20.52% 20.52% Actuarial 100%

Sweeny Community Hospital Closed 12/31/2019 881,890$                 8.10% 0.00% 8.10% 5.63% 13.73% 13.74% Actuarial 100%

This report is a compilation of pension data reported by retirement systems to the PRB in their most recently published Annual Financial Report and Actuarial Valuations.

2
36



Contribution Report
July 1, 2021

(a) (b) (c) = (a) - (b) (d) (e) = (c) + (d) (f) (f) / (e) 

Plan Name
Plan 

Status (1)
Fiscal Year 

End
Covered
Payroll

Total NC
(% of Pay) 

(2), (3)

EE Cont
(% of Pay) 

(3)

ER Normal 
Cost

(% of Pay) 
(3)

Amort Pmt
(% of Pay) 

(3)

ER Rec Cont
(% of Pay) 

(3), (4)

Actual
ER Cont

(% of Pay) 
(5)

Actual ER 
Cont Type

Percent of 
Rec Cont 

Paid

Houston MTA Non-Union Pension Plan Closed 12/31/2019 40,747,394$            8.22% 0.00% 8.22% 22.77% 30.99% 31.04% Actuarial 100%

Texas Emergency Services Retirement System (6) Active 8/31/2020 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A Other 100%

Fort Worth Employees' Retirement Fund Staff Plan Active 9/30/2020 1,510,527$              21.58% 10.50% 11.08% 12.21% 23.29% 23.42% Actuarial 101%

El Paso Firemen's Pension Fund Active 12/31/2019 68,727,915$            22.17% 18.00% 4.17% 14.33% 18.50% 18.61% Fixed 101%

Houston MTA Workers Union Pension Plan Closed 12/31/2019 94,602,405$            4.12% 0.00% 4.12% 14.70% 18.82% 19.03% Actuarial 101%

Houston Police Officers' Pension System Active 6/30/2020 464,301,000$          24.01% 10.50% 13.51% 18.07% 31.58% 32.11% Actuarial 102%

Temple Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active 9/30/2019 8,566,960$              19.67% 15.00% 4.67% 10.29% 14.96% 15.31% Fixed 102%

Dallas Police & Fire Pension System-Combined Plan Active 12/31/2019 363,117,000$          16.69% 13.50% 3.19% 38.69% 41.88% 42.88% Other 102%

Corsicana Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active 12/31/2019 4,286,307$              14.97% 14.00% 0.97% 14.13% 15.10% 15.74% Fixed 104%

Texas Municipal Retirement System Active 12/31/2019 6,790,788,227$       15.06% 6.63% 8.43% 4.66% 13.09% 13.70% Actuarial 105%

Guadalupe Regional Medical Center Active 12/31/2019 27,861,128$            9.36% 4.00% 5.36% 1.11% 6.47% 6.89% Other 107%

Tyler Firefighters' Relief & Retirement Fund Active 12/31/2019 11,892,452$            21.10% 13.50% 7.60% 11.90% 19.50% 21.12% Fixed 108%

DFW Airport Board Active 12/31/2019 53,256,000$            17.74% 0.00% 17.74% 20.18% 37.92% 41.15% Actuarial 109%

Citizens Medical Center Active 2/29/2020 54,745,777$            7.78% 3.75% 4.03% -1.02% 3.01% 3.29% Other 109%

DFW Airport Board DPS Active 12/31/2019 31,820,000$            23.62% 7.00% 16.62% 14.23% 30.85% 33.94% Actuarial 110%

University Health System Pension Plan Active 12/31/2019 380,744,589$          3.43% 2.50% 0.93% 4.64% 5.57% 6.15% Actuarial 110%

Texas County & District Retirement System Active 12/31/2019 7,342,564,173$       13.30% 6.78% 6.52% 5.05% 11.57% 12.79% Actuarial 111%

Galveston Wharves Pension Plan Closed 12/31/2019 1,527,483$              10.60% 0.00% 10.60% 23.20% 33.80% 37.64% Actuarial 111%

Irving Supplemental Benefit Plan Active 12/31/2019 110,411,883$          3.34% 2.50% 0.84% 1.16% 2.00% 2.23% Other 112%

Plano Retirement Security Plan Active 12/31/2019 156,481,717$          3.27% 0.00% 3.27% -0.05% 3.22% 3.62% Actuarial 112%

The Woodlands Firefighters' Retirement System Active 12/31/2019 12,007,492$            22.11% 12.00% 10.11% 0.47% 10.58% 12.00% Fixed 113%

San Antonio Fire & Police Pension Fund Active 12/31/2019 328,796,000$          24.42% 12.32% 12.10% 9.61% 21.71% 24.64% Fixed 113%

Austin Fire Fighters Relief & Retirement Fund Active 12/31/2019 95,500,068$            28.43% 18.70% 9.73% 9.29% 19.02% 22.05% Fixed 116%

San Benito Firemen Relief & Retirement Fund Active 9/30/2019 1,338,375$              13.90% 12.00% 1.90% 8.20% 10.10% 12.00% Fixed 119%

Waxahachie Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active 9/30/2019 4,798,508$              17.92% 12.00% 5.92% 6.70% 12.62% 15.24% Other 121%

Dallas Co. Hospital Dist. Retirement Income Plan Active 12/31/2019 685,520,000$          8.16% 6.20% 1.96% 3.65% 5.61% 6.81% Actuarial 121%

Texarkana Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active 12/31/2019 4,370,067$              21.60% 13.50% 8.10% 7.44% 15.54% 19.50% Fixed 125%

Lower Colorado River Authority Retirement Plan Closed 12/31/2019 104,489,000$          5.49% 0.00% 5.49% 13.00% 18.49% 23.40% Actuarial 127%

This report is a compilation of pension data reported by retirement systems to the PRB in their most recently published Annual Financial Report and Actuarial Valuations.

3
37



Contribution Report
July 1, 2021

(a) (b) (c) = (a) - (b) (d) (e) = (c) + (d) (f) (f) / (e) 

Plan Name
Plan 

Status (1)
Fiscal Year 

End
Covered
Payroll

Total NC
(% of Pay) 

(2), (3)

EE Cont
(% of Pay) 

(3)

ER Normal 
Cost

(% of Pay) 
(3)

Amort Pmt
(% of Pay) 

(3)

ER Rec Cont
(% of Pay) 

(3), (4)

Actual
ER Cont

(% of Pay) 
(5)

Actual ER 
Cont Type

Percent of 
Rec Cont 

Paid

Weslaco Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Active 9/30/2019 4,276,933$              14.50% 12.00% 2.50% 5.79% 8.29% 12.15% Fixed 147%

City of El Paso Employees Retirement Trust Active 8/31/2020 172,242,295$          11.94% 8.95% 2.99% 6.87% 9.86% 14.69% Fixed 149%

Capital MTA Bargaining (6) Frozen 12/31/2019 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A Actuarial 152%

Guadalupe-Blanco River Authority (6) Frozen 12/31/2019 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A Actuarial 154%

El Paso Firemen & Policemen's Pension Staff Plan Active 12/31/2019 796,080$                 10.24% 5.00% 5.24% -0.39% 4.85% 7.50% Fixed 155%

DART Employees Closed 9/30/2019 12,374,000$            7.40% 0.02% 7.38% 41.21% 48.59% 80.81% Actuarial 166%

San Antonio Metropolitan Transit Retirement Plan Active 9/30/2019 63,152,166$            7.93% 3.95% 3.98% 9.97% 13.95% 23.32% Actuarial 167%

Galveston Employees' Retirement Plan for Police Active 12/31/2019 12,539,068$            14.36% 12.00% 2.36% 15.64% 18.00% 30.33% Actuarial 168%

Employees of Brownsville Navigation District Active 12/31/2019 4,342,902$              8.52% 4.00% 4.52% 5.73% 10.25% 17.96% Fixed 175%

University Park Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund Closed 12/31/2018 3,011,825$              18.13% 10.48% 7.65% 22.05% 29.70% 56.87% Fixed 191%

Port of Houston Authority Retirement Plan Closed 7/31/2020 29,924,796$            13.73% 0.00% 13.73% 3.95% 17.68% 35.51% Actuarial 201%

Corpus Christi Regional Transportation Authority Active 12/31/2019 10,668,048$            8.25% 0.00% 8.25% 3.26% 11.51% 34.60% Actuarial 301%

Northwest Texas Healthcare System Retirement Plan (6) Frozen 9/30/2019 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A Fixed 417%

Anson General Hospital Frozen 6/30/2020 216,296$                 25.92% 4.00% 21.92% -21.92% 0.00% 0.00% Actuarial N/A

Arlington Employees Deferred Income Plan Active 6/30/2020 3,270,867$              5.67% 3.00% 2.67% -2.67% 0.00% 2.35% Actuarial N/A

Notes
(1) Plan status indicates whether a plan is active (admitting new hires), closed to new hires (but still accruing benefits), or frozen (not accruing benefits).
(2) Normal Cost includes any explicit provisions for administrative expenses.

(4) Recommended Contribution needed for the system to achieve and maintain an amortization period that does not exceed 30 years, in accordance with Texas Code §802.101(a).

(6) Covered payroll is not reported for this plan.
(7) Plan calculates a recommended contribution based on a 31-year amortization period.

(3) Values may differ from that reported by the system due to differences in timing and/or rounding. For systems that do not indicate the fiscal year associated with this value (or the requisite valuation has not been provided to the 
PRB), they are based on the most recently reported valuation date on or before the beginning of the fiscal year.

(5) Actual contribution rate is determined as the employer contributions made to the plan during the fiscal year divided by the covered payroll shown. This may differ from the plan's stated contribution rate due to differences between 
actual and assumed covered payroll.

This report is a compilation of pension data reported by retirement systems to the PRB in their most recently published Annual Financial Report and Actuarial Valuations.

4
38



 

 

 

 

 

 

5c. Systems subject to the Funding Soundness Restoration Plan 

(FSRP) requirement, including compliance 

  

39



Pension Review Board 
7/1/2021 

 

 

Summary of Funding Soundness Restoration Plans (FSRPs) Submitted Since the Prior PRB Meeting 

Texas Government Code Section 802.2015(e) requires FSRPs to be developed by the public retirement system and the associated governmental entity in 
accordance with the system's governing statute; and be designed to achieve a contribution rate that will be sufficient to amortize the unfunded actuarial accrued 
liability within 40 years not later than the 10th anniversary of the date on which the final version of an FSRP is agreed to. The following table summarizes the FSRPs 
received by the PRB since the last board meeting. 

Retirement System 
FSRP Trigger 
Amortization 

Period 

Plan Changes  

Employee 
Contributions 

Employer 
Contributions 

Other 
Comments 

Orange Firemen’s Relief 
& Retirement Fund – 
Second Revised FSRP 

Infinite 
 

Old: 12.80% 
New: 13.80% 
 

Old: 15.80% 
New: 18.80% 
 

N/A N/A 

Irving Firemen's Relief 
& Retirement Fund - 
Revised FSRP 

 

Infinite 

 

N/A 

 

Old: 16.75% 
New: 20.25% 

 

• Lowered assumed rate of return from 7.5% to 
7%. 

• Lowered payroll growth assumption from 3.5% 
to 2.75%. 

• Lowered the interest rate on the DROP to 3.3% 

• Members no longer receive interest on their 
DROP account when they leave the department. 

• Final average salary raised from 3 years to 5 
years. 

• New Benefit Tier (members hired after 
1/1/2021): Multiplier is 3% for the first 21 years.  
Normal retirement is 54/20. 

 

City contributions increased 
effective 1/1/2021. 

 

40



Pension Review Board 
7/1/2021 
 

FSRPs Submitted Since the Prior PRB Meeting (cont.) 

Retirement System 
FSRP Trigger 
Amortization 

Period 

Plan Changes  

Employee 
Contributions 

Employer 
Contributions 

Other 
Comments 

Plainview Firemen’s 
Relief & Retirement 
Fund 

79.7 N/A Old: 24.68% 
New: 25.00% 

• 1.25 million in additional city contributions over 
the next 4 years. 

• Overtime pay removed from the definition of 
pensionable pay used to determine benefits, but 
still used to determine City/member 
contribuitons. 

• New benefit formula: 

o 2.5% of monthly avg salary for 20 yrs and 

2.8% for the next 5 yrs 

o Maximum base benefit formula at 25 yrs of 

64% 

o Retain current longevity benefit after 20 yrs 

($78 per month; 15 yrs max) 

Additional City contributions 
will be as follows: 
2020: $500,000 
2021: $250,000 
2022: $250,000 
2023: $250,000 

 

 

 

41



Pension Review Board 
7/1/2021 
 

Systems Immediately Subject to FSRP Formulation Requirement 

The FSRP requirement is triggered for retirement systems that have had amortization periods over 40 years for three consecutive annual actuarial 
valuations, or two consecutive actuarial valuations if the systems conduct the valuations every two or three years.  

Systems Immediately Subject to an FSRP Formulation Requirement 

Retirement System 
Am 

Period Date of AV 
Am 

Period Date of AV 
Am 

Period 

Date of 
“Trigger” 

AV 
FSRP  

Due Date 

Midland Firemen’s Relief & Retirement Fund  
– Revised FSRP1 

59.1 1/1/2014 44.7 12/31/2015 Infinite 12/31/2017 8/2019 

Longview Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 50.7 12/31/2016 40.2 12/31/2017 Infinite 12/31/2018 2/2020 

Marshall Firemen’s Relief & Retirement Fund – 
Revised FSRP1,2 

43.2 12/31/2014 56.4 12/31/2016 59.0 12/31/2018 5/2020 

Beaumont Firemen’s Relief & Retirement Fund 2 39.1 12/31/2014 104.0 12/31/2016 Infinite 12/31/2018 7/2020 

Dallas Employees’ Retirement Fund – Revised 
FSRP1 

47.0 12/31/2017 46.0 12/31/2018 65.0 12/31/2019 1/2021 

1 Texas Government Code Section 802.2015(d) requires systems to formulate a revised FSRP if the system conducts an actuarial valuation showing that the system's amortization 
period exceeds 40 years, and the previously formulated FSRP has not been adhered to.  

2 The system has made changes expected to satisfy the FSRP requirements, but a formal evaluation of the changes has not yet been provided. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

42



Pension Review Board 
7/1/2021 

 

Systems at Risk of FSRP Formulation Requirement 

These at-risk systems' most recent actuarial valuation shows an amortization period that exceeds 40 years but does not yet trigger the FSRP 
requirement. 

Systems at Risk of an FSRP - Not Yet Subject to FSRP Requirement 

Retirement System 
Am 

Period Date of AV 
Am 

Period Date of AV 
Am 

Period Date of AV 
FSRP  

Due Date 

Atlanta Firemen’s Relief & Retirement Fund 36.2 12/31/2014 28.4 12/31/2016 Infinite 12/31/2018 N/A 

Austin Police Retirement System 35.0 12/31/2017 Infinite 12/31/2018 Infinite 12/31/2019 N/A 

Brownwood Firemen’s Relief & Retirement Fund 36.1 12/31/2015 38.6 12/31/2017 94.7 12/31/2019 N/A 

Cleburne Firemen’s Relief & Retirement Fund 27.3 12/31/2014 28.8 12/31/2016 48.6 12/31/2018 N/A 

Conroe Fire Fighter’s Retirement Fund 39.0 12/31/2017 Infinite 12/31/2018 Infinite 12/31/2019 N/A 

Dallas Police & Fire Pension System (Combined Plan)1 45.0 1/1/2018 38.0 1/1/2019 55.0 1/1/2020 N/A 

Galveston Firefighter's Relief & Retirement Fund1 Infinite 12/31/2016 26.8 12/31/2017 57.6 12/31/2019 N/A 

Laredo Firefighters Retirement System 29.8 9/30/2014 28.0 9/30/2016 43.0 9/30/2018 N/A 

McAllen Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 29.0 10/1/2014 33.4 10/1/2016 Infinite 10/1/2018 N/A 

Sweetwater Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund1 58.8 12/31/2014 27.5 12/31/2016 63.3 12/31/2018 N/A 

Texas City Firemen’s Relief & Retirement Fund 31.6 12/31/2014 28.0 12/31/2016 41.1 12/31/2018 N/A 

Texarkana Firemen’s Relief and Retirement Fund 16.3 12/31/2015 15.0 12/31/2017 58.3 12/31/2019 N/A 

1 These plans previously completed an FSRP. 

  

43



Pension Review Board 
7/1/2021 

 

Progress Report on Previously Submitted FSRPs 

The following systems have previously formulated an FSRP. The table below outlines their progress towards the FSRP requirement. 

Systems Still Working Towards Meeting the 40-Year Amortization Period Requirement 

Retirement System 

FSRP Trigger Current Progress1 

Goal 
Year2 

Update 
Required 

Am 
Period Date 

Am 
Period Date 

Greenville Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund – Revised FSRP Infinite 12/31/2012 40.7 12/31/2018 2026 9/2021 

Plainview Firemen’s Relief & Retirement Fund 79.7 12/31/2019 35.03 12/31/2019 2031 2/2022 

Fort Worth Employees’ Retirement Fund 72.5 12/31/2015 43.0 12/31/2019 2026 5/2022 

Wichita Falls Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund – Revised FSRP Infinite 1/1/2015 43.3 1/1/2020 2026 6/2022 

Orange Firemen’s Relief & Retirement Fund – Second Revised 
FSRP 

58.2 1/1/2015 35.03 1/1/2020 2026 12/2022 

Irving Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund - Revised FSRP 63.4 1/1/2014 43.6 12/31/2019 2026 3/2023 

1 Based on the most recent actuarial valuation or FSRP. 
2 The year in which a system must reach an amortization period of 40 years or less.  

3 The amortization period reflects estimates of actions that occurred after the valuation date. The system will be removed from the list if a subsequent valuation reflects an 
amortization period of 40 years or less 
 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

44



Pension Review Board 
7/1/2021 

 

Previously Completed FSRP Requirement Systems 

The following table is a list of all systems that have submitted an FSRP that has lowered their amortization period below 40 years in a subsequent 
actuarial valuation.  

Systems that Have Submitted Post-FSRP Actuarial Valuations Showing Amortization Period Below 40 Years 

Retirement System 

FSRP Trigger Completed Progress1 

Goal Year2 Am Period Date 
Am 

Period Date 

Dallas Police & Fire Pension System (Combined Plan) 44.0 1/1/2017 38.03 1/1/2019 2027 

Galveston Employees' Retirement Plan for Police 55.1 1/1/2014 35.3 1/1/2018 2026 

Galveston Firefighter's Relief & Retirement Fund – Revised FSRP 50.2 1/1/2014 26.8 12/31/2017 2026 

Harlingen Firemen’s Relief & Retirement Fund – Revised FSRP 66.6 12/31/2013 38.0 9/30/2019 2026 

Lufkin Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 40.6 12/31/2014 33.1 12/31/2016 2026 

Odessa Firefighters’ Relief & Retirement Fund – Revised FSRP Infinite 1/1/2013 37.5 1/1/2020 2026 

Sweetwater Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 58.8 12/31/2014 27.5 12/31/2016 2026 

University Park Firemen’s Relief & Retirement Fund – Revised FSRP 81.3 12/31/2012 28.8 12/31/2018 2026 

1 Based on the valuation in which the system completed its FSRP requirement. 

2 The year in which a system was expected to reach an amortization period of 40 years or less. 

3 The amortization period reflects a payroll projection based upon the City of Dallas’ Hiring Plan which has yet to materialize, a concern that was noted by the system’s actuary in 
the 2019 actuarial valuation. 

45



 

 

 

 

 

5d. Intensive actuarial review of Midland Firemen's Relief & 

Retirement Fund 

  

46



Initial Plan Review Data

As of 3/31/2021

Funding Val Metrics Fiscal Year End Metrics

Amort Period Funded Ratio UAAL as % of Payroll

Assumed Rate of 

Return Payroll Growth Rate

Actual Cont as

% of ADC

Non-Invest Cash

Flow as % of FNP

DROP as 

% of FNP

Plan Name

Market Value 

of Assets Val Date Value

Distance 

From Avg 

(28.10) Value

Distance 

From Avg 

(68.38%) Value

Distance 

From Avg 

(239.91%) Value

Distance 

From Avg 

(7.18%) Value

Distance 

From Avg 

(3.16%) FYE Value

Distance 

From Avg 

(101.95%) Value

Distance 

From Avg 

(-2.39%) Value

Employees Retirement System of Texas 27,946,206,540$     8/31/2020 Infinity N/A 65.98% -2.40% 203.77% -36.14% 7.00% -0.18% 2.70% -0.46% 8/31/2020 85.65% -16.30% -4.42% -2.03% N/A

Law Enforcement & Custodial Off Sup. Ret. Fund 947,324,194$          8/31/2020 Infinity N/A 60.14% -8.24% 39.37% -200.54% 7.00% -0.18% 2.70% -0.46% 8/31/2020 39.33% -62.62% -6.20% -3.81% N/A

Austin Police Retirement System 857,839,229$          12/31/2019 Infinity N/A 58.40% -9.98% 349.30% 109.39% 7.25% 0.07% 3.00% -0.16% 12/31/2019 66.70% -35.25% -1.25% 1.14% 5.07%

Judicial Retirement System of Texas Plan Two 477,331,237$          8/31/2020 Infinity N/A 82.34% 13.96% 116.28% -123.63% 7.00% -0.18% 2.30% -0.86% 8/31/2020 86.80% -15.15% -2.12% 0.27% N/A

Beaumont Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 105,769,426$          12/31/2018 Infinity N/A 55.80% -12.58% 457.43% 217.52% 7.50% 0.32% 3.00% -0.16% 12/31/2019 48.14% -53.82% -5.64% -3.25% 34.42%

Midland Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 84,848,966$            12/31/2019 Infinity N/A 51.10% -17.28% 432.24% 192.33% 7.50% 0.32% 3.25% 0.09% 12/31/2019 69.68% -32.27% -5.33% -2.94% 0.60%

McAllen Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 52,675,409$            9/30/2018 Infinity N/A 68.16% -0.22% 196.53% -43.38% 7.50% 0.32% 3.00% -0.16% 9/30/2019 75.59% -26.37% -1.89% 0.50% N/A

Longview Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 45,779,786$            12/31/2019 Infinity N/A 39.35% -29.03% 504.54% 264.63% 7.50% 0.32% 3.00% -0.16% 12/31/2019 68.32% -33.63% -2.93% -0.54% N/A

Conroe Fire Fighters' Retirement Fund 29,561,207$            12/31/2019 Infinity N/A 58.41% -9.97% 200.13% -39.78% 7.50% 0.32% 4.00% 0.84% 12/31/2019 75.34% -26.62% 3.26% 5.65% 6.83%

Orange Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 7,961,733$              1/1/2019 Infinity N/A 46.28% -22.10% 360.64% 120.73% 7.75% 0.57% 2.50% -0.66% 12/31/2019 64.40% -37.55% -7.34% -4.95% 0.00%

Atlanta Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 3,801,042$              12/31/2018 Infinity N/A 80.03% 11.65% 184.83% -55.08% 7.40% 0.22% 3.00% -0.16% 12/31/2019 89.04% -12.91% -3.84% -1.45% N/A

Brownwood Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 4,655,263$              12/31/2019 94.7 66.6 42.75% -25.63% 297.83% 57.92% 7.00% -0.18% 3.00% -0.16% 12/31/2019 98.05% -3.90% -0.60% 1.79% N/A

Plainview Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 6,238,767$              12/31/2019 79.7 51.6 33.99% -34.39% 576.43% 336.52% 7.50% 0.32% 3.25% 0.09% 12/31/2019 90.28% -11.67% -5.38% -2.99% N/A

Dallas Employees' Retirement Fund 3,658,088,000$       12/31/2019 65.0 36.9 75.73% 7.35% 272.04% 32.13% 7.25% 0.07% 2.50% -0.66% 12/31/2019 67.42% -34.54% -5.29% -2.90% N/A

Sweetwater Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 7,760,982$              12/31/2018 63.3 35.2 63.94% -4.44% 294.74% 54.83% 8.00% 0.82% 4.00% 0.84% 12/31/2019 76.11% -25.84% -3.37% -0.98% N/A

Marshall Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 7,278,840$              12/31/2018 59.0 30.9 36.66% -31.72% 429.30% 189.39% 7.50% 0.32% 4.00% 0.84% 12/31/2019 77.50% -24.45% -5.34% -2.95% 0.00%

Texarkana Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 36,402,489$            12/31/2019 58.3 30.2 80.01% 11.63% 202.16% -37.75% 7.60% 0.42% 3.00% -0.16% 12/31/2019 125.48% 23.53% -3.93% -1.54% N/A

Galveston Firefighter's Relief & Retirement Fund 49,030,850$            12/31/2019 57.6 29.5 64.90% -3.48% 294.44% 54.53% 7.50% 0.32% 2.85% -0.31% 12/31/2019 100.00% -1.95% -2.97% -0.58% N/A

Dallas Police & Fire Pension System-Combined Plan 2,057,857,317$       1/1/2020 55.0 26.9 45.73% -22.65% 645.88% 405.97% 7.00% -0.18% 2.50% -0.66% 12/31/2019 102.40% 0.44% -5.69% -3.30% 7.55%

Cleburne Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 19,362,808$            12/31/2018 48.6 20.5 59.61% -8.77% 324.13% 84.22% 7.35% 0.17% 3.00% -0.16% 12/31/2019 86.51% -15.44% -1.69% 0.70% N/A

Irving Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 195,803,334$          12/31/2019 43.6 15.5 65.41% -2.97% 267.38% 27.47% 7.00% -0.18% 2.75% -0.41% 12/31/2019 73.33% -28.62% -14.38% -11.99% 18.87%

Wichita Falls Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 52,839,714$            1/1/2020 43.3 15.2 56.78% -11.60% 326.00% 86.09% 7.75% 0.57% 4.00% 0.84% 12/31/2019 65.39% -36.57% -6.35% -3.96% N/A

Fort Worth Employees' Retirement Fund 2,396,727,586$       12/31/2019 43.0 14.9 52.33% -16.05% 433.49% 193.58% 7.00% -0.18% 3.00% -0.16% 9/30/2020 77.89% -24.07% -2.61% -0.22% 5.50%

Laredo Firefighters Retirement System 154,813,837$          9/30/2018 43.0 14.9 59.86% -8.52% 282.55% 42.64% 7.50% 0.32% 2.75% -0.41% 9/30/2019 86.41% -15.54% 0.96% 3.35% N/A

Texas City Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 14,389,108$            12/31/2018 41.1 13.0 45.92% -22.46% 348.98% 109.07% 7.50% 0.32% 3.00% -0.16% 12/31/2019 86.49% -15.46% -4.96% -2.57% N/A

Greenville Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 12,254,104$            12/31/2018 40.7 12.6 46.61% -21.77% 368.76% 128.85% 7.75% 0.57% 4.00% 0.84% 12/31/2019 89.17% -12.78% -2.84% -0.45% N/A

Austin Employees' Retirement System 2,928,033,076$       12/31/2019 40.0 11.9 63.48% -4.90% 231.64% -8.27% 7.00% -0.18% N/A N/A 12/31/2019 92.93% -9.03% -1.44% 0.95% N/A

Killeen Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 43,947,221$            9/30/2018 39.8 11.7 69.35% 0.97% 131.39% -108.52% 7.50% 0.32% 3.00% -0.16% 9/30/2019 92.99% -8.96% 0.89% 3.28% N/A

Big Spring Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 10,902,959$            1/1/2019 38.3 10.2 53.22% -15.16% 245.07% 5.16% 7.75% 0.57% 4.50% 1.34% 12/31/2019 92.73% -9.22% -0.39% 2.00% N/A

Amarillo Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 193,539,560$          12/31/2019 38.1 10.0 82.00% 13.62% 185.22% -54.69% 7.50% 0.32% 3.00% -0.16% 12/31/2019 91.53% -10.43% -3.58% -1.19% N/A

Harlingen Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 33,712,925$            9/30/2019 38.0 9.9 64.53% -3.85% 277.57% 37.66% 7.75% 0.57% 3.50% 0.34% 9/30/2019 86.93% -15.02% -2.97% -0.59% 2.45%

San Angelo Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 71,755,778$            12/31/2019 37.6 9.5 61.97% -6.41% 339.34% 99.43% 7.80% 0.62% 3.50% 0.34% 12/31/2019 95.30% -6.65% -2.25% 0.14% N/A

Odessa Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 44,792,900$            1/1/2020 37.5 9.4 36.81% -31.57% 544.63% 304.72% 7.50% 0.32% 3.50% 0.34% 12/31/2019 69.92% -32.04% -6.81% -4.42% 4.40%

Lubbock Fire Pension Fund 186,484,535$          12/31/2018 33.0 4.9 70.80% 2.42% 241.06% 1.15% 7.75% 0.57% 3.50% 0.34% 12/31/2019 94.46% -7.50% -2.15% 0.24% N/A

Paris Firefighters' Relief & Retirement Fund 4,152,310$              12/31/2018 32.1 4.0 30.50% -37.88% 382.48% 142.57% 7.25% 0.07% 3.50% 0.34% 12/31/2019 94.98% -6.97% -10.09% -7.70% N/A

Abilene Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 55,688,061$            10/1/2019 31.4 3.3 49.07% -19.31% 393.82% 153.91% 7.50% 0.32% 3.00% -0.16% 9/30/2019 96.44% -5.51% -6.29% -3.90% N/A

Lufkin Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 15,659,035$            12/31/2018 30.7 2.6 48.81% -19.57% 349.28% 109.37% 7.50% 0.32% 3.00% -0.16% 12/31/2019 99.01% -2.94% 0.82% 3.21% 4.20%

Galveston Employees' Retirement Plan for Police 17,856,397$            1/1/2019 30.0 1.9 33.95% -34.43% 315.26% 75.35% 7.00% -0.18% 3.50% 0.34% 12/31/2019 168.50% 66.54% 3.80% 6.19% N/A

El Paso Police Pension Fund 932,430,228$          1/1/2020 29.9 1.8 76.34% 7.96% 298.45% 58.54% 7.75% 0.57% 3.00% -0.16% 12/31/2019 93.33% -8.62% -3.50% -1.11% 3.01%

Corpus Christi Fire Fighters' Retirement System 139,811,086$          12/31/2018 29.8 1.7 60.21% -8.17% 305.70% 65.79% 7.50% 0.32% 3.10% -0.06% 12/31/2019 98.22% -3.74% -2.31% 0.08% N/A

Fort Worth Employees' Retirement Fund Staff Plan 5,853,631$              12/31/2019 29.2 1.1 67.45% -0.93% 181.77% -58.14% 7.00% -0.18% N/A N/A 9/30/2020 100.56% -1.40% 4.21% 6.60% N/A

Tyler Firefighters' Relief & Retirement Fund 74,572,570$            12/31/2019 29.0 0.9 71.13% 2.75% 240.14% 0.23% 7.25% 0.07% 3.00% -0.16% 12/31/2019 108.31% 6.35% -3.10% -0.71% N/A

Corsicana Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 8,563,597$              12/31/2018 28.9 0.8 50.67% -17.71% 218.76% -21.15% 7.00% -0.18% 2.75% -0.41% 12/31/2019 104.21% 2.26% -0.35% 2.04% N/A

University Park Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 9,447,674$              12/31/2018 28.8 0.7 43.36% -25.02% 441.37% 201.46% 7.50% 0.32% N/A N/A 12/31/2018 191.49% 89.54% 3.64% 6.03% N/A

Temple Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 44,243,769$            9/30/2018 28.6 0.5 72.96% 4.58% 181.02% -58.89% 7.75% 0.57% 3.75% 0.59% 9/30/2019 102.33% 0.37% -3.32% -0.93% N/A

Houston Municipal Employees Pension System 2,881,788,000$       7/1/2020 27.1 -1.0 59.16% -9.22% 330.40% 90.49% 7.00% -0.18% 2.75% -0.41% 6/30/2020 96.04% -5.91% -3.94% -1.55% 22.77%

Teacher Retirement System of Texas 165,416,245,243$   8/31/2020 27.0 -1.1 76.79% 8.41% 101.24% -138.67% 7.25% 0.07% 3.00% -0.16% 8/31/2020 92.80% -9.16% -2.46% -0.07% 0.00%

Houston Police Officers' Pension System 5,572,476,000$       7/1/2020 27.0 -1.1 82.38% 14.00% 255.17% 15.26% 7.00% -0.18% 2.75% -0.41% 6/30/2020 101.67% -0.28% -3.07% -0.68% 35.53%

Houston Firefighters' Relief & Retirement Fund 4,102,932,000$       7/1/2020 27.0 -1.1 86.20% 17.82% 261.15% 21.24% 7.00% -0.18% 3.00% -0.16% 6/30/2020 87.03% -14.93% -5.50% -3.11% 30.19%

CPS Energy Pension Plan 1,779,033,857$       1/1/2020 27.0 -1.1 82.68% 14.30% 125.49% -114.42% 7.00% -0.18% N/A N/A 12/31/2019 133.42% 31.46% -1.49% 0.90% N/A

El Paso Firemen's Pension Fund 643,133,030$          1/1/2020 26.6 -1.5 76.45% 8.07% 281.17% 41.26% 7.75% 0.57% 3.00% -0.16% 12/31/2019 100.59% -1.37% -3.30% -0.91% 1.88%

This report is a compilation of pension data reported by retirement systems in their most recent AVs, sorted by amortization period.

1

47



Initial Plan Review Data

As of 3/31/2021

Funding Val Metrics Fiscal Year End Metrics

Amort Period Funded Ratio UAAL as % of Payroll

Assumed Rate of 

Return Payroll Growth Rate

Actual Cont as

% of ADC

Non-Invest Cash

Flow as % of FNP

DROP as 

% of FNP

Plan Name

Market Value 

of Assets Val Date Value

Distance 

From Avg 

(28.10) Value

Distance 

From Avg 

(68.38%) Value

Distance 

From Avg 

(239.91%) Value

Distance 

From Avg 

(7.18%) Value

Distance 

From Avg 

(3.16%) FYE Value

Distance 

From Avg 

(101.95%) Value

Distance 

From Avg 

(-2.39%) Value

San Benito Firemen Relief & Retirement Fund 3,927,895$              9/30/2019 26.1 -2.0 60.89% -7.49% 184.91% -55.00% 7.50% 0.32% 4.00% 0.84% 9/30/2019 118.81% 16.86% -1.99% 0.40% N/A

University Health System Pension Plan 363,779,588$          1/1/2018 26.0 -2.1 70.74% 2.36% 39.14% -200.77% 7.00% -0.18% 3.50% 0.34% 12/31/2019 110.48% 8.53% 2.25% 4.64% N/A

Irving Supplemental Benefit Plan 70,213,418$            1/1/2020 26.0 -2.1 73.45% 5.07% 21.43% -218.48% 6.75% -0.43% 2.75% -0.41% 12/31/2019 111.50% 9.55% 0.24% 2.63% N/A

Dallas Co. Hospital Dist. Retirement Income Plan 1,173,720,580$       1/1/2020 24.0 -4.1 64.82% -3.56% 89.21% -150.70% 6.00% -1.18% 4.00% 0.84% 12/31/2019 121.43% 19.48% 2.82% 5.21% N/A

Port Arthur Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 49,890,603$            12/31/2017 23.7 -4.4 74.22% 5.84% 182.37% -57.54% 7.50% 0.32% 3.50% 0.34% 12/31/2019 92.60% -9.35% -3.14% -0.75% N/A

San Antonio Metropolitan Transit Retirement Plan 298,393,798$          10/1/2018 23.0 -5.1 64.05% -4.33% 139.47% -100.44% 7.25% 0.07% 3.25% 0.09% 9/30/2019 167.19% 65.24% -2.44% -0.05% N/A

Houston MTA Workers Union Pension Plan 294,629,862$          1/1/2020 23.0 -5.1 64.18% -4.20% 175.09% -64.82% 6.25% -0.93% N/A N/A 12/31/2019 101.13% -0.82% -1.73% 0.66% N/A

Houston MTA Non-Union Pension Plan 186,645,413$          1/1/2020 23.0 -5.1 60.49% -7.89% 303.71% 63.80% 6.25% -0.93% N/A N/A 12/31/2019 100.16% -1.80% -1.88% 0.51% N/A

Nacogdoches County Hospital District 45,978,650$            7/1/2019 22.0 -6.1 96.83% 28.45% 0.00% -239.91% 7.25% 0.07% N/A N/A 6/30/2016 131.32% 29.37% -4.66% -2.27% N/A

Galveston Wharves Pension Plan 12,411,631$            1/1/2019 22.0 -6.1 76.06% 7.68% 255.74% 15.83% 7.25% 0.07% N/A N/A 12/31/2019 111.37% 9.42% -5.11% -2.72% N/A

Austin Fire Fighters Relief & Retirement Fund 1,029,892,806$       12/31/2019 21.9 -6.2 86.80% 18.42% 159.33% -80.58% 7.50% 0.32% 2.00% -1.16% 12/31/2019 115.93% 13.98% -2.26% 0.13% 11.20%

Lower Colorado River Authority Retirement Plan 428,877,867$          1/1/2020 20.0 -8.1 67.69% -0.69% 202.35% -37.56% 7.00% -0.18% N/A N/A 12/31/2019 126.53% 24.58% -5.03% -2.64% N/A

Dallas Police & Fire Pension System-Supplemental 17,307,433$            1/1/2020 20.0 -8.1 48.30% -20.08% 3091.36% 2851.45% 7.00% -0.18% 2.50% -0.66% 12/31/2019 86.16% -15.80% -7.25% -4.86% 0.79%

Texas Emergency Services Retirement System 125,229,661$          8/31/2020 19.0 -9.1 83.33% 14.95% 0.00% -239.91% 7.50% 0.32% N/A N/A 8/31/2020 100.50% -1.46% -2.02% 0.37% N/A

Brownsville Navigation District 4,890,148$              1/1/2019 19.0 -9.1 57.56% -10.82% 89.19% -150.72% 6.15% -1.03% 4.50% 1.34% 12/31/2019 175.19% 73.23% 4.84% 7.22% N/A

Waxahachie Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 17,428,039$            10/1/2018 18.9 -9.2 73.08% 4.70% 131.82% -108.09% 7.00% -0.18% 4.00% 0.84% 9/30/2019 120.79% 18.84% -0.48% 1.91% N/A

Denton Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 103,815,795$          12/31/2019 18.3 -9.8 80.79% 12.41% 115.79% -124.12% 6.75% -0.43% 3.00% -0.16% 12/31/2019 100.00% -1.95% 1.60% 3.99% N/A

Sweeny Community Hospital 3,490,459$              1/1/2020 18.0 -10.1 88.84% 20.46% 65.55% -174.36% 7.00% -0.18% N/A N/A 12/31/2019 100.04% -1.92% -5.96% -3.57% N/A

Texas Municipal Retirement System 31,813,811,275$     12/31/2019 17.2 -10.9 88.00% 19.62% 61.15% -178.76% 6.75% -0.43% 2.75% -0.41% 12/31/2019 104.65% 2.69% -0.61% 1.78% N/A

Galveston Employees' Retirement Fund 57,497,904$            12/31/2019 16.5 -11.6 77.51% 9.13% 60.63% -179.28% 7.25% 0.07% 2.75% -0.41% 12/31/2019 100.00% -1.95% -1.55% 0.84% N/A

City of El Paso Employees Retirement Trust 877,989,396$          9/1/2020 16.0 -12.1 79.96% 11.58% 129.60% -110.31% 7.25% 0.07% 2.50% -0.66% 8/31/2020 148.95% 47.00% -3.95% -1.56% N/A

Harris County Hospital District Pension Plan 737,879,367$          1/1/2020 15.8 -12.3 73.00% 4.62% 167.34% -72.57% 6.75% -0.43% N/A N/A 12/31/2019 100.01% -1.95% -2.27% 0.12% N/A

DFW Airport Board 549,954,511$          1/1/2020 15.0 -13.1 85.83% 17.45% 173.42% -66.49% 7.25% 0.07% N/A N/A 12/31/2019 108.52% 6.56% -1.10% 1.29% N/A

DFW Airport Board DPS 215,337,151$          1/1/2020 15.0 -13.1 81.24% 12.86% 146.11% -93.80% 7.25% 0.07% 3.75% 0.59% 12/31/2019 110.03% 8.08% 1.46% 3.85% N/A

Plano Retirement Security Plan 167,755,102$          12/31/2019 15.0 -13.1 95.42% 27.04% 4.87% -235.04% 6.75% -0.43% 2.75% -0.41% 12/31/2019 112.42% 10.47% -0.34% 2.05% N/A

Weslaco Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 11,577,179$            9/30/2018 14.1 -14.0 71.99% 3.61% 101.90% -138.01% 7.25% 0.07% 3.25% 0.09% 9/30/2019 146.61% 44.66% 0.68% 3.07% N/A

Corpus Christi Regional Transportation Authority 42,170,049$            1/1/2020 14.0 -14.1 92.14% 23.76% 31.97% -207.94% 7.30% 0.12% N/A N/A 12/31/2018 119.63% 17.68% -1.46% 0.93% N/A

San Antonio Fire & Police Pension Fund 3,408,690,035$       1/1/2020 13.7 -14.4 87.64% 19.26% 141.90% -98.01% 7.25% 0.07% 3.00% -0.16% 12/31/2019 113.50% 11.54% -2.17% 0.22% N/A

DART Employees 185,583,667$          10/1/2019 12.3 -15.8 80.50% 12.12% 366.26% 126.35% 6.75% -0.43% N/A N/A 9/30/2019 166.32% 64.37% -3.29% -0.90% N/A

Denison Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 20,225,141$            12/31/2019 12.2 -15.9 75.29% 6.91% 169.53% -70.38% 7.50% 0.32% 2.75% -0.41% 12/31/2019 100.00% -1.95% -5.33% -2.94% N/A

Capital MTA Bargaining 35,284,632$            1/1/2020 12.0 -16.1 52.06% -16.32% 0.00% -239.91% 6.75% -0.43% 3.00% -0.16% 12/31/2019 151.88% 49.92% -3.50% -1.11% N/A

Brazos River Authority Retirement Plan 20,463,482$            3/1/2020 12.0 -16.1 63.51% -4.87% 0.00% -239.91% 6.50% -0.68% N/A N/A 2/29/2020 100.00% -1.95% -3.92% -1.53% N/A

Capital MTA Admin Employees 37,818,736$            1/1/2020 11.7 -16.4 77.77% 9.39% 41.53% -198.38% 6.75% -0.43% 3.50% 0.34% 12/31/2019 91.70% -10.25% 4.79% 7.18% N/A

Texas County & District Retirement System 33,833,510,529$     12/31/2019 11.3 -16.8 89.42% 21.04% 52.85% -187.06% 8.00% 0.82% 3.25% 0.09% 12/31/2019 110.53% 8.58% -0.85% 1.54% N/A

Port of Houston Authority Retirement Plan 191,251,270$          8/1/2020 11.0 -17.1 93.36% 24.98% 45.80% -194.11% 6.25% -0.93% N/A N/A 7/31/2020 200.82% 98.87% -0.43% 1.96% N/A

Guadalupe-Blanco River Authority 28,731,703$            1/1/2019 10.0 -18.1 86.94% 18.56% 0.00% -239.91% 6.75% -0.43% N/A N/A 12/31/2019 153.55% 51.60% -2.57% -0.18% N/A

Northeast Medical Center Hospital Retirement Plan 9,405,456$              7/1/2019 10.0 -18.1 82.73% 14.35% 0.00% -239.91% 7.25% 0.07% N/A N/A 6/30/2019 100.00% -1.95% -8.01% -5.62% N/A

Colorado River Municipal Water Dist. 10,699,777$            1/1/2020 7.1 -21.0 88.33% 19.95% 44.47% -195.44% 6.00% -1.18% N/A N/A 12/31/2019 87.83% -14.13% -1.88% 0.51% N/A

Refugio County Memorial Hospital 1,861,692$              11/1/2019 5.2 -22.9 96.46% 28.08% 0.00% -239.91% 6.00% -1.18% N/A N/A 10/31/2019 0.00% -101.95% -8.67% -6.28% N/A

JPS - Tarrant County Hospital District 292,578,664$          10/1/2018 5.0 -23.1 93.60% 25.22% 6.89% -233.02% 7.00% -0.18% N/A N/A 9/30/2019 100.00% -1.95% 2.94% 5.32% N/A

Guadalupe Regional Medical Center 83,831,107$            1/1/2020 5.0 -23.1 99.10% 30.72% 2.40% -237.51% 7.00% -0.18% N/A N/A 12/31/2019 106.51% 4.56% 0.21% 2.60% N/A

Travis County ESD #6 FRRF 28,086,052$            12/31/2019 4.6 -23.5 88.61% 20.23% 48.47% -191.44% 7.00% -0.18% 3.00% -0.16% 12/31/2019 100.00% -1.95% 8.84% 11.23% N/A

Northwest Texas Healthcare System Retirement Plan 23,912,245$            10/1/2019 1.0 -27.1 96.20% 27.82% 0.00% -239.91% 7.50% 0.32% N/A N/A 9/30/2019 417.33% 315.38% -1.96% 0.43% N/A

Citizens Medical Center 114,266,627$          3/1/2020 0.0 -28.1 106.13% 37.75% -11.60% -251.51% 6.75% -0.43% 3.50% 0.34% 2/29/2020 109.23% 7.28% -0.19% 2.20% N/A

The Woodlands Firefighters' Retirement System 42,315,851$            1/1/2020 0.0 -28.1 107.00% 38.62% -22.22% -262.13% 7.00% -0.18% N/A N/A 12/31/2019 113.42% 11.47% 5.80% 8.19% 0.00%

Arlington Employees Deferred Income Plan 2,999,905$              6/30/2019 0.0 -28.1 107.17% 38.79% -5.33% -245.24% 5.00% -2.18% 3.00% -0.16% 6/30/2020 0.00% -101.95% -0.13% 2.26% N/A

Anson General Hospital 1,806,754$              7/1/2020 0.0 -28.1 110.93% 42.55% -172.71% -412.62% 6.00% -1.18% N/A N/A 6/30/2020 0.00% -101.95% -14.03% -11.64% N/A

El Paso Firemen & Policemen's Pension Staff Plan 685,883$                 1/1/2020 0.0 -28.1 113.67% 45.29% -9.54% -249.45% 7.75% 0.57% 3.00% -0.16% 12/31/2019 154.64% 52.68% 14.17% 16.56% 0.00%

Texas Average 28.10 68.38% 239.91% 7.18% 3.16% 101.95% -2.39%

Texas Standard Deviation 16.94 16.59% 333.46% 0.44% 0.51% 30.19% 3.47%

National Average 72.33% 289.86% 7.15% 3.63% 108.14%

This report is a compilation of pension data reported by retirement systems in their most recent AVs, sorted by amortization period.

2

48



Initial Plan Review Data Key:

Amortization Periods # of plans Discount Rates # of plans

Infinite 11 >= 8.00% 2

>= 40 years, but not infinite 16 > 7.50%, < 8.00% 12

> 30 years, < 40 years 10 7.50% 23

> 25 years, <= 30 years 17 > 7.00%, < 7.50% 18

>= 10 years, <= 25 years 34 7.00% 24

> 0 years, < 10 years 6 > 6.50%, < 7.00% 10

0 years 5 <= 6.50% 10

Funded Ratios Payroll Growth Rate

< 40% 6 Top Quartile (>= 3.25%) 27

>= 40%, < 60% 22

>= 60%, < 80% 37 Actual Cont as % of ADC

>= 80% 34 Bottom Quartile (<= 86.80%) 23

UAAL as % of Payroll Non-Invest Cash Flow as % of FNP

Top Quartile (>= 303.71%) 25 Bottom Quartile (<= -4.42%) 5

Plan Name DROP as % of FNP

Prior Review Completed > 15% 5

Review Currently In-Process

49



Initial Plan Review Data

As of 3/31/2021

Funding Val Metrics Fiscal Year End Metrics

Plan Name

Market Value 

of Assets Val Date

Amort 

Period

Funded 

Ratio

UAAL as % 

of Payroll

Assumed 

Rate of 

Return

Payroll 

Growth Rate FYE

Actual Cont 

as

% of ADC

Non-Invest 

Cash

Flow as % of 

FNP

DROP as 

% of FNP

Employees Retirement System of Texas 27,946,206,540$    8/31/2020 Infinity 65.98% 203.77% 7.00% 2.70% 8/31/2020 85.65% -4.42% N/A

Law Enforcement & Custodial Off Sup. Ret. Fund 947,324,194$         8/31/2020 Infinity 60.14% 39.37% 7.00% 2.70% 8/31/2020 39.33% -6.20% N/A

Austin Police Retirement System 857,839,229$         12/31/2019 Infinity 58.40% 349.30% 7.25% 3.00% 12/31/2019 66.70% -1.25% 5.07%

Judicial Retirement System of Texas Plan Two 477,331,237$         8/31/2020 Infinity 82.34% 116.28% 7.00% 2.30% 8/31/2020 86.80% -2.12% N/A

Beaumont Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 105,769,426$         12/31/2018 Infinity 55.80% 457.43% 7.50% 3.00% 12/31/2019 48.14% -5.64% 34.42%

Midland Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 84,848,966$           12/31/2019 Infinity 51.10% 432.24% 7.50% 3.25% 12/31/2019 69.68% -5.33% 0.60%

McAllen Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 52,675,409$           9/30/2018 Infinity 68.16% 196.53% 7.50% 3.00% 9/30/2019 75.59% -1.89% N/A

Longview Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 45,779,786$           12/31/2019 Infinity 39.35% 504.54% 7.50% 3.00% 12/31/2019 68.32% -2.93% N/A

Conroe Fire Fighters' Retirement Fund 29,561,207$           12/31/2019 Infinity 58.41% 200.13% 7.50% 4.00% 12/31/2019 75.34% 3.26% 6.83%

Orange Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 7,961,733$             1/1/2019 Infinity 46.28% 360.64% 7.75% 2.50% 12/31/2019 64.40% -7.34% 0.00%

Atlanta Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 3,801,042$             12/31/2018 Infinity 80.03% 184.83% 7.40% 3.00% 12/31/2019 89.04% -3.84% N/A

Brownwood Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 4,655,263$             12/31/2019 94.7 42.75% 297.83% 7.00% 3.00% 12/31/2019 98.05% -0.60% N/A

Plainview Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 6,238,767$             12/31/2019 79.7 33.99% 576.43% 7.50% 3.25% 12/31/2019 90.28% -5.38% N/A

Dallas Employees' Retirement Fund 3,658,088,000$      12/31/2019 65.0 75.73% 272.04% 7.25% 2.50% 12/31/2019 67.42% -5.29% N/A

Sweetwater Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 7,760,982$             12/31/2018 63.3 63.94% 294.74% 8.00% 4.00% 12/31/2019 76.11% -3.37% N/A

Marshall Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 7,278,840$             12/31/2018 59.0 36.66% 429.30% 7.50% 4.00% 12/31/2019 77.50% -5.34% 0.00%

Texarkana Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 36,402,489$           12/31/2019 58.3 80.01% 202.16% 7.60% 3.00% 12/31/2019 125.48% -3.93% N/A

Galveston Firefighter's Relief & Retirement Fund 49,030,850$           12/31/2019 57.6 64.90% 294.44% 7.50% 2.85% 12/31/2019 100.00% -2.97% N/A

Dallas Police & Fire Pension System-Combined Plan 2,057,857,317$      1/1/2020 55.0 45.73% 645.88% 7.00% 2.50% 12/31/2019 102.40% -5.69% 7.55%

Cleburne Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 19,362,808$           12/31/2018 48.6 59.61% 324.13% 7.35% 3.00% 12/31/2019 86.51% -1.69% N/A

Irving Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 195,803,334$         12/31/2019 43.6 65.41% 267.38% 7.00% 2.75% 12/31/2019 73.33% -14.38% 18.87%

Wichita Falls Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 52,839,714$           1/1/2020 43.3 56.78% 326.00% 7.75% 4.00% 12/31/2019 65.39% -6.35% N/A

Fort Worth Employees' Retirement Fund 2,396,727,586$      12/31/2019 43.0 52.33% 433.49% 7.00% 3.00% 9/30/2020 77.89% -2.61% 5.50%

Laredo Firefighters Retirement System 154,813,837$         9/30/2018 43.0 59.86% 282.55% 7.50% 2.75% 9/30/2019 86.41% 0.96% N/A

Texas City Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 14,389,108$           12/31/2018 41.1 45.92% 348.98% 7.50% 3.00% 12/31/2019 86.49% -4.96% N/A

Greenville Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 12,254,104$           12/31/2018 40.7 46.61% 368.76% 7.75% 4.00% 12/31/2019 89.17% -2.84% N/A

Austin Employees' Retirement System 2,928,033,076$      12/31/2019 40.0 63.48% 231.64% 7.00% N/A 12/31/2019 92.93% -1.44% N/A

Killeen Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 43,947,221$           9/30/2018 39.8 69.35% 131.39% 7.50% 3.00% 9/30/2019 92.99% 0.89% N/A

Big Spring Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 10,902,959$           1/1/2019 38.3 53.22% 245.07% 7.75% 4.50% 12/31/2019 92.73% -0.39% N/A

Amarillo Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 193,539,560$         12/31/2019 38.1 82.00% 185.22% 7.50% 3.00% 12/31/2019 91.53% -3.58% N/A

Harlingen Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 33,712,925$           9/30/2019 38.0 64.53% 277.57% 7.75% 3.50% 9/30/2019 86.93% -2.97% 2.45%

San Angelo Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 71,755,778$           12/31/2019 37.6 61.97% 339.34% 7.80% 3.50% 12/31/2019 95.30% -2.25% N/A

Odessa Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 44,792,900$           1/1/2020 37.5 36.81% 544.63% 7.50% 3.50% 12/31/2019 69.92% -6.81% 4.40%

Lubbock Fire Pension Fund 186,484,535$         12/31/2018 33.0 70.80% 241.06% 7.75% 3.50% 12/31/2019 94.46% -2.15% N/A

Paris Firefighters' Relief & Retirement Fund 4,152,310$             12/31/2018 32.1 30.50% 382.48% 7.25% 3.50% 12/31/2019 94.98% -10.09% N/A

Abilene Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 55,688,061$           10/1/2019 31.4 49.07% 393.82% 7.50% 3.00% 9/30/2019 96.44% -6.29% N/A

Lufkin Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund 15,659,035$           12/31/2018 30.7 48.81% 349.28% 7.50% 3.00% 12/31/2019 99.01% 0.82% 4.20%

Galveston Employees' Retirement Plan for Police 17,856,397$           1/1/2019 30.0 33.95% 315.26% 7.00% 3.50% 12/31/2019 168.50% 3.80% N/A

El Paso Police Pension Fund 932,430,228$         1/1/2020 29.9 76.34% 298.45% 7.75% 3.00% 12/31/2019 93.33% -3.50% 3.01%

Corpus Christi Fire Fighters' Retirement System 139,811,086$         12/31/2018 29.8 60.21% 305.70% 7.50% 3.10% 12/31/2019 98.22% -2.31% N/A

Fort Worth Employees' Retirement Fund Staff Plan 5,853,631$             12/31/2019 29.2 67.45% 181.77% 7.00% N/A 9/30/2020 100.56% 4.21% N/A

This report is a compilation of pension data reported by retirement systems in their most recent AVs, sorted by amortization period.

1

50



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

51



1

Kenny Herbold

From: James King
Sent: Wednesday, April 28, 2021 4:45 PM
To: 'bmcgary@midlandtexas.gov'
Cc: Kenny Herbold; Bryan Burnham; Michelle Downie Kranes; 'sheracrow@midlandfrrf.com'
Subject: PRB Actuarial Review Follow-Up Email

Dear Chairman McGary: 

Thank you for speaking with Anumeha Kumar yesterday. This email serves as a follow-up to that conversation. As 
discussed, the Pension Review Board (PRB) is mandated by state statute to conduct intensive studies of potential or 
existing problems that threaten the actuarial soundness of or inhibit an equitable distribution of benefits in one or more 
public retirement systems. Based on an initial risk assessment and at the request of the PRB Actuary, the Midland 
Firemen’s Relief & Retirement Fund has been selected for actuarial review. The review will examine the actuarial and 
financial condition of the fund, raise red flags and analyze those risks, and draw conclusions/make recommendations. 
The tentative time frame is for staff to conduct its review and provide the report to the Board at its September 16, 2021  

meeting.  

As part of the review, the PRB would like to provide multiple opportunities for feedback from both the retirement plan 
and the city. We invite you to provide any input that you believe might be helpful as we conduct the review. This could 
include insights into the fund’s current actuarial condition, relevant background information, and strategies, in addition 
to the Funding Soundness Restoration Plan and funding policy, being considered to address existing funding shortfalls 
and/or mitigate future problems, etc. Information sent may or may not be included in the published report but will be 
taken into consideration.  

Upon completion of the report, staff will provide you with a preliminary draft of the report and invite your formal 
response to the analysis and conclusions presented. Your response will be attached to the final draft report presented to 
the Board for their input and recommendations at its September meeting. The Board kindly requests a representative 
from the plan and city attend the meeting to answer any questions they may have. 

Please let us know if you have any questions or concerns about the actuarial review process. 

 
Sincerely, 
 
James King 
 
 
James King | Actuarial Analyst and TLFFRA Program Specialist | Texas Pension Review Board  
www.prb.texas.gov | James.King@prb.texas.gov | P.O. Box 13498 | Austin, TX  78711-3498 | P 512-463-8814 | F 512-463-1882 
 

52

Kenny.Herbold
Rectangle

Kenny.Herbold
Rectangle



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

53



1

Kenny Herbold

From: James King
Sent: Wednesday, April 28, 2021 4:47 PM
To: mwilliams@midlandtexas.gov
Cc: Kenny Herbold; Michelle Downie Kranes; Bryan Burnham; mmason@midlandtexas.gov
Subject: PRB Actuarial Review Follow-Up Email

Dear Mr. Williams: 

Thank you for speaking with Anumeha Kumar today. This email serves as a follow-up to that conversation. As discussed, 
the Pension Review Board (PRB) is mandated by state statute to conduct intensive studies of potential or existing 
problems that threaten the actuarial soundness of or inhibit an equitable distribution of benefits in one or more public 
retirement systems. Based on an initial risk assessment and at the request of the PRB Actuary, the Midland Firemen’s 
Relief & Retirement Fund has been selected for actuarial review. The review will examine the actuarial and financial 
condition of the fund, raise red flags and analyze those risks, and draw conclusions/make recommendations. The 
tentative time frame is for staff to conduct its review and provide the report to the Board at its September 16, 2021  

meeting.  

As part of the review, the PRB would like to provide multiple opportunities for feedback from both the retirement plan 
and the city. We invite you to provide any input that you believe might be helpful as we conduct the review. This could 
include insights into the fund’s current actuarial condition, relevant background information, and strategies, in addition 
to the Funding Soundness Restoration Plan and funding policy, being considered to address existing funding shortfalls 
and/or mitigate future problems, etc. Information sent may or may not be included in the published report but will be 
taken into consideration.  

Upon completion of the report, staff will provide you with a preliminary draft of the report and invite your formal 
response to the analysis and conclusions presented. Your response will be attached to the final draft report presented to 
the Board for their input and recommendations at its September meeting. The Board kindly requests a representative 
from the plan and city attend the meeting to answer any questions they may have. 

Please let us know if you have any questions or concerns about the actuarial review process. 

 
Sincerely, 
 
James King 
 
 
James King | Actuarial Analyst and TLFFRA Program Specialist | Texas Pension Review Board  
www.prb.texas.gov | James.King@prb.texas.gov | P.O. Box 13498 | Austin, TX  78711-3498 | P 512-463-8814 | F 512-463-1882 
 

54

Kenny.Herbold
Rectangle

Kenny.Herbold
Rectangle



 

 

 

 

 

6. Investment Committee 

  

55



 

 

 

 

 

6a. Investment Practices and Performance Evaluations received as 

required by Government Code Section 802.109, including 

compliance 

  

56



1

Kenny Herbold

Subject: Midland Fire Investment Practices and Performance Evaluation

Chairman McGary, 
 
In 2020, the PRB’s Investment Committee and full board expressed concerns regarding limited analysis included in 
certain Investment Practices and Performance Evaluations (IPPE) and how well those analyses met the intent of the 
statute. For your reference, a link to the recording and the accompanying packet of the July 28, 2020 Investment 
Committee meeting can be found on our meeting page here. Relevant discussion occurs beginning at approximately 
37:45 and the more substantive comments from the committee members begins at 49:15.  
 
As a result, the committee directed staff to reach out to those systems regarding their IPPEs and encourage changes be 
made before it was published on our website (Link). Accordingly, we are writing to highlight the relevant concerns 
regarding Midland Fire’s IPPE.  
 
The Board has indicated they would like to see the following in all evaluations: 

Recommendations for improvement. If no improvement is needed, the IPPE should provide an explanation why existing 
practices are appropriate, adequate and/or effective, which will also be required in subsequent evaluations per HB 3898. 

References to specific industry standards. The evaluator should explain what guideline was used for determining “the 
appropriateness, adequacy, and effectiveness of the retirement system’s investment practices and performance,” per 
Texas Government Code §802.109. 

Detailed explanations outlining the system’s policies and procedures. The IPPE offers an opportunity to present a 
complete and accessible picture of a fund’s investment operations for stakeholders interested in learning more that 
could not otherwise be obtained without extensive research and close following of a board’s actions. 

 
For your reference, below are several examples of evaluations that may be helpful: 

Odessa Fire (IPPE Link) 
 The Findings and Recommendations section (pg. 3-5) provides a concise overview of the findings, 

recommendations, or justification for why none are needed.  
 The Investment Asset Allocation summary (pg. 4) explains that the plan is in line with best practices and notes 

the industry standards. The section also had a minor recommendation that provides details to justify their 
conclusion of best practice. 

 Section 2(C) explains the method and frequency of how real estate is valued. (pg. 13) 

Fort Worth ERF (IPPE Link) 
 The Executive Summary (pg. 7-8) lays out key observations from the review.  
 The Governance section (pg. 28) provides a good example of not having any recommendations but justifying 

that conclusion with supporting practices or policies. 
 The evaluation uses various plan studies such as the asset/liability study to help explain plan cash flow needs 

and decisions. (pg. 18-21) 

ERS (IPPE Link) 
 Provides a thorough review of the investment policy statement (IPS) and how it compares to industry 

standards, referencing standards such as GFOA and CFA Institute. (pg. 6)  
 Evaluation used funding contribution data to help identify key issues and explain problems. (pg. 18-21) 
 Provides investment fee data for private investments, commissions, and investment managers. It also reviews 

the reasonableness of the fees and the policies for how they are reviewed. (Section 3. Pg. 21-27)  
 

57



2

In addition to the general recommendations outlined above, the PRB has performed a quick, informal review of the 
evaluation included in the attached document.  

Please note that the PRB is only providing suggestions for improvement of the evaluation, cannot require any changes, 
and does not provide any judgement on its compliance with statute.  

Regards, 
Kenny 
  
Kenneth J. Herbold, ASA, EA, CFA | Staff Actuary | Texas Pension Review Board  
www.prb.texas.gov | Kenny.Herbold@prb.texas.gov | P.O. Box 13498 | Austin, TX  78711-3498 | P 512-463-1736 | F 512-463-1882 
 

bcc: 
James Martin 
Alan Meyers  
Patrick Payton  
Van Pearcy  
David Stacy  
Christy Weakland  
 
 

58



1 
 

Review of MFRRF IPPE and Investment Practices 

Summary 

The evaluation consists of responses to the questions in the PRB’s informal Guidance for Investment 
Practices and Performance Evaluation. However, many of the responses are single word answers, 
include limited analysis, and/or do not address the intended subject matter. For example, for the 
question “Is an attorney reviewing any investment fee arrangements for alternative investments?” the 
response provided is “Sometimes. It depends.” with no further discussion of the subject included 
elsewhere in the IPPE. 

The following sections outline several questions and/or concerns regarding both current policies and 
procedures as well as the evaluation itself. Some of the listed items might be considered innocuous 
when viewed individually but are more concerning when considered as whole. 

Investment Policy Statement 

The IPPE provides an affirmative response to several questions regarding the content of the IPS but in 
general does not provide recommendations for improvement or reference to outside documents to 
explain how the IPS meets best practices or guidelines outlined in TLFFRA statute. The PRB notes: 

1) TLFFRA statute Sections 27 and 28 direct boards to “adopt formal investment policies that 
emphasize safety and diversity as well as liquidity for benefit payments,” and “give special 
consideration to the preferred investment practices of the Government Financial Officers 
Association [GFOA].” 

2) The IPS is a one-page document that does not include many items that are considered best 
practice by the CFA Institute or the GFOA.  

3) The IPPE indicates the “roles and responsibilities of those involved in governance, investing, 
consulting, monitoring and custody” are clearly outlined in the IPS. While the IPS refers to 
TLFFRA statute which directs boards to “adopt formal investment policies.” 

4) The IPPE indicates the IPS contains measurable investment manager performance goals by asset 
class. This information is not included the IPS. The IPS states, “Investment managers, once 
chosen, will be retained as long as the Board determines that the investment philosophy utilized 
and returns realized are appropriate for the long-term needs of the MFRRF.” 

5) The IPS does not identify the investment objective and time horizon which are specifically 
identified in many industry standards for best practice. 

6) There are no formal or specific policies in place to review the overall effectiveness of the 
investment program. The IPPE indicates the Fund evaluates its overall portfolio performance 
based on whether it is “meeting actuarial assumptions.”  

Asset Allocation 

1) Per Texas Government Code §802.109(a)(2)(A), the evaluation is required to include “a detailed 
review of the retirement system's investment asset allocation, including: the process for 
determining target allocations.” The IPPE states there is a formal written policy, however the 
IPS/IPPE do not include the process.  

2) Per Texas Government Code §802.109(a)(2)(C), the evaluation should assess “the 
appropriateness of selection and valuation methodologies of alternative and illiquid assets.” The 
IPPE does not discuss the valuation methodology of alternative or illiquid assets, nor does it 
discuss how the Fund’s policies compare to industry standards. Reponses to relevant questions 

59



2 
 

discuss how returns are calculated, not how the investments are selected or the assets 
themselves are valued. 

3) The capital market assumptions provided in the evaluation need clarification regarding how the 
expectations were calculated. They appear to differ rather drastically from what is provided in 
the plan’s annual financial audit and from other industry expert surveys. One specific example 
would be the expected 7.31% return on fixed income included in the IPPE vs. the MFRRF 
actuary’s 3-4% expected return. 

4) According to the 12/31/2019 audit, the Fund holds approximately 20-30% of its total portfolio in 
illiquid assets (generally assets valued at Level III and potential redemption periods of 30 days or 
longer) but there is very little discussion in the IPPE about the appropriateness of these assets or 
how the risk it presents to the long-term solvency of the Fund is evaluated, if at all. 

5) In addition to a large allocation to illiquid assets, the liquid portion appears to be heavily 
allocated to higher risk investments, such has high-yield fixed income, international fixed 
income, including sovereign debt and emerging markets. However, the IPPE provides no 
discussion on the investment tilt to higher risk. 

Fees and Commissions 

1) The evaluation notes that the investment fees are “in-line with industry averages,” however no 
data is provided to show how the system ranks compared to peers or industry averages and no 
explanation is provided for how this conclusion is drawn.  

Manager Selection and Monitoring 

1) Per Texas Government Code §802.109(a)(5), the evaluations should provide “a review of the 
retirement system's investment manager selection and monitoring process.” The IPPE provides 
limited descriptions regarding how the managers are selected but does not “evaluate the 
appropriateness, adequacy, and effectiveness” of this approach, per statute. 

2) The Fund invests a large percentage in direct real estate and other illiquid investments but 
appears to have very few, if any, formal policies on how to select, manage, or evaluate these 
complicated assets.  

Other General Notes 

1) The IPPE does not have a publication date which makes it difficult for the public stakeholders to 
understand the context of the analysis or period reviewed.  

2) The evaluation references an asset/liability study performed in 2019, but the PRB was informed 
no formal study was conducted, so it is unclear how it could be considered part of the 
evaluation. 

3) The evaluation provided a list (Tab 3) that discloses investment positions of the Fund. More 
explanation is needed on the following to aid in the usefulness of the document: 

a. It is unclear if the expected return is intended to be an annualized return or a total 
return since inception.  

b. The asset class expected return is the same as the investment return when normally 
there would be some return variance.  

c. The sum of individual asset values exceeds both the total reported at the bottom of the 
list as well as the value reported in the audit by a significant margin. 

d. Certain individual asset values exceed the value reported in the audit by a significant 
margin. 

60



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

61



 Texas Pension Review Board 
July 1, 2021 

The following is an excerpt of the Midland Firemen's Relief & Retirement 

Fund Investment Practices and Performance Evaluation received by the 

Pension Review Board. A copy of the complete evaluation can be found 

on the PRB website here. 

62

https://www.prb.texas.gov/txpen/wp-content/uploads/2021/06/Midland-Firemens-Relief-Retirement-Fund-Tabs-1-17.pdf


rrf,nt

III,lI

tVI IDLAND FIRETVI EN'S

RELIEF AND

RETIREIVENT FUND

SB 322 REPORT

63



*a
SOLUIIONS FOR A RAPIDLY CHANGINC WORLD

Midland Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund

SB 322 Review and Analysis

Parenteau Analytics

4957 Grinstein Drive, Fort Worth, TX, United States of Amedca
Telephone: 817.379.5199 www,parenteauassociates.com claude@par€nteauassociates.com

64



M
SOLUf'ONS FOR A RAP'DLY CHANCING WORLD

Outline

2.) Responses to Texas Pension Review Board Questions

5.) Asset Allocation versus other TLFFRA Funds

4957 Gdnstein Drive, Fort Worth, TX, United States ofAmedca
Telephone: 817.379.5199 www.parenteauassociates.com craude@parenteauassociates.com

Parenteau Analytics

1.) Indenendent Advisor:

A.) State of Texas Securities Resistration

B.) U.S. Securities & Exchange Commission Registration

C.) Municipal Standards Rulemakins Board Details

D.) Current Professional Errors & Omissions Insurance

E.) Bioeraphv

3.) StatisticaliNumerical Spreadsheet

4.) Investment Policies and Guidelines

6.) Samnle monthlv dvnamic GAPE nroiected risldreward anarvsis

65



dd
SOLUfIONS FOR A RAPIDLY CHANGING WOflLD

4957 Grinstein Drive, Fort Worth, TX, United States of America
Telephone: 817.379,5199 wrvrv.parcnteauassociates.com claude@parenteauassociates.com

Parenteau Analytics

Individual Investment Manager Sample Analysis:

7.) SeaCrest Diversified Income

8.) Westwood Laree Cap Equity

9.) Westwood Master Limited Partnershins

10.) Westwood SMID Cap Value Equities

I l.) SeaCrest Global Fixed-Income

12.) Lazard International Equitv

13.) NBW Master Limited Partnerships

14.) Loomis Hvbrid Fixed-Income

66



SOLU|IOIIIS FOR A RAPIDLY CHANG,NG WOfrLD

20.) Silverado Interests

Parenteau Analytics

15.) Westwood Short-Duration Hieh Yield Fixed-Income

16.) Westwood Hieh Yield Fixed-Income

17.) Davis Investment Ventures Fund II

18.) GreenSorine Onportunities V and V-B

19.) Glendower Capital Secondarv Opportunities Fund IV

21.) CDK Beach House Jacksonville Beach. Florida

22.) CDK Multifamilv I

23.) Moriah

4957 crinstein Drive, Fort Worth, TX, United States ofAmedca
Telephone: 817.379'5199 wylw.parenteauassociates.com craude@parenteauassociates,com

67



M
SOLUfIOIIS FOR A RAPIOLY CHANGING WORLD

25.) EurekaHedse Sam nle Monthlv Renort

26.) Callan Institute 2019 Investme nt Manasement Fee Studv

4957 Gdnstein Ddve, Fort Worfi, TX, United States of America
Telephone: 817,379.5199 www.parenteauassociates.com claude@parenteauassociates.com

Parenteau Analytics

24.) John Crider TLFFRA Survev

68



 

 

TAB 2 

 

 

69



Midland Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund

SB 322 Independent Review Submission

Investment Practices and Performance Evaluations

Texas Pension Review Board

In accordance with the Texas Senate Bill 322, and, in accordance with Guidance for Investment
Practices and Performance Evaluations, this report is intended to fullill the requirements for an
independent third-party evaluation and opinion on the following:

l,) Identify and review existing investment policies, procedures, and practices. This should include
any formally established policies (e,g, Investment Policy Statement), as well as any informal
procedures and practices used to carry out the investment activities ofthe system. It is not
necessary to review past policies, procedures, and practices that are no longer applicable unless
they are deemed helpful to understand current policy or practice.

2.) Compare the existing policies and procedures to industry best practices.

3.) Generally, assess whether the board, internal strff, and external consultants are adhering to
the established policies.

4.) Identify the strengths and weaknecaes ofthe current policies, procedures, and practices and
make recommendations for improvement.

5.) Include a detailed description ofthe criteria considered and methodologr used to perform
the evaluation, including an explanation ofany melrics used and associated calculations.

7

Summary:

70



Indeoendent Consultant:

Parcntesu Analltics is a Fort Worth, Texas based registered investment advisor which manrges no
money. Parenteau Analytics solely does independent, unbiased performance and rttribution
reporting on separately managed accounts, mutual funds, ETF's, hedge funds, and private equity
placements. Parenteau Analytics is not alfiliated with any bank, brokerage, or linancial services
company in any way. Researth sources employed by Parenteau Analytics are also independent and
unalfiliated sources. For Separately Managed Accounts, Parenteau Analytics uses Informais/PSN,
For Mutual funds and ETF's, Parenteau Analltics uses Morningstar. For hedge funds, Parenteau
Analytics uses Eurekshedge. For Private Equity, Parenteau Analltics uses Preqin. For Asset
Allocation, and projected asset class returns, Parenteau Analltics uses Research Affiliates. Further
information on any ofthese sources is available upon request. Sample reports on managers and
products are included in subsequent sections ofthis report. Claude R Parenteau is President and
sole owner ofParenteau Analytics. Claude Parenteau has over 35 years ofexperience evaluating
and r€viewing and advising institutional investment programs such as pension funds, endowments,
and insurance companies. Parenteau Analytics does not manage any ofthe assek ofthe Midland
Firemen's Reliefand Retirement Fund, or any other client. Parenteau Analltics solely charges a
Ilat fec to the Midland Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund for quarterly performance updates on
manager and product performance. Parenteau Analltics may be tasked with exploring ideas for the
Midland Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund, but, Parenteau Analytics has no power of attorney
or ability to make any decisions for the fund.

Full Disclosure: In addition to tbe flat fee charged by Parenteau Analytics for quarterly
performance reporting, Perenteau Analytics is charging an additional $5fi) to the Midtand
Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund for this PRB report.

2

71



Comoonents of Evaluation:

1.) Does the system have a written investment policy ststement (IPSX

Yes

2.) Are the roles and responsibilities ofthose involved in governance, investing, consulting,
monitoring and custody clearty outlined?

3.) Is the policy carefully designed to me€t the real needs and objectives ofthe retirement plan? Is it
Integrated with any exicting or funding or berelit policies (i.e. does the policy tuke into account
the curr€nt funded status ofthe plan, the specific liquidity needs associated with the diflerence
between expccted short-term inllows and outllows, the underlyitrg nature ofthe liabilities
being supported [e.g. pay-based vs. flat benefit, automatic COLAs, DROP, etc.])

Yes.

4.) Is the policy written so clearly and explicitly that anyone could manage a portfolio and conform
to the desired intentions?

Yes

5.) Does the policy follow industry best pnctices? Ifnot, what are the differences?

6.) Does the policy contain measurable outcomes for managers? Does the IPS outline over what
time periods performance is to be considered?

Yes, but this varies based upon asset class,

3

Yes

The policy follows industry best practices.

7.) Is there evidence that the system is following it's IPS? Is there evidence thst the system is not
following it's IPS?

There is evidence thrt the system is following its IpS.

72



8.) What practices are being followed thrt are not itr, or ar€ counter to, written investment policies
and procedur.es?

There are no practices being followed that are not in or counter to written investment policies
and procedures.

9.) Are stated objectives being met?

Asset allocation targets arr being met; however, historical returtrs are falling short of
actuarial goals

10.) Will the retirement fond be able to sustain a commitment to the policies under stress test
scenarios, including those based on the capital markets that have actually been experienced
over the past ten, twenty, or thirty years?

Actually, the past ten, twenty, and thirty years have been more conducive to investment
return goals than what forward projected returns are likely to be (please se€ expected
ret[rns section).

I l.) Will the investment managers be able to maintain fidelity to the policy under the same
scenarios?

Some investment managers in some asset classes should be able to maintain fidelity to the
policy under the same scenarios. Other investment manageB may need to be re.weighted,
and/or replaced altogether to rellect changes in the capitll markets.

12.) How often is the policy reviewed and/or updated? When was the most r.ecent substantial
change to the policy and why was this change made?

The most recent substantial change to the policy was made on April 30fr, 2020, and this
change was in reflection of presenation ofcapital during market str€ss due to the
COVID-I9 shock to the capital markets.

4

73



l.) Does the system have a form&l snd/or written policy for determining and evaluating its asset
allocation? k the system following this policy?

Yes. The system has a formal and/or written policy for determining and evaluating its asset
allocation, The system does follow this policy.

Not applicable. Reference question #1 above.

3.) How is the system's overall risk tolerance expressed and measured? What methodologr is
used to determine and evaluate the strategic asset allocation?

Risk is first defined as in terms ofadequate liquidity to pay current and pending obligations.
Second, risk is defined as falling short ofplan participants' needs for retirement income. Risk
is not defined short-term volrtility, The amount ofleverage in the portfolio, and the amount
ofilliquidity in the portfolio are major areas offocus in risk management. More recently, there
is more focus on hedging downside risk for periods ofcapital market distress.

4.) How often is the strategic asset allocation reviewed?

Strategic asset allocation is typically reviewed annually, although major events in the markets
do trigger *interim" reviews in strst€ic asset allocation.

5.) Do the system's inyestment consultants and rctuaries communicste regarding their respective
future expectations?

6.) How does the currpnt assumed rate of return used for discounting plan liabilities factor into
the discussion and decision making associated with setting the asset allocation? Is the actuarial
expected return on r.ssets a function ofthe asset allocation or has the asset allocation been chosen
to meet the dcair€d actuarial exp€cted return on assets?

The asset allocation is determined by risk management, and, by the stated actuarial goal ofthe

5

svstem

Investment Asset Allocation:

2.) Ifno formal policy exists, what is occurring in practice?

Yes

74



lnvestment Asset Allocation (continued):

7,) Is the asset allocation approach used by the system based on a specific methodologr? Is
this methodolory prudent, recognized as best practice, and consistently applied?

The asset allocation appmach used by the system is much like the "endowment model" for
investing, and has been consistently aligned with this generally accepted 6best practice"
for long-term liabilities.

8.) Does the system implement a tactical asset allocation? Ifso, what methodology is used to
determine the tactic:l asset allocation? Who is rcsponsible for making decisions regarding
the tactical isset allocation?

Tactical asset allocation is not employed by the system. It is not believed that short-term market
timing adds value to returns,

9.) How does asset allocation compare to peer systems?

Based upon the 2008-2018 report of TLFFRA pension funds, the Midland Firemen's' Relief &
Retirement Fund is roughly in Iine with equities, perhaps slightly underweight fixed income,
slightly underweight alternatives, and overweight in real estate, as compared to other TLFFRA
funds (2 charts following these text respomes).

6

75



Exnected Risk nd expected rate of return. categorized bv asset

l.) What are the strategic ond tacticsl ellocations?

Cash: le/o-l0o/o

Fired-Income: l5%o-23"/o

U.S. Equities: l3Y"-25Y"

InternationalEquities: l5y"-23y"

Reel Estete: 2to/o-30%o

Alternatives: So/o-l5o/o

2,) What is the expected risk and expccted return ofeech {ss€t class?

Expected Return:

Cash: 0

Fixed-Income: 7.31y"

U.S. Equitics: 12.83V"

International Equities: 9.92"/"

Reel Estste: ll.Oo/o

Alte rnatives: 2O.O9y"

Expected Risk:

6.ZYo

l4.2Yo

16.7"h

12.SYo

28.0%

0

3.) How is this risk measured, and how are the expected rat€s of return determined? what is the
time horizon?

For the sake ofthe table above, risk is measured by annualized historical volatility ofthe asset
class. However, for purposes of this fund, (which manages to an (endowment" 

st5rte), ..risk is
determined to b€ meeting actuarial assumptions and achieving sufficient investment results
such that all retirees and beneliciaries are able to be paid.

7

class:

76



4.) What mix of assets is necessary to achieve the plan's investment return atrd risk objectives?

The mix of asset classes necessary to achieve the plan's investment return and risk objectives
changes constantly. Employment of rebalancing, based upon market price changes and
relative values between rsset class6. There is no *static" allocation which can acbieve this.

5.) What consideration is given to actiye vs. passive management?

Consideration is always considered for passive management, especially in highly liquid
asset classes where *information discovery" is widely available to virtually all investors
equally. However, thus far, active management has contributed added value to the fund,

6.) Is the approach used by the system to formulate asset allocation strategies sound, consistent
with best practiees, and does it result in a well-diversilied portfolio?

Yes. The approach used by the system to formulate asset allocations strategi$ is sound,
cotrsistent with best pmctices, and it does result in a well-diversified portfolio.

7.) How often are the stmtegic and tactical allocations reviewed?

Strategic and tactical allocations are typically reviewed annually, although these are reviewed
at &ny point in time where there are significant market dislocations or changes.

8

77



Aooropriateness ofselection and vsluation methodolosies ofalternative and illiouid assets:

l.) How are alternative and illiquid assets selected, measured, and evaluated?

Ideas for selection of illiquid, and altertrative assets come from multiple sources, including
screening and research, educational conferences, and unsolicited introductions. Selection is
made after research and analysis has been done, and discussed very thoroughly by the
itrvestment committee, and then approved by the full Board.

2.) Are the system's alternative investments appropriate given it's size and level ofinvestment
expertise? Does the IPS outline the specific typcs of alternative and illiquid investments

allowed, as well as the maximum allocation allowable?

Yes. The system's alternative investment allocation is approprirte given the size ofthe fund
and the level ofexpertise on the investment committee and on the full Board. Yes, the IPS
does outline the specilic types ofalternative and illiquid investments allowed, as well as
the maximum allocation allowable.

3.) What valuation methodologies are used to measure alternative and illiquid assets? What
alternative valuation methodologies exist and what makes the chosen metbod most appropriate?

For private equity, the strndard methods ofvaluation are the *Internal Rate ofReturn ("RR"),
and the multiple of times of return ofinvestment, and these are typically calculated from
annual appraisals while a pnogram is active, and then with a final calculation al the
termination of the prograD.

For hedge funds which are easier to value on a quarterly basis, the same metrics used for
long-only managers are employed and applied,

9

78



Future Cash FIow and Liquiditv Needs:

l.) Wbat are the plan's anticipated future cash flow and liquidity needs? Is this based upon an
open or closed group projection?

Currently the plan hss $650,(m0 ofinflows, and $700,000 - $E00,000 ofoutllows. This is based
upon an open group projection.

2.) When was the last time an asset-liability study was performed?

2019

3.) How are system-specific issues incorpomted in the asset allocation process. What is the current
funded status ofthe plan and what impact does it have? What changes should be considered when
the plan is severely underfunded, approaching full funding, or in a surplus? How does the
difference between expected short-term inflows (contributions, dividends, interest, etc.) and
outflows (distributions and expenses) impact the allocation? How does the underlying nature ofthe
liabilities impact the allocation (e,g. pay-based vs. flat $ benefit, automatic COLAs, DROP, etc,)?

4.) What types of stress teting sre incorporated in the process?

Actuarial

10

79



ADDroDriateness ofinvestment fees and commissions Daid bv the retirement system:

1.) Do the system's policies describe the management and monitoring ofdirect and indirect
compensation paid to investment managers and other service providert? What direct and
indirect investment fees and commbsions are paid by the system?

Management fe€s are paid directly to the investment managers. Commission costs ane indirectly
paid by the system through manager transactions.

2.) Who is responsible for monitoring and reporting fees to the board? Is this responsibility clearly
defined in the system's investment policies?

The Administrator for the system is responsible for monitoring and reporting fees to the board.
This responsibility is not clearly delined in the system's investment policies.

3.) Are all forms ofmanager compensrtion included in reported fees?

Yes

4.) How do these fees compare to peer group and industry averages for similar services? How are
the fee benchmarks determined?

Fees are deemed to be in-line with industry averages. Sources ofcomparison are independent
Research datobases which report this information annually.

5.) Does the system have appropriete policies and procedures in place to account for and
control investment expenses and other asset mrnagement fees?

Yes.

6.) What other fees are incurred by the system that are not directly relsted to the manxgement of
the portfolio?

7.) How often are the fees reviewed for reasonableness?

On an on-going basis.

11

Legal, auditing, custody, actuarial

80



E.) Is an attorney reviewing any investment fee arrangements for alternative investments?

Sometimes. It depends.

Transparencv:

1.) Does the system have a written governance policy statement outlitring the governance structure?
Is it a stand-alone document or part of the IPS.

Yes, It is part of the IPS.

2.) Are all investment related policy statements easily accessible by the plan members and the
public (e.g. posted to the system website)?

Yes.

3.) How often are board meetings? What rre the primary topica of discussion? How much time,
detail, and discussion are devoted to investment issues?

Board meetings are typically held monthly. Discussion topics range from administrative issues,
reports by board members from educational conferences they hsye attended, to investments.
Time devoted to investments is dependent upon the topic as a priority.

4.) Are meeting agendas and minutes available to the public? How detailed are the minutes?

Yes. Meeting minutes are available to the public, snd all board meetings are open to any
member of the public who would like to attend, Minutes are very detailed.

72

81



lnvestment Knowledee,/Expertise:

l.) What are the backgrounds of the board memberr? Are there any investment-related
educational requirements for board members?

Board is composed of3 Firemen, otre attorney, one Mayor's appointce, snd a civilian member
with substantial investment experience. There is atr on-going educational requinement for board
members to engage in continuing education, typically at educrtional conferences.

2.) What training is provided and/or required of new board members? How frequently are board
members provided investment related education?

There is no requirement for investment educrtion for new board members. Board memberr
are afforded the opportunity to learn at multiple educational conferences each year.

3.) What are the minimum ethics, governance, and inv$tment education requirements? Have
all Board members satislied these minimum requirements?

There are no minimum ethics, governance, or investment education requirements.

4.) Does the system apply adequate policies and/or procedures to help ensure that all board
members understand Iiduciary responsibilities?

All external investment managers.

6.) Does the board receive impartial investment advice and guidance?

Yes

7.) How frequently is an Rtr.P issued for investment consultant services?

13

The R-EP process is trot used. services arr vetted and negotiated on an ..as needed. basis.

Yes,

5.) What is the investment management model (i.e. internal vs. external investment managers)?

82



Accountability:

l.) How is leadership ofthe board and committee(s), if any, selected.

Bv vote/election.

2.) Who is responsible for making decisions regarding investments, including manager selection
and asset allocation? How is authority allocated between full-board, a portion ofthe board
(e.g. an investment committee), and internal stslI members and/or outside consultants? Does
the IPS clearly outline this information? Is the board consistent in its use ofthis
structure/delegation of authority?

Any investmsnt changes must be discussed by the full board, and only the full board can
make decisions. A portion of the board acts as an (investment committee" which brings
idess to the board for discussion and consideration. Therc are no internal stalf involved in
this praress, Consullant simply monitors performance for the board, and brings ideas to
the investment committee for discussion.

3.) Does the system have policies in place to review the effectiveness of its investment program,
including the roles of the board, internal, staff and outside consultants?

No formal, specific policies are in place to review the effectiveness ofthe investment program,

4,) Is the current governance structure striking a good balance between risk and elliciency?

Yes,

5.) What controls are in place to ensure policies are being followed?

6.) How is overall portfolio performance monitorcd by the board?

Delegated to consultant, and reference to John Crider TLFFRA annual repora.

7.) How often are the investment governance processes rcviewed for continued appropriateness?

Annually.

1,4

83



Investment Manager Selection and Monitoring Process:

The full board is responsible for selection of investment managers, ryith recommendations from
the investment committee.

2.) How are managers identified as potential candidates?

Conferences, and independent research on PSN/Informa, Preqin,
Morningstar, and EurekaHedge/tlFR.

3.) What are the selection criteria for including potential candidates?

Needs of the fund, performance, diversification, asymmetrical upside/downside crpture,
length oftrack record, researched and approved by at least one major research organization.

4.) What are the selection criteria when deciding between multiple candidates?

Is process sensible, cotrsistent, rnd prudent, and is process replicable prospectively. Ideally
seeking firms and products poorly correlated to current portfolio holdings and exp(xure.

5.) How does the selection process address ethical considerrtions and potential conflicts of interest
for both investment managers rnd board members?

6.) Who is responsible for developing and/or reviewing investment consultant and/or manager
contracts?

The full board is responsible for developing and/or reviewing investment consultant and/or
manager contracts.

7,) What is the process for monitoring individual and overall fund performance?

Consultant provides quarterly performance on individual managers and products. Overall fund
performance is benchmarked against John Crider's TLITRA Returns survey. Additionally,
system is looking at additional capabilities for calculeting these returns.

8.) Who is responsible for measuring pre rformance?

Consultant

1.) Who is responsible for selecting investment mansgers?

15

84



9.) What benchmarks are used to eyalu&te performance?

Typically, benchmark is that which is specilic to the asset cla$ that the individual marager
and/or product (i.e. hedge fund, private equity, mutual fund, etc.) is investing in. However,
in certain circumsttnces, more than one benchmark, a "hybrid" benchmark, or a customized
benchmark may be employed. Moreover, the prevailing *benchmark' for the full portfolio is
simply achieving actuarial assumptions,

10.) What types ofperformance reports are provided to the board? Are they provided in a
digestible format accessible to trustees with difrering levels ofinvestment knowledge /expertise?

Sample reports included with this report. All performance reports are presented in a digestible
format accessible to trustees with differing levels of investment knowledge/expertise.
Additionally, consultsnt does explain in great detail the information contained in the
reports, and the effect upon the fund.

11,) How often is net-of-fee and gross-of-fee investment manager performance reviewed? Is
net-of-fee and gross offee manager performance compared against benchmarks or peers?

For the sake ofconsistency, investment manager fe€s are reported net-of-fee only. Performance
is compared against benchmarks and peer universes,

12.) What is the prctess for determining when an investment manager should be replaced?

Extended underperformance through a full market cycle, departure of key investment
penonnel, other concerns about prospective contribution to overall fund performance.

16

13.) How is individual performance evaluation itrtegrated with other investment decisions such
as asset allocation and investment risk decisiors?

Individual performance evaluation includes changes in weightings to specific asset classes,
managem, and products, as well as correlation (ideally poor correlation) to the overall
portfolio, seeking to diversi$ overall risk to the portfolio.

85



 

 

TAB 3 

 

 

86



(

(

Midland Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund SB 322 Analysis
Expected

or realized

return
sitlce

inceplion:

ReturnAs of December 31st, 2019

VNlue o December Asset

Class

Mrster Limited Partnerships

Master Limited Partnerships

U.S. Large Cap Value

U.S. SMID Cap Value Equities

lnternational Equities

lnternationsl All-Crp Equities

Blended Current lncome

lnternrtionsl Fired-lncome

Blended Current Income

Real Estote

Real Estate

Real Estate

Rerl Estste

Real Estste

M{nagerneot
Fees:

of
Asset

Expected

Volatility of Inception
Date:Manaeer:

NBW Capital:

Westwood MLP:

Westwood Large Cap Value:

Westwood SMID Cap Value:

l,!zard International Equity
Small-Mid Cap:

Morgan Stanley Global lnternational:

llst. 2020

$3,521,573

$2,.192,496

Class: Asset Class

t5.7t.1.50i" 8.50% 8.s0% lul-11

0.9s.h 2.930 2.930h t5.7

74.2

18.9

18.9

76.7

6.2

6.2

6.2

t2.5

12.5

72.5

12.5

Jul-11

S2,93s,387

52,749,28a

0.63% Jul-11

o.63% 70.35% lun-06

s7,40486s

$s,692,633

S729,93E

5r0,272,L02

$8,s29,192

s98,767

$r,190,922

s937,931

527s,442

$76,soo

0.90% 5.57% s.57% Sep-99

uec-1v

Nov-11

Dec-09

Dec-11

AUB'16

Aug-16

lul-12

May-14

lan-13

1.00% 9.92% 9.92%

SeeCrest Hybrid Fixed-Income: 1.O0% 4.34% 4.34%

SeaCrest lntcrnational Sovereign Debt:

Loomis Sryles Hybrid Fixed-Income:

C Street l0l - Midland, Texas:

G Street 105 - Midland, Tex{s:

Drvis Fund:

0.40% 2.97% 2.91%

oslN 1.11% 1.31-%

0 7.15% 1.15%

0 1.15% 7.15%

S2o7,s8o l0.to%

Moriah Hospitality:

Moriah SRC Pref.l

See Attached -4.O8% -0.45%

See Atttached 21_% 142.59% 72.5

72.83%

,a.rr96

l

4

87



(

(

Midland Firemen's Relief & Retirement Fund SB 322 Analysis

As of December 3lst, 2019
Expcctcd Expected

Returns

for
Asset

Class:

I
or realized

r€turn
since

Expected

Volatility for
Asset (llass

Value on December Asset

Clsss

Manageme nt lnception
Date:Manager:

Silverado Autumn L€aves Westover Hills:

CDK Berch House Jacksonville:

.l lst. 2020 Fees: inceotion:

$500,000

$3t4,1J4

Re{l Estate

Rcal Estate

Rcal llstate

Rcil llstate

ReAl lrstatc

Private Oquity

I'rivate Equity

Private Equity

Itigh Yield l'ixed-lncomc

High Yield I'ixed-lncome

(hsh

$15.138 0 0 1-2.5 Jul-16

Sep-13

iun-17

Jan-14

Oct-05

Apr-18

Nov-18

.lan-11

May-05

Oct-11

NA

Mar-06

Sep-17

s75.000 -33.39 -33.39 12.5

IM - Multi-Family:

CDK Multi-Fimily

Harvest Interest ll (Strategic Partner Fund):

$2,030,071 184,116 74.6 74.6 12.5

$2,557,24t $s30.000 3.33 3.33 12.5

$6,6r 5,2.t9

$2,010,057

$470.213 6.57 6.sl 12.5

Clendower:

Creenspring Vi

Greenspring V-B;

Westwood High-Yield Short-Term:

Westwwood High Yield Fixed-lncome!

Cash and Cash Equivalents:

Frost Bank (Custodi{n):

Parenteau Analytics (ConsultanUAdvisor):

$l14,875 39.00% 39.00% 28

$1,837,507 See Attached 20.09% 20.09./" 28

$,361,895 See Attached 22.48% 22.44% 28

$9,982,421 0.63. 7.72% 8.9

$3,019,657 0.400 3.35% 8.9

$r 7,48s,148 0 0 0 0

0 $17,20J NA NA NA

NA0 $55,000 1.15% NA

'l otal Portfolio Vfllue: $8s

7:t2%

3.35%

88



 

 

 

 

 

6b. Preliminary investment expense reporting as required by 

Texas Government Code Section 802.103(a)(3) and Chapter 609, 

Texas Administrative Code 

  

89



Investment Committee

Preliminary investment expense reporting as required by Texas Government Code 
Section 802.103(a)(3) and Texas Administrative Code, Chapter 609

Texas Pension Review Board

90



Preliminary investment expense reporting

▪ New reporting requirements outlined under Texas Government Code 
§802.103 and Texas Administrative Code §609.111.

▪ Additional information required to be included in a plan’s Annual 
Financial Report (AFR):

▪ A listing of the names of investment managers engaged by the 
retirement system.

▪ A listing, by asset class, of all direct and indirect commissions and 
fees paid by the retirement system during the fiscal year. 

▪ A listing, by service provided, of investment services.

▪ The additional information must be in the AFR and not provided in a 
separate document that accompanies the AFR.

▪ The information is not required to be audited. 

2
91



Initial reporting schedule

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year End Date AFR Due # of Plans
Expected Total %

for Fiscal Year

2020

9/30/2020 4/29/2021 15 15

10/31/2020 5/30/2021 1 16

12/31/2020 7/30/2021 68 84%

2021

2/28/2021 9/27/2021 2 2

6/30/2021 1/27/2022 7 9

7/31/2021 2/27/2022 1 10

8/31/2021 3/30/2022 6 16

9/30/2021 4/29/2022 15 31

10/31/2021 5/30/2022 1 32

12/31/2021 7/30/2022 68 100%

3
92



Preliminary investment expense graphs

• Staff developing preliminary graphs 
to display new reporting information

• Preliminary graphs are examples of 
potential ways to display one year of 
data

• Time series will be developed once 
sufficient data is received

• Going forward:

• Finalize graphs for Data Center

• Develop standardized reporting for 
board meetings

• Develop benchmarking and other 
reports with new information

4
93



Preliminary individual plan graphs

• Three new graphs:
1. Investment Fees By Asset Class

2. Investment Fees By Fee Type

3. Investment Fees By Service Provided

• Placed between the existing Expenses 
as Percentage of Assets and the Average 
Net Investment Returns graphs

5

New graphs location

94



Preliminary investment expense individual plan graphs

Features of New Graphs

1. Tab feature that allows multiple 
graphs to be shown by selecting 
the appropriate tab. Select a tab 
to display the data by asset class 
or by fee type.

2. Interactive information box 
based on what users are 
hovering over providing 
additional details.

All direct and indirect commissions and fees paid by the retirement system for the sale, purchase or
management of system assets reported by both asset class and fee type. (Definitions of asset classes
and fee types can be found here.) Graph displays the system's investment expenses as a percentage
of assets. High investment fees alone are not an indicator of an issue; investment fees should be
considered in the context of actual net returns and a determination of whether higher fee
investments provide higher risk-adjusted returns. Due to differences in methodology, direct
investment expenses may not tie directly to investment expenses as reported under GASB.

6

1. Investment Fees By Asset Class

95



Preliminary investment expense individual plan graphs

All direct and indirect commissions and fees paid by the retirement system for the sale, purchase or
management of system assets reported by both asset class and fee type. (Definitions of asset classes
and fee types can be found here.) Graph displays the system's investment expenses as a percentage of
assets. High investment fees alone are not an indicator of an issue; investment fees should be
considered in the context of actual net returns and a determination of whether higher fee investments
provide higher risk-adjusted returns. Due to differences in methodology, direct investment expenses
may not tie directly to investment expenses as reported under GASB.

7

2. Investment Fees By Fee Type

96



Preliminary investment expense individual plan graphs

Expenses incurred for investment services by service type displayed as a percentage of assets for the selected 
fiscal year. (Definition of investment services can be found here.)

8

3.   Investment Fees By Service Provided

97



Preliminary investment expense comparative graph

• One new graph: Investment Fees 
Stacked by Fee Type

• Placed between the existing 
Expense as Percentage of Assets 
and 10-year Net Investment 
Returns vs Discount Rate graphs

New graph location

9
98



Preliminary investment expense comparative graph

All direct and indirect commissions and fees paid by the retirement system for the sale, purchase or
management of system assets reported by both asset class and fee type. (Definitions of asset classes
and fee types can be found here.) Graph displays the system's investment expenses as a percentage of
assets broken out by fee type. High investment fees alone are not an indicator of an issue; investment
fees should be considered in the context of actual net returns and a determination of whether higher
fee investments provide higher risk-adjusted returns. Due to non-standardized investment expense
reporting, this data may not depict exact investment-related expenses paid.

10

Investment Fees Stacked by Fee Type

99



Preliminary investment expense 
aggregate graph

• One new graph: Investment 
Expenses vs. Investment Return 

• Placed at the bottom of the 
aggregate data page

11
100



Preliminary investment expense aggregate graph

Expenses and investment returns provide a snapshot into the management of a system’s investments. Generally, higher net
returns with lower fees should provide the largest long-term benefit to a system. A three-year average investment return
provides a longer-term view of returns and mitigates any return volatility/variation resulting from systems’ different fiscal year
end dates. Expenses and investment returns are reported in financial audits and other required reports submitted by systems
to the PRB. While many factors influence investment expenses and returns, system asset size and investment allocation are
two significant factors. These graphs only examine the relationship between expenses and investment returns; they are not a
replacement for a thorough examination of a system and its unique situation. Due to non-standardized investment expense
reporting, this data may not depict exact investment-related expenses paid.

12
101



Preliminary investment expense aggregate graph

Features of New Graph 

1. Legend includes interactivity to toggle the 

visibility of systems by asset size. 

2. Interactive graph can include toolbars with 

additional functionality options such as 

zoom, window panning, reset graph and 

others.

3. Histogram graph shows the distribution of 

investment returns by displaying the 

number of systems with returns that is in 

each bar.

4. Interactive information box based on what 

system users are hovering over. On this 

graph more data has been included to 

provide additional context for each system. 

5. Histogram graph shows the distribution of 

expenses as a percentage of assets by 

displaying the number of systems with 

expenses that is in each bar.

13
102



Preliminary investment expense graph improvements

Feature Improvement/Suggestions Status

General graph formatting such as size/colors In process

Improve naming of titles, axis, fees etc. In process

Add additional labels/callouts to graphs In process

Aggregate graph feature to have dots scale based 
on asset size of system

In process

Auto-adjusting graph axis Currently reviewing options

Hide selected bars with stacked bar graphs and 
have graphs restack

Currently reviewing options

Aggregate graph feature for adding an option to 
select specific fiscal years data to view

Currently reviewing options

14
103



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

104



1

Kenny Herbold

From: PRB <PRB@prb.state.tx.us>
Sent: Tuesday, May 18, 2021 2:35 PM
Subject: Reminder on new investment expense disclosures required in all future Annual Financial 

Reports
Attachments: SB-322-Template-for-Reporting-Investment-Expenses-in-AFR.xlsx

Good Afternoon,  
 

This is a reminder that new information is required to be included in annual financial reports (AFRs) per Texas Government 
Code §802.103 and Texas Administrative Code, Chapter 609 (Public Retirement System Investment Expense Reporting).  

- The following outlines the additional information required to be included in the plan’s Annual Financial Report 
(AFR): 

o A listing of the names of investment managers engaged by the retirement system. 
o A listing, by asset class, of all direct and indirect commissions and fees paid by the retirement system 

during the fiscal year.  
o A listing, by service provided, of investment services.  

 
To meet the new compliance requirements, the additional information must be in the AFR and not provided in a 
separate document that accompanies the AFR. The information is not required to be audited and can be provided in a 
supplemental schedule within the report.   

Please see the reporting schedule below for the first reporting period.  

Initial Reporting Schedule: 

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year End Date AFR Due to the PRB 
2020 December 31, 2020 July 30, 2021 
2021 June 30, 2021 January 27, 2022 
2021 August 31, 2021 March 30, 2022 

The enhanced investment expense disclosures will continue to be required in all future AFRs.   

The template in the excel spreadsheet attached to this email provides an example of how to report this information and 
a clearer representation of the requested information. Additional information regarding how to report the new required 
information can be found in Texas Government Code §802.103(a) and Texas Administrative Code §609.111.  

Please contact us if you need any assistance. 
 
Thank you, 
 
Texas Pension Review Board 
prb.texas.gov  l prb@prb.texas.gov l P.O. Box 13498 l Austin, TX 78711-3498 l P 512-463-1736 or 800-213-9425 l F 512-
463-1882 
 

105



 

 

 

 

 

7. Education and Research Committee 

  

106



 

 

 

 

 

7a. MET online course review 

  

107



 

 

 

 

 

7b. 2021 Evaluation of PRB Educational Services 

  

108



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Educational Services Survey Results 
JUNE 2021 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

109



   
Texas Pension Review Board 

2021 Educational Services Survey Results 

  1 

Introduction 
One of the ways the Pension Review Board (PRB) fulfills its mission is by providing a variety of 

educational services to inform public retirement system trustees and administrators, legislators, and the 

public about issues that affect Texas public pensions. Additionally, each Texas state agency must track 

performance measures to gauge how effectively the agency satisfies its mission to serve the people of 

Texas. The PRB conducts a biennial Educational Services Survey in odd-numbered years to examine the 

effectiveness of its current educational offerings and identify areas for improvement. This report 

presents the results of the 2021 Educational Services Survey. 

Methods 
The 2021 Educational Services Survey was open for the four weeks between Monday, May 10 and 

Friday, June 4, 2021. It was conducted using an online host service to record responses anonymously. 

The survey link was sent out by email to 370 people who had used one or more of the agency’s 

educational services since 2019, such as retirement system trustees and administrators, weekly News 

Clips recipients, and legislative staff who attended the PRB’s 2021 Legislative Seminar.  

The 2021 survey focused on six categories of educational service: 

• Texas Public Pension Data Center— The online portal presents plan data submitted to the PRB 

and allows viewers to compare systems based on aggregate, individual, and comparative data. 

• Minimum Educational Training (MET) online courses—The PRB offers seven free online training 

modules to fulfill the core minimum training standards for retirement system trustees and 

administrators.  

• Materials for the 87th Legislative Session—The agency provided materials leading up to and 

throughout the legislative session such as the Guide to Public Retirement Systems of Texas, the 

Legislative Seminar for legislative staff, bill reports on pension-related legislation, and others. 

• Weekly News Clips—The News Clips are compiled, posted, and e-mailed to subscribers weekly 

to provide Texas and national pension news. 

• Overall educational services—This category measures overall satisfaction with the educational 

services the agency provides. 

• Specific Materials for TLFFRA Plans—The PRB offers specific technical assistance and education 

for local firefighter retirement systems organized under Article 6243e, Vernon’s Civil Statutes, 

the Texas Local Firefighters Retirement Act (TLFFRA).  

Participants were asked to rank their satisfaction for each question with the options of Very Satisfied, 

Satisfied, Unsatisfied, Very Unsatisfied, or Not Applicable. The percentage satisfied score for each 

question was calculated by dividing the combined total answers of Satisfied or Very Satisfied by the 

number of answers for that question. 

The survey used branching logic to allow participants to skip comment fields or questions that were not 

relevant to them. For example, TLFFRA-specific questions were only available to respondents who 

indicated they represented a TLFFRA system. For each topic, there was also an option to provide written 

comments.  

110



   
Texas Pension Review Board 

2021 Educational Services Survey Results 

  2 

Key Findings  
Of the 370 contacts to receive the survey through email, the agency received 50 total responses yielding 

a response rate of 13.51 percent. This was consistent with the response rate of 12.91 percent for the 

2019 Educational Services Survey. 

The following tables summarize the responses for each question.  

Texas Public Pension Data Center 

Question 1: How satisfied are you with the data availability, user-interface, and accessibility of the 
PRB’s updated Texas Public Pension Data Center? 

Very Satisfied Satisfied Unsatisfied Very Unsatisfied No Response/ 
Not Applicable 

10 27 2 1 11 

Total Responses: 40 Question Response Rate: 80% Percentage Satisfied: 92.5% 
Comments: 

• It is difficult to find the comparative chart for health of all local pension funds with funding ratio, 
assumed rate of return. etc. 

• Ability to compare more individual data pieces from plan to plan. However, I am appreciative of the 
information that is available. 

The Texas Public Pension Data Center was launched in 2019 and was updated in early 2021. The agency 

plans to continue adding functionality and improving user experience in the future. 

  

Data 
Center
92.5%

MET
92.9% Legislative 

Session
83.9%

News Clips
91.3% Overall

86.4%
TLFFRA
85.7%

2021 Percentage Satisfied by Question

111



   
Texas Pension Review Board 

2021 Educational Services Survey Results 

  3 

Minimum Educational Training (MET) online courses 
Question 2: How satisfied are you with the Minimum Educational Training (MET) online courses 
provided by the PRB (content, layout, difficulty, etc.)? 

Very Satisfied Satisfied Unsatisfied Very Unsatisfied No Response/ 
Not Applicable 

10 29 2 1 9 

Total Responses: 42 Question Response Rate: 84% Percentage Satisfied: 92.85% 
Comments: 

• Could be a little more difficult. 

• The basic training is very good. It would help to have additional courses for those who have completed 
the 7 basic courses. I have push back from my pension plan Board about the limited selection of the 
same 7 courses. 

• The courses need to be updated to reflect current environment. At present they resemble basic college 
courses. General information with no real-world application. 

• Please add additional content. Our Trustees have taken everything available. 

• Additional courses would be nice. 

• Additional courses would be a bonus. 

The MET program is the central educational service provided by the PRB. It has also received the most 

consistent satisfaction score over time. This question did receive several written comments, four of 

which requested additional courses and two of which suggested updating the information or increasing 

the difficulty. This is consistent with the results of previous surveys in which respondents said their 

biggest complaint was a lack of new and continuing education courses.  

The PRB has recently accredited new course offerings from third-party sponsors to allow more options 

to complete continuing education requirements. Additionally, staff is currently reviewing its own core 

courses to update language, content, and references to reflect the current landscape and improve the 

quality of the courses. The PRB also hopes to develop additional continuing education courses in the 

future. 

Materials for the 87th Legislative Session 
Question 3: How satisfied are you with the presentation of information by the PRB during the 87th 
Legislative Session (pension bill reports, seminars for legislative staff, the Guide to Public 
Retirement Systems in Texas, etc.)? 

Very Satisfied Satisfied Unsatisfied Very Unsatisfied No Response/ 
Not Applicable 

6 20 3 2 20 

Total Responses: 31 Question Response Rate: 62% Percentage Satisfied: 83.87% 
Comments: 

• When asked about the education available for TLFFRA systems you only referenced MET courses 
online. A one-hour session twice a year on the reporting requirement for the PRB does little to educate 
these systems on the best practice of administration. 

• The PRB appears to be anti-Defined Benefit and paints a negative picture towards all pension funds 
including the ones that are well funded. 

• A reporting agency that every session wants more power. State unfunded mandates that are requiring 
cities and plans to make changes that the state itself won't even make. The PRB goal is not to help but 
to eliminate DB plans. Sad. 

• Definitely not working for the Pension Systems in Texas. 

112



   
Texas Pension Review Board 

2021 Educational Services Survey Results 

  4 

News Clips 
Question 4: How satisfied are you with the PRB weekly News Clips? 

Very Satisfied Satisfied Unsatisfied Very Unsatisfied No Response/ 
Not Applicable 

5 16 1 1 28 

Total Responses: 23 Question Response Rate: 46% Percentage Satisfied: 91.3% 
Comments: 

• Articles sometimes do not note an author and selected articles seem to be bias on certain topics. 

This question had the lowest overall response rate for the general questions. The News Clips 

subscription list represented a small portion of the overall contact list for this survey. Staff strives to 

present a variety of perspectives from quality news outlets in the News Clips each week. The PRB takes 

all feedback seriously and will work to clarify the source, especially for editorial or opinion pieces.  

Overall educational services 
Question 5: Overall, how satisfied are you with the educational services provided by the PRB? 

Very Satisfied Satisfied Unsatisfied Very Unsatisfied No Response/ 
Not Applicable 

9 29 3 3 7 

Total Responses: 44 Question Response Rate: 88% Percentage Satisfied: 86.3% 
Comments: 

• Need more conferences that we can attend. I feel like that is how many really learn the information. 
Taking an online class does not teach the information very well. 

• There is no relative educational content for the better administration of TLFFRA systems. Education 
on interaction with vendors, custodians, actuaries, auditors, legal, data information, federal 
requirements and sponsor relations are some of the topic's needed for best practice administration 
of their fund. Instead of highlight struggling performance lets educate them to improvement.  

• Annual mandatory training, as a volunteer to oversee a pension is dumb! 

• Other than online classes, the PRB has not tried to educate funds, but rather try and disgrace them. 
All evaluations are clearly laced with negative intent and malice. PRB is a think tank that spends all 
its time looking for ways to make DB plans look bad and go away. Shame that any tax dollars are 
used for such a purpose. 

• What is presented is good. We just need more educational sessions. 

• The PRB does not support the Pension Systems in Texas. 

This question captures the agency's performance measure concerning overall satisfaction with 

educational services. The PRB has taken note of the desire for more courses with more practical 

information on plan administration and will make it a priority for future educational offerings.  

  

113



   
Texas Pension Review Board 

2021 Educational Services Survey Results 

  5 

Questions for TLFFRA plan representatives 
Question 6: How satisfied are you with the Information provided in the biennial TLFFRA Report? 

Very Satisfied Satisfied Unsatisfied Very Unsatisfied No Response/ 
Not Applicable 

2 10 1 1 36 

Total Responses: 14 Question Response 
Rate: 28% 

Response Rate for 
TLFFRA respondents: 
77.78%  

Percentage Satisfied: 
85.7 

Comments by sub-question: 

Are there any particular sections you find most useful, less useful, or would like to see added to the biennial 
TLFFRA Report? 

• It is nice to compare and see how the different funds are compared. One thing a do not like is the PRB 
placing ** next to funds information and not reporting the most updated information because the PRB 
doesn’t like how it was reported. Also, one thing that has always confused me though for example is 
say you’re looking at all the funds 1yr 5yr 10yr rate of return. Well, when you dig deeper you have to 
figure out what years each fund is reporting. Is it starting in 2019 and going back or a different year? 
From what I have found they are different from each city. So, you have to take that into account when 
comparing apples to apples. This is also the case on your online portal. Mr. John Crider also does a 
comparative survey once a year and we have found that his information is much more accurate and a 
lot of the time we just default and use his information. 

• As in any report of data, the accuracy of the data is the main factor of the report. This data may be a 
year or more old. This should be noted better in the report. 

• Haven't seen or used your training material or have I received any reports from PRB or TLFFRA. 

• Information format not easy to navigate through. 

Please let us know if there are any other types of training you would like to see from the PRB. 

• Would like to see things go back before the PRB went under sunset review. The TLFFRA conferences 
were extremely beneficial. They still are but it seems to me the PRB ha backed out of the hands-on 
training. All you offer is online classes which, in my opinion, are not that beneficial in terms of learning 
and retention of material. 

• Providing support for the Systems not financially able. 

Two commenters mentioned data in the TLFFRA report being outdated or not easily compared between 

retirement systems. The PRB relies on systems to send information in a timely manner according to 

statutory requirements and publishes data as it is submitted to the agency. To some extent the delay is 

unavoidable due to lagging reporting deadlines and differences in reporting schedules and fiscal years 

between retirement systems. However, the PRB will work to clarify the timeframe for data reported. 

 

 

114



 

 

 

 

 

8. 87th Regular Session 

  

115



 

 

8a. Legislation passed, including the following: 

i. HB 3898 (relating to the funding of public retirement 

systems) 

ii. SB 321 (relating to contributions to, benefits from, and 

the administration of the Employees Retirement 

System of Texas) 

iii. HB 4368 (relating to the administration of certain 

municipal police retirement systems)  

 

  

116



1 
 

 
Pension Bills of the 87th Legislative Session 

General Pension Bills 

HB 3898 - Funding Policy and FSRP Updates (Anchia)  
Status: Signed by Governor 6/18/21; Effective 9/1/21 

Funding Policy Changes 

Sponsor involvement. Systems and their sponsor, if not a statewide, must jointly develop and adopt a 
funding policy.  

Funding policy revision. The funding policy must be revised to reflect any significant changes required 
because of an FSRP. If revising the funding policy after an FSRP, the revision must describe any automatic 
contribution or benefit changes to avoid having to create a revised FSRP, including risk sharing, ADC 
structure, or other adjustable mechanisms. The PRB may adopt rules necessary to implement this section. 

The most recent edition of the funding policy must be posted on a publicly available website. 

FSRP Changes 

Threshold, target, trigger, and sponsor adoption. For FSRPs after September 1, 2021, the triggering 

amortization period is lowered from 40 to 30 years and an FSRP is required if the system’s amortization 

period has exceeded 30 years for three consecutive annual AVs or two consecutive AVs for plans that 

conduct AVs every two to three years. However, no system would have to achieve 30 years before 

September 1, 2025. 

FSRPs must: 

• be developed by the later of two years of AV that triggered the requirement or September 1, 
2025. 

• be adopted at open meetings of the governing bodies of the system and sponsor. 

• FSRPs may not include items requiring future actions. 

Effective September 1, 2025, FSRPs are triggered immediately if: 

• the amortization period is > 40 years; or  

• the amortization period is > 30 years with a funded ratio under 65%. 

Credit for reforms already made. An FSRP would not be required if: 

• the system’s AV shows that the system’s expected funding period > 30 but < 40 years; and 
o the system is adhering to an FSRP formulated before September 1, 2025; or 
o the system is implementing or will ultimately use an ADC rate and the AV shows that the 

system is expected to achieve full funding. 

If another FSRP is triggered within 10 years of the first FSRP, the revised FSRP has stricter requirements: 

• must be designed to achieve a 25-year amortization period within two years of the triggering AV. 

 

117

https://capitol.texas.gov/tlodocs/87R/billtext/pdf/HB03898F.pdf#navpanes=0


Pension Bills of the 87th Legislative Session 
July 1, 2021 

2 
 

General Pension Bills 

HB 3898 (continued) - Funding Policy and FSRP Updates 

Required Documentation. The system will be able to submit to the PRB an actuarial valuation that shows 

the combined impact of all changes of an FSRP or revised FSRP within 90 days of adoption. If the system 

does not provide the AV within the time allotted, the PRB may request the system provide a separate 

analysis. The AV or separate analysis must include an actuarial projection of the system’s expected future 

assets and liabilities between the AV date and full funding date; and a description of all assumptions used 

to perform the analysis, which much conform with ASOPs. 

Sponsor may pay all or part of the costs of separate analyses (original and revised FSRPs). System must 
pay any remaining costs not covered by the sponsor. Also, FSRPs (original and revised) cannot include 
actions that are subject to future approval. 

Additional conforming changes are made to the Fort Worth Employees’ Retirement Fund FSRP statute 
(Sec. 802.2016). 

Grandfathering. Plans already subject to FSRP or who become subject before September 1, 2021, will 
continue to operate under the previous law, except if a plan falls off track and must formulate a revised 
FSRP after September 1, 2025, the new FSRP would have to meet the same requirements as the new 
FSRPs formulated after September 1, 2021, and target 30 years instead of 40. 

Investment Practices and Performance Evaluation Changes:  

IPPEs must include the following disclosures: 

• A summary of the independent firm’s experience in evaluating investment performance and 
practices and a statement stating the firm’s experience meets statutory requirements. 

• A statement disclosing the nature of any existing relationship between the independent firm and 
the retirement system (including whether the firm is involved directly/indirectly in managing the 
investments of the system). 

• A list of the types of remuneration received by the firm from sources other than the system for 
services provided to the system. 

• Statement(s) disclosing conflict of interests concerning the firm and retirement system; and 

• An explanation of the firm’s determination regarding whether to include a recommendation.  

Formal review-and-comment process: The firm must deliver an initial draft to the system before the 30th 
day after the evaluation is completed to allow the system to submit actions or comments. The firm must 
file a final report between 31 and 60 days from delivering the initial report to the system for review. 

The employer may pay all or part of the cost of the evaluation, and the retirement system would pay the 
remainder. 
 
HB 867 - Pensions and QDROs (Thompson, Senfronia)  
Status: Signed by Governor 5/19/21; Effective 9/1/21 

The bill clarifies that Qualified Domestic Relations Orders (QDRO) or similar orders for maintenance or 
child support would apply to pensions, retirement plans, and other employee benefits. Judges are allowed 
to revise new and previous orders to comply with the requirements of a QDRO and the terms of a benefit 
plan if a plan administrator rules the existing order does not meet the requirements. Chapter 804 of the 
Texas Government Code prevails if there are conflicting statutes. 

118

https://capitol.texas.gov/tlodocs/87R/billtext/pdf/HB03898F.pdf#navpanes=0
https://capitol.texas.gov/tlodocs/87R/billtext/pdf/HB00867F.pdf#navpanes=0


Pension Bills of the 87th Legislative Session 
July 1, 2021 

3 
 

Statewide Systems 

Employees Retirement System of Texas (ERS) 

SB 321 - ERS Funding & Cash Balance Tier 4 (Huffman)  
Status: Signed by Governor 6/18/21; Effective 9/1/21 

The state is required make an additional actuarially determined annual contribution to pay off the legacy 
liability by August 31, 2054. The system will create a cash balance plan for new members hired on or after 
September 1, 2022.  

Tier 4 (members hired on/after September 1, 2022) – Cash Balance 

• Tier 4 members will contribute 6% of their compensation into an individual account.  

• Members of the employee class will be vested after five years of service and could retire with a 

minimum of five years of service at age 65, or if they met the rule of 80.  

• The lifetime annuity will be equal to the member’s accumulated account balance plus a 150% 

employer match at retirement.  

• There are no changes to the retirement eligibility for members of the elected class. 

Law enforcement and custodial officer supplemental retirement fund (LECOSRF) will also have the new 
cash balance benefit tier. Law enforcement and custodial officers will contribute an additional 2% into 
LECOSRF. The lifetime annuity will be equal to the member’s accumulated account balance plus a 300% 
employer match at retirement. 

Interest and Gain sharing. The system will credit the employee or retiree’s accumulated account balance 
with a 4% guaranteed annual interest credit plus a gain sharing interest credit of 50% of the average 
return on the system’s investments over the preceding five years greater than or equal to 4% and less 
than or equal to 10%, for a maximum of 3% gain sharing interest adjustment.  

• For example, if the average rate of return over the preceding five years were 7%, the total interest 
credited to the employee’s account will be 5.5%, consisting of the 4% minimum interest credit 
and 1.5% of gain sharing interest credit. 

Changes for Current Members. A current member could retire without separating from their position if 
the member had enough service credit to receive the maximum annuity, was at least 60 years-old and 
was not entitled to any additional retirement benefits. This change would be subject to IRS plan 
qualification requirements. 
 
HB 917 - ERS Board Composition (Hernandez) 
Status: Signed by Governor 5/15/21; Effective 9/1/21 

ERS board eligibility criteria will change to allow one of the three elected board members to be a retiree. 
Under current law, retirees are eligible to be appointed members, but not elected members. 
 
SB 1071 - ERS Peace Officer Disability Retirement (Hinojosa) 
Status: Signed by Governor 6/16/21; Effective 9/1/21 

Occupational disability payment for a law enforcement or custodial officer whose disability makes the 

person unable to work solely due to the disability will be considered a total disability under federal social 

security law. Currently, such members receiving an occupational disability retirement annuity receive 

100% of their average monthly compensation.  

119

https://capitol.texas.gov/tlodocs/87R/billtext/pdf/SB00321F.pdf#navpanes=0
https://capitol.texas.gov/tlodocs/87R/billtext/pdf/SB00321F.pdf#navpanes=0
https://capitol.texas.gov/tlodocs/87R/billtext/pdf/HB00917F.pdf#navpanes=0
https://capitol.texas.gov/tlodocs/87R/billtext/pdf/SB01071F.pdf#navpanes=0


Pension Bills of the 87th Legislative Session 
July 1, 2021 

4 
 

Statewide Systems 

Employees Retirement System of Texas (ERS) 

SB 1071 (continued) - ERS Peace Officer Disability Retirement 

The annuity amount will change to an amount computed based on the maximum salary authorized under 

the position classification salary schedule prescribed by the General Appropriations Act, as adjusted from 

time to time, applicable to the position from which the person retired. This change applies to all applicable 

members, including those already receiving an annuity under the current statute. Payments will be 

recomputed to the increased amount beginning with the first payment date on or after the bill becomes 

effective.  

Teacher Retirement System of Texas (TRS) 

HB 1585 - TRS Sunset Bill (Lambert)  

Status: Signed by Governor; Effective immediately 5/26/21  

For any members who retired after January 1, 2021 and returned to work for a Texas public education 
institution, TRS shall send a written warning to any retiree who could lose their benefits for working 
beyond statutory limitations. If TRS determines that a retiree continued to work past statutory limitations, 
the retiree will be required to pay either the amount they earned in benefits or the amount they earned 
through employment for each month after the issuance of the warning.  

The bill updates board training requirements and adds a requirement for the executive director to develop 
a training manual. Additionally, it creates an ombudsman’s office to protect, assist, and advocate for 
members and enhances requirements to search for a missing member or heir to notify the member of 
ability to be refunded contributions. It also creates outreach and member education program 
requirements. Finally, the bill makes clarifying, technical changes to TRS statute by replacing the 
investment practices and performance evaluation (IPPE) provision with a reference to the PRB IPPE 
requirement. TRS complied with the PRB’s IPPE provision to satisfy a similar requirement contained in its 
own statute. This bill brings the TRS and PRB statutes in alignment with the system’s current practice. 
 
SB 202 - TRS Employer Contributions (Schwertner)  
Status: Signed by Governor; Effective immediately 6/14/21 

Employer contribution paid on behalf of a rehired retiree (employer surcharge) cannot be passed on 
directly or indirectly to a retiree through methods like payroll deductions, fees, or other means. The 
change begins with the 2021-2022 school year and applies to all retirees. 
 
SB 288 - TRS Loss of Monthly Annuity (Seliger) 
Status: Signed by Governor 6/14/21; Effective 9/1/21  

TRS is required to send a written warning to any retiree subject to a loss of benefits due to employment 
exceeding statutory limitations. If TRS determines that a retiree continues to exceed the statutory 
limitations on employment, the retiree is required to pay, for each month after issuance of the warning, 
either the amount they earned in benefits or the amount earned through employment. Benefits are not 
withheld from retirees returning to work or contributions will not be collected from the employer on 
behalf of the rehired retiree (employer surcharge) for positions related to student learning loss because 
of COVID-19. 

120

https://capitol.texas.gov/tlodocs/87R/billtext/pdf/SB01071F.pdf#navpanes=0
https://capitol.texas.gov/tlodocs/87R/billtext/pdf/HB01585F.pdf#navpanes=0
https://capitol.texas.gov/tlodocs/87R/billtext/pdf/SB00202F.pdf#navpanes=0
https://capitol.texas.gov/tlodocs/87R/billtext/pdf/SB00288F.pdf#navpanes=0


Pension Bills of the 87th Legislative Session 
July 1, 2021 

5 
 

Statewide Systems 

Teacher Retirement System of Texas (TRS) 

SB 288 (continued) - TRS Loss of Monthly Annuity (Seliger) 

The position would have to be in addition to the normal staffing level at the public educational institution; 
be funded wholly or partly by federal funds for the purpose of COVID-19 relief and end on or before 
December 31, 2024. It does not apply to disability retirees. This is a temporary exemption scheduled to 
expire February 1, 2025.  

ERS & TRS – Bills Affecting Both Systems 

SB 483 - Biennial Report on Investment Returns (Schwertner) 
Status: Signed by Governor 6/14/21; Effective 9/1/21 

ERS and TRS must biennially submit a report that details and compares the assumed rate of return and 
actual rate of return for the system for the last 1-year, 5-year, 10-year and 20-year period to the Governor, 
Lt. Governor, and the Legislature. The report must include an estimate of what the market value of the 
total assets of the fund would have been for each period had the system achieved the assumed rate of 
return and a comparison between the estimate (what the total assets would have been) and the actual 
market value of the total assets in the fund. 

Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS) 

SB 1105 - TMRS Resumption of Service (Hughes)  
Status: Signed by Governor 5/28/21; Effective 9/1/21 

Retired TMRS members can be reemployed by the same municipality after a one-year break in service 
without having their benefit payment suspended. The one-year break must consist of 12 consecutive 
months after the effective date of retirement.  

Members who resumed employment before September 1, 2021 who had their benefits suspended could 
have them reinstated if they met the criteria.  

All Statewide Systems 

SB 13 - Energy Boycott Investment Restriction (Birdwell)  

Status: Signed by Governor 6/14/21; Effective 9/1/21 

Certain state governmental entities are prohibited from investing in companies that boycott energy 

companies. State public retirement systems that qualify include the Employees Retirement System, the 

Teacher Retirement System, the Texas Municipal Retirement System, the Texas County and District 

Retirement System, and the Texas Emergency Services Retirement System.  

A system may delay or stop divesting if there was clear evidence divestment would cause financial 

suffering. Systems are not required to divest from indirect holdings, but they would be required to write 

to the fund managers to ask them to remove listed companies from the fund or create a similar fund 

without those listed companies. Systems would not be subject to these requirements if it is inconsistent 

with fiduciary and legal duties. 

121

https://capitol.texas.gov/tlodocs/87R/billtext/pdf/SB00288F.pdf#navpanes=0
https://capitol.texas.gov/tlodocs/87R/billtext/pdf/SB00483F.pdf#navpanes=0
https://capitol.texas.gov/tlodocs/87R/billtext/pdf/SB01105I.pdf#navpanes=0
https://capitol.texas.gov/tlodocs/87R/billtext/pdf/SB01105F.pdf#navpanes=0
https://capitol.texas.gov/tlodocs/87R/billtext/pdf/SB00013F.pdf#navpanes=0


Pension Bills of the 87th Legislative Session 
July 1, 2021 

6 
 

All Statewide Systems 

SB 19 - Firearm/Ammunition Divestment (Schwertner) 

Status: Signed by Governor 6/14/21; Effective 9/1/21 

State agencies and political subdivisions are prevented from entering contracts paid from public funds 

unless there is a written verification that the company does not discriminate against firearm 

manufacturers or trade associations for no other reason than being a firearm manufacturer or trade 

association and will not do so while the contract is in effect. This would only apply to contracts that begin 

after the effective date. The restrictions only apply to contracts with companies with at least 10 employees 

and a value of at least $100,000. 

State agencies are excepted from this requirement if it is inconsistent with constitutional or statutory 

duties surrounding debt issuance or investments.  

Local Systems 

HB 3375 - Dallas Police & Fire Pension Fund DROP Partial Lump-Sum (Davis)  

Status: Signed by Governor 6/16/21; Effective 9/1/21 

Dallas Police & Fire Pension Fund may provide lump-sum payments from DROP accounts in the event of 
unforeseeable emergency or financial hardships. The board will define unforeseeable emergencies, 
financial hardships, what types of death benefits would qualify for the partial lump sum payments and 
the maximum payout amount. 
 
HB 4068 - Dallas Police & Fire Pension Fund Staff (Parker) 
Status: Signed by Governor 6/15/21; Effective 9/1/21 

Dallas Police & Fire Pension Fund staff may join TMRS. The fund’s members and/or trust fund cannot join 
TMRS. 
 
HB 4368 - Austin Police Retirement System (Rodriguez) 
Status: Signed by Governor 6/15/21; Effective 9/1/21 

The governing statute of Austin Police plan was amended to make several changes to its contribution and 
benefit structure including the following: 

Contribution Changes 

• Member contributions increase by 2%, from 13% to 15% of pay beginning January 1, 2022. 

• City contributions are divided into two parts: 

o A legacy liability layer to pay the unfunded liability as of December 31, 2020 over 30 
installments. The first three years would result in a phase-in of approximately 1/3 of the 
contribution increase and growing at a rate of 3% thereafter. 

o The sum of the employer’s normal cost and a layered amortization component designed 
to eliminate any unexpected future changes in the unfunded liability. Losses amortized 
over a max of 30 years. 

• The portion of the city contribution designed to fund future benefit accruals is subject to a 
minimum and maximum corridor of +/-5% of the projected corridor midpoint. 

122

https://capitol.texas.gov/tlodocs/87R/billtext/pdf/SB00019F.pdf#navpanes=0
https://capitol.texas.gov/tlodocs/87R/billtext/pdf/HB03375F.pdf#navpanes=0
https://capitol.texas.gov/tlodocs/87R/billtext/pdf/HB04068F.pdf#navpanes=0
https://capitol.texas.gov/tlodocs/87R/billtext/pdf/HB04368F.pdf#navpanes=0


Pension Bills of the 87th Legislative Session 
July 1, 2021 

7 
 

Local Systems 

HB 4368 (continued) - Austin Police Retirement System 

Benefit Changes 

• Creates a new benefit tier (Group B) 
o Reduces the multiplier from 3.2% to 2.5%. 
o Changes retirement eligibility from age 55 and 20 years of service to 50 and 25. 
o Increases final average salary calculation from the highest 36 months to highest 60. 

Actuarial Assumptions & Experience Study 
Requires the board’s actuary to perform an experience study every five years and notify the city. The city 

will then inform the system whether it would perform its own experience study, review the experience 

study, or accept the system’s. If the city performs its own or does a review, the actuaries from the city 

and system will be required to determine the hypothetical contribution rate based on the proposed 

assumptions. If the difference was greater than 2% of payroll, they would be required to reconcile the 

difference within 20 business days or consult a third-party actuary. The board retains the responsibility to 

set actuarial assumptions. 

Board Composition & Authority 
Removes one police officer member. One additional citizen member appointed by the city council is added 
to the existing one appointed by the board. Also, both citizen members are required to have finance or 
investment experience. Removes the board’s authority to increase benefits, lower retirement eligibility, 
or grant COLAs. 
 

123

https://capitol.texas.gov/tlodocs/87R/billtext/pdf/HB04368F.pdf#navpanes=0


THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

124



Formulated before Sept. 1, 2021.
Must be designed to achieve a contribution rate sufficient to amortize the UAAL
within 40 years by the 10th anniversary of FSRP deadline (6 months after adoption
of triggering AV).
System and sponsor shall report progress to PRB every two years.
A copy of any changes must be submitted to PRB within 31 days.
If a system does not adhere to existing L-FSRP (is no longer able to achieve a
40-year amortization period by the target date), a new FSRP must be prepared that
achieves 30 years no later than 2 years after the triggering AV or Sept. 1, 2025,
whichever is later.

Legacy Funding Soundness Restoration Plan
L-FSRPs must comply with Section 802.2015, Texas Government Code 

(before 2021 changes made by HB 3898, 87R)
 

Must be designed to achieve a contribution rate sufficient to amortize the UAAL
within 30 years no later than 2 years after the triggering AV or Sept. 1, 2025,
whichever is later.
Adopted at open meetings of the governing bodies of both system and sponsor.
Is not required if amortization period is between 30-40 years AND

 system is using or ultimately will use ADC-based contributions & AV shows plan
should achieve full funding; OR
the system and sponsor are adhering to an FSRP adopted before Sept. 1, 2025.

Funding Soundness Restoration Plan
Effective Sept. 1, 2021 (HB 3898, 87R)

 

Must be designed to achieve a contribution rate sufficient to amortize the UAAL
within 25 years no later than 2 years after the AV triggering the R-FSRP.
Must include automatic risk-sharing mechanisms, ADC-based contributions,
or other adjustable benefit or contribution mechanisms.
Adopted at open meetings of the governing bodies of both system and sponsor.

Revised Funding Soundness Restoration Plan
R-FSRP required if another FSRP is triggered within 10 years

Effective Sept. 1, 2021 (HB 3898, 87R)
 

FSRP Changes through HB 3898 (87R)

1 of 4

125

madilyn.jarman
Stamp



FSRP

Amortization period less than 30 years?

Actuarial Valuation

Adhering to an
FSRP adopted

before Sept 1, 2025 

Notify Sponsor

Amortization period between
30-40 years?

FSRP already
completed?

Yes

No

Within 12 years of the AV that
triggered previous FSRP? 

(2 years to develop + 10 years)

Revised
FSRP

Amort. periods >30 for
3 consecutive years or

2 consecutive AVs if
not annual?

Amort. period
>40?

Amort. period 
> 30 & funded

ratio <65%

No corrective
action needed

at this time

Funding Soundness Restoration Plan
After Sept. 1, 2025

If all no

If any yes

Using or ultimately will
use ADC contributions &

AV shows plan should
achieve full funding?

No

No

No

No

Yes

Yes

Yes

OROR

OR

If any
Yes

2 of 4

126

madilyn.jarman
Stamp



Within 1 year of triggering AV:
Send progress report to PRB that includes a draft of any plan or
changes being considered + updates every 6 months afterwards

Within 31 days of adoption:
submit FSRP/R-FSRP to PRB

Update funding policy
based on the FSRP/ 

R-FSRP

Within 90 days of adoption:
submit AV showing combined impact of all changes

adopted in FSRP/R-FSRP
OR

Within 90 days of request from PRB:
submit separate analysis of combined impact of all

changes adopted in FSRP/R-FSRP

FSRP Reporting to PRB

Retirement system & sponsor work
together after FSRP is triggered

Within 2 years of triggering AV:
Both retirement system & sponsor adopt FSRP/R-FSRP at open meetings

Follow the FSRP/R-FSRP & return to regular
actuarial valuation schedule

3 of 4
127

madilyn.jarman
Stamp



Exceptions None

L-FSRP
(old law)

FSRP after HB 3898 (87R) takes
effect Sept. 1, 2021

Target Amort.
Period

Time to develop 

Time allowed to
reach target

Updates to
the PRB

Documentation

Effects on
funding policy

Effects of not
adhering to

FSRP

May include
future changes?

<40 years < 30 years no later than 2 years after the triggering
actuarial valuation or Sept. 1, 2025, whichever is later

2 years after triggering actuarial valuation6 months after
triggering AV

10 years 2 years after triggering actuarial valuation

Every 2 years Progress report by within 1 year of triggering AV,
Updates every 6 months afterwards

Unspecified in
statute

AV or analysis that includes an actuarial projection of
expected future assets and liabilities, the date the plan
is expected to achieve full funding, and a description of
the methods used and how they comply with actuarial

standards of practice

Unspecified in
statute

No, changes may only be included if they have already
been approved when the FSRP is adopted

None Adoption triggers funding policy revision
so provisions are consistent

Revise FSRP to
achieve 30 year am.
pd. by original target

date

R-FSRP that includes a target amortization period of <25
years and includes risk sharing mechanisms, ADC-based
contributions, or other automatic adjustments to benefit

or contribution structures

If adhering to previous L-FSRP
If am. period between 30-40 years AND EITHER:

using or ultimately will use ADC-based
contributions & AV shows plan should achieve full
funding; OR
adhering to FSRP formulated before Sept. 1, 2025

Comparison of FSRP Provisions

4 of 4
128

madilyn.jarman
Stamp



 

 

 

 

 

8b. PRB budget appropriation for Fiscal Years 2022 and 2023 

under General Appropriations Act, 87th Legislature (SB 1) 

  

129



PRB Budget Comparison 
FY 2021 to FY 2022-23

Summary of GAA and FTEs
FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2023

General Revenue $1,128,749 $1,128,749 $1,128,749

Number of FTEs 13 13 13

Additional One-Time Funding for IT 
FY 2022 FY 2023

Data Migration and Database Rewrite $300,000 $0

Plan Reporting Portal $0 $300,000

Total Additional Funding $300,000 $300,000

Grand Total $1,428,749 $1,428,749

130



PENSION REVIEW BOARD 

 For the Years Ending 
          August 31,               August 31, 

         2022          2023 
Method of Financing: 

General Revenue Fund  $ 1,128,749 $ 1,128,749 

Total, Method of Financing $ 1,128,749 $ 1,128,749 

This bill pattern represents an estimated 100% 
of this agency's estimated total available  
funds for the biennium.  

Number of Full-Time-Equivalents (FTE): 13.0 13.0 

Schedule of Exempt Positions: 

Executive Director, Group 3  $126,730 $126,730 

Items of Appropriation:  
A. Goal: SOUND RETIREMENT SYSTEMS  
Provide Info to Help Ensure Actuarially Sound Retirement 
Systems.  

A.1.1. Strategy: RETIREMENT SYSTEM REVIEWS $ 511,120 $ 511,120 
Conduct Reviews of Texas Public Retirement  
Systems.  
A.2.1. Strategy: TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE AND  
EDUCATION  617,629 617,629 
Provide Technical Assistance; Issue Impact  
Statements; Educate.  

Total, Goal A: SOUND RETIREMENT SYSTEMS $ 1,128,749 $ 1,128,749 

Grand Total, PENSION REVIEW BOARD $ 1,128,749 $ 1,128,749 

Object-of-Expense Informational Listing: 

Salaries and Wages  $ 1,025,959 $ 1,025,959 
Other Personnel Costs  19,600 19,600 
Professional Fees and Services  12,500 12,500 
Consumable Supplies  3,500 3,500 
Travel  26,000 26,000 
Rent - Building  1,000 1,000 
Rent - Machine and Other  15,000 15,000 
Other Operating Expense  25,190 25,190 

Total, Object-of-Expense Informational Listing $ 1,128,749 $ 1,128,749 

Estimated Allocations for Employee Benefits and Debt 
Service Appropriations Made Elsewhere in this Act:  

Employee Benefits  
Retirement  $ 85,382 $ 85,809 

179,642 183,160 Group Insurance 
Social Security  72,869 73,234 

Total, Estimated Allocations for Employee  
Benefits and Debt Service Appropriations Made 
Elsewhere in this Act  $ 337,893 $ 342,203 

1. Performance Measure Targets. The following is a listing of the key performance target levels
for the Pension Review Board. It is the intent of the Legislature that appropriations made by
this Act be utilized in the most efficient and effective manner possible to achieve the intended
mission of the Pension Review Board. In order to achieve the objectives and service standards
established by this Act, the Pension Review Board shall make every effort to attain the
following designated key performance target levels associated with each item of appropriation.

131



PENSION REVIEW BOARD 
(Continued) 

    2022      2023  
A. Goal: SOUND RETIREMENT SYSTEMS 

Outcome (Results/Impact):  
Percent of Actuarially Funded Defined Benefit Texas Public 
 Retirement Systems That Are Actuarially Sound  98% 98% 
Percent of All Constituents Satisfied with PRB Educational 

Services 98% 98% 
A.1.1. Strategy: RETIREMENT SYSTEM REVIEWS  
Output (Volume):  
Number of Reviews Completed  400 450 
A.2.1. Strategy: TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE AND  
EDUCATION  
Output (Volume):  
Number of Technical Assistance Reports Provided by Staff 150 200 
Number of Applications for Sponsor Accreditation and  

Individual Course Approval Reviewed 20 20 

132



inefficient hardware and software systems.

(b)AAThe Office of the Attorney General is authorized to use

an amount of $8,187,301 from appropriated receipts for the purposes

described by Subsection (a)(2) of this section.

(c)AAIn addition to amounts previously appropriated for the

state fiscal biennium ending August 31, 2021, by Chapter 1353 (H.B.

1), Acts of the 86th Legislature, Regular Session, 2019 (the

General Appropriations Act), the following amounts are

appropriated to the following agencies from the specified sources

for use for the listed information technology projects for the

two-year period beginning on the effective date of this Act as

follows:

(1)AATexas Historical Commission: $240,000

appropriated from the general revenue fund for commission

technology upgrades;

(2)AAPension Review Board: $300,000 appropriated from

the general revenue fund for migration of the board’s data from

multiple servers to the cloud and the creation of a new web-based

interface for the current internal databases;

(3)AAPension Review Board: $300,000 appropriated from

the general revenue fund for the creation of a self-service portal

to allow retirement systems to access a secure reporting portal to

upload reports and view compliance status in real time;

(4)AADepartment of State Health Services: an aggregate

amount of $1,181,028, with $307,427 appropriated from the general

revenue fund, $307,427 appropriated from the Bureau of Emergency

Management Account No. 0512, $307,427 appropriated from the

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

H.B.ANo.A2

37

133

Wes.Allen
Highlight

Wes.Allen
Highlight

Wes.Allen
Highlight

Wes.Allen
Highlight

Wes.Allen
Highlight

Wes.Allen
Highlight

Wes.Allen
Highlight

Wes.Allen
Highlight

Anumeha
Highlight



 

 

 

 

 

8c. Revised Government Code publication, Title 8, Subtitle A 

  

134



 

 

 

 

 

8d. Need for additional rules to implement statute, including 

changes to reporting requirements enacted by the 87th 

Legislature 

  

135



 

 

 

 

 

9. Amendments to the Board Bylaws, including changes to 

standing committees of the Board 

  

136



 
 

  

Bylaws 
Updated July 1, 2021 

 

 

 

 
 

 

      

137



Bylaws of the State Pension Review Board 

Adopted December 8, 2010  

 

 
 

 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 

  

 

ARTICLE 1   

Organization of the Board   ............................................…………………………….1 

 

ARTICLE 2  

Meetings of the Board…................................................…………………………….9 

 

ARTICLE 3   

Committees  .................................................................…………………………….12 

 

ARTICLE 4   

Executive Director  ......................................................…………………………….15 

 

ARTICLE 5   

Miscellaneous Organizational Provisions  ...................…………………………….18 

 

ARTICLE 6   

Amendment of Bylaws  ...............................................…………………………….19 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

138



Bylaws of the State Pension Review Board 

Adopted December 8, 2010  

 

 
 

1 
 

ARTICLE 1  

Organization of the Board  

 

1.1 Authority.    The State Pension Review Board (the “Board” or the “PRB”) has been established 

pursuant to Texas Government Code (the “Code”) Chapter 801 and has been designated by 

law as an agency of the state of Texas (See Texas Government Code §801.101).  Under the 

law the Board is required to have board members and employ an executive director to be the 

executive head of the Board to perform its administrative duties. The Board and the executive 

director in partnership shall endeavor to achieve the Board duties, missions and goals of 

overseeing all Texas public retirement systems in regard to their actuarial soundness and 

compliance with the state law, as laid out by the legislature in the Texas Government Code, 

Title 8. The Board is the sole oversight body for Texas public retirement systems, and is 

mandated to provide information, recommendations and assistance to the State of Texas for 

ensuring the proper management and financial soundness of Texas public retirement systems. 

The Board is responsible under the law to conduct training sessions, educational activities, to 

develop and administer an educational training program, and furnish other appropriate 

services, including actuarial studies for public retirement systems (See the Code §801.113(e), 

§801.208 & §801.211).  The Board is also authorized by law to adopt rules for the conduct of 

its own business, as well as, for performing its duties outlined under the Code. The philosophy 

of the Board is to act in accordance with the highest standards of ethics, accountability, 

efficiency, and openness and also actively progress toward achievement of legislative intent 

and the Board mission. 

 

1.2 Composition and Terms of Office.  The Board is composed of seven  members, who hold 

office for staggered terms of six years, with the terms of two (2) or three (3) members, as 

appropriate, expiring on January 31 of each odd-numbered year (See the Code §801.102 & 

§801.106, respectively). 

 

1.3 Appointment.   The governor, with the advice and consent of the senate, shall appoint seven 

(7) members to the board with specified qualifications or experience as provided by the Code 

(See the Code §801.103).  Three (3) members to be appointed to the Board shall have 

experience in the fields of securities investment, pension administration, or pension law but 

cannot be members or retirees of a public retirement system. One (1) member shall be an 

actuary and a fellow of the Society of Actuaries, or a member of the American Academy of 

Actuaries, or an enrolled actuary under the federal Employee Retirement Income Security Act 

of 1974 (29 U.S.C.A. § 1001 et seq.) (ERISA). One (1) member shall have experience in the 

field of governmental finance. One (1) member shall be a contributing member of a public 

retirement system. One (1) member shall be receiving retirement benefits from a public 

retirement system.      

 

 

 

 

 

139



Bylaws of the State Pension Review Board 

Adopted December 8, 2010  

 

 
 

2 
 

 

1.4 The Board Chair.   

 

1.4.1 The governor designates a member of the Board as the presiding officer of the Board 

who shall be hereinafter referred to as the chair of the Board and shall serve in that 

capacity at the will of the governor (See the Code §801.110).  

 

1.4.2 The chair shall: 

 

a) preside over meetings of the Board,  

b) call for supplemental meetings in addition to the statutorily prescribed number if 

the chair deems it appropriate, or as provided for by Board rule,  

c) direct the order of the meeting,  

d) preserve order and decorum in the meeting, 

e) recognize persons to be heard, 

f) limit time, 

g) seek clarification of issues that arise during the meeting, 

h) observe and maintain all rules adopted by the Board, 

i) sign all resolutions adopted by the Board, 

j) sign all minutes of the Board meetings as approved by the Board, 

k) sign specified publications and correspondences of the Board, including the 

Strategic Plan, Legislative Appropriations Request, and Annual Financial Report 

on behalf of the Board, unless otherwise provided by action of the Board or these 

Bylaws, 

l) appoint chairmen and the committee members to the various committees of the 

Board, 

m) coordinate with the members of the Board to attend and provide testimony during 

legislative committee hearings,  

n) perform such other duties as are assigned by the enabling statute, these Bylaws, or 

other action of the Board.  

 

1.4.3 The chair shall serve in that capacity until the chair’s term expires, or until his or her 

earlier resignation, or death, or removal from office by the governor, or if the governor 

designates a successor chair.  

 

1.5 Vice-Chair of the Board.  

 

1.5.1 The Board shall elect a vice-chair from among the remaining appointed members of 

the Board to serve for a term of one (1) year.  

 

1.5.2 In case of the absence, death, resignation, disability, removal, or disqualification of 

the chair, the vice-chair shall perform the duties of the chair until the chair shall resume 

his or her office or a successor chair has been appointed.  

 

140



Bylaws of the State Pension Review Board 

Adopted December 8, 2010  

 

 
 

3 
 

1.5.3 The election of a vice-chair shall be conducted annually at the Board’s first regular 

meeting of the calendar year. The newly elected officer shall take office immediately 

following his/her election. The vice-chair shall serve in that capacity for a term that 

expires with the next election or upon his/her earlier resignation, or death, or removal 

from office, or upon the appointment and assumption of office of a replacement or 

successor member.     

 

1.6 Absence of Chair and Vice-Chair.  In case of the absence, death, resignation, disability, 

removal, or disqualification of both the chair and vice-chair, the member of the Board with the 

longest service on the Board (considering all Board service), as certified by the executive 

director, shall exercise the duties of the chair, as acting chair, until the chair or the vice-chair 

shall resume his or her office or until a successor chair has been appointed or a successor vice-

chair has been elected who shall then immediately take office. In the event there are two or 

more members with equal length of service, an action of the Board shall designate an acting 

chair from among the members with equal length of service. If both the chair and vice-chair 

are temporarily absent from a Board meeting, the Board members shall elect one of the 

members present at the meeting to serve as chair pro-tem for the duration of the meeting or 

until the chair or the vice-chair joins the meeting.  

 

1.7 Vacancies. A vacancy in the office of a member of the Board shall be filled by the governor, 

as provided by the governing statute.  

 

1.8 Elections.   

 

1.8.1 Elections for vice-chair and any other positions that require election by the Board shall 

be conducted annually at the first regular Board meeting of each calendar year and the 

newly elected officer shall take office immediately following the election. 

 

1.8.2 When a position subject to Board election becomes vacant anytime during a calendar 

year, a special election for the position shall be held as soon thereafter as practicable, 

if the Chair or the Board determines it is necessary to do so. 

 

1.8.3 Members elected to positions under this section serve in that capacity for a term that 

expires with the next election or upon the member’s earlier resignation, or death, or 

removal from office by the Board, or upon the appointment and assumption of office 

of a replacement or successor member. If the position falls vacant and is filled during 

the middle of a calendar year then the term shall expire with the next scheduled 

election for that position or upon resignation from the position by the person holding 

it. 

  

1.8.4 Nominations for the vice-chair of the Board and any other position that requires 

election by the Board shall be made from the floor by individual Board members 

present at the meeting of the Board or by a special committee established for the 

141



Bylaws of the State Pension Review Board 

Adopted December 8, 2010  

 

 
 

4 
 

purpose of making nominations. A Board member may self-nominate for any such 

position. 

 

1.8.5 Elections conducted in Board meetings shall be conducted in an open meeting by 

acclamation or by a roll-call vote pursuant to a motion that has been seconded.  Unless 

a different number is required by law, a majority vote of a quorum is required to elect 

to office a nominee for each election required by these Bylaws.  

 

1.9 Responsibilities of the Board. The Board is the sole ongoing oversight agency for Texas 

public retirement systems and is committed to serving the state of Texas by providing 

necessary information and recommendations to keep the Texas public retirement systems 

financially sound and properly managed with equitable distribution of benefits. The Board 

shall: 

 

a) conduct a continuing review of public retirement systems, compiling and comparing 

information about benefits, creditable service, financing, and administration of 

systems;1  

b) conduct intensive studies of potential or existing problems that threaten the actuarial 

soundness of or inhibit an equitable distribution of benefits in one or more public 

retirement systems;2  

c) provide information and technical assistance on pension planning to public retirement 

systems on request;3 

d) recommend policies, practices, and legislation to public retirement systems and 

appropriate governmental entities;4 

e) develop, adopt and periodically review rules, bylaws, and policies for the conduct and 

performance of its business, duties and operation;5 

f) present to the legislature and the governor, in November of each even-numbered year, 

a public report explaining the work and findings of the Board during the preceding two-

year period and include drafts or recommendations of any legislation relating to public 

retirement systems that the Board finds advisable;6  

g) maintain a file on each written complaint filed with the Board and review and 

investigate complaints filed with the Board in accordance with the Code Section 

801.207; 

h) prepare and provide actuarial impact statements for bills or resolutions that propose to 

change the amount or the number of benefits or participation in benefits of a public 

retirement system or that proposes to change the fund liability of a public retirement 

system in accordance with the Code Sections 802.301 & 802.302; 

 
1 Code §801.202. 
2 Id.  
3 Id.  
4 Id.  
5 Code §801.201(a). 
6 Code §801.203(a). 

142



Bylaws of the State Pension Review Board 

Adopted December 8, 2010  

 

 
 

5 
 

i) provide the presiding officer of the committee responsible for retirement legislation in 

each house of the legislature, on or before the 70th day before the last possible day of 

each regular session of the legislature, an actuarial impact statement listing and totaling 

for each state-financed public retirement system the actuarial effect of all public 

retirement bills and resolutions that have been presented in public hearings in either 

house of the legislature during that legislative session and that affect that state-financed 

public retirement system in accordance with the Code Section 802.305(e) ; 

j) provide the presiding officer of the committee responsible for retirement legislation in 

each house of the legislature, on or before the 30th day before the last possible day of 

each regular session of the legislature, an actuarial impact statement analyzing for each 

state-financed public retirement system the actuarial effect of all public retirement bills 

and resolutions that have been passed by at least one house of the legislature during 

that legislative session and that affect that state-financed public retirement system, 

assuming that each of the bills and resolutions becomes law in accordance with the 

Code Section 802.305(f); 

k) In the event of a called legislative session that is scheduled to last for 30 days, the Board 

will provide the information required by subsections (j) and (k) above, within 15 and 5 

days respectively, after receiving notice of the bill, to comply with the Code Section 

803.305(g).  In the event that a shorter session is called or relying on this policy would 

result in untimely submission of required information, the Board or staff may prepare 

the report and submit it as determined by the executive director;  

l) conduct training sessions, schools, or other educational activities for trustees and 

administrators of public retirement systems in accordance with the Code Sections 

801.113(e) and 801.208; 

m) develop and administer an educational training program for trustees and system 

administrators, including establishing minimum training requirements in accordance 

with Code Section 801.211; 

n) furnish other appropriate services such as actuarial studies or other requirements of 

systems and may establish appropriate fees for these activities and services in 

accordance with the Code Section 801.113(e); 

o) inspect records, issue subpoenas, and request writs of mandamus to the plans to compel 

their compliance with reporting requirements of the Board in accordance with the Code 

Sections 801.204, 801.205, & 802.003, respectively; 

p) employ an executive director to be the executive head of the Board and delegate to him 

or her the responsibility for all administrative functions in accordance with the Code 

Section 801.111(a); 

q) develop and implement policies that clearly separate the policy-making responsibilities 

of the Board and the management responsibilities of the executive director and the staff 

of the Board in accordance with the Code Section 801.111(c);  

r) develop and implement a policy to encourage the use of negotiated rulemaking and 

alternative dispute resolution procedures in accordance with the Code Section 

801.2012; 

s) be responsible for the compensation, job description, assignment of duties, 

performance evaluation and dismissal, of the executive director; 

143



Bylaws of the State Pension Review Board 

Adopted December 8, 2010  

 

 
 

6 
 

t) review and approve the annual operating budget;     

u) receive reports from staff members, including reports on noncompliant retirement 

systems and the status of actuarially unsound retirement systems and regulate according 

to the policies adopted by the Board; and 

v) establish committees as are necessary to consider various aspects of the Board’s work 

and to make appropriate recommendations to the Board; however, such committees 

may not exercise the authority required under these Bylaws or by state or federal law 

to be exercised by the Board as a whole, and the Board may consider and take any 

action otherwise specified to be taken by the committee created pursuant to article 3 of 

these Bylaws. 

 

1.10 Board Travel.  

 

1.10.1 Members of the Board shall be reimbursed for actual and necessary travel expenses 

while on official Board business as specified in the Code Sections 801.1062(c) and 

801.108. The Board members while seeking any travel reimbursement in general shall 

follow the state travel laws and rules, including the Texas Government Code Chapter 

660, General Appropriations Act, Article IX, Part 5 and Texas Administrative Code, 

Title 34, Part 1, Chapter 5, Subchapter C, Section 5.22.   

 

1.10.2 Official Board business is defined as travel to and from meetings of the Board, 

meetings of Board committees, orientation meetings, and annual and regional seminars 

conducted by the Board. 

 

1.10.3 In addition to travel on official Board business as defined in subsection 1.10.2 of this 

section, it is anticipated that each Board member may travel to attend conferences and 

other similar activities. For state reimbursement, the travel must  meeting the following 

criteria: 

 

(a) The purpose of the expense is related to the business of the Board; and 

(b) Attendance at the function or the seminar will benefit the Board or a Board member 

in the exercise of Board responsibilities. 

(c) Travel will be limited to Texas, unless prior approval is obtained from the Board 

or the appropriate committee chair, as provided in section 1.10.4,  and  

(d) Travel and related expenses are is authorized and approved as required by law.   

 

1.10.4 However, prior to departure and incurrence of before departing or incurring travel 

expenses as defined in subsection 1.10.3 of this section, a member of the Board, other 

than the chair, shall submit a request for approval with to the chair. The chair shall 

then coordinate with the executive director to determine whether the requested travel 

expenses may be reimbursed, and the approval shall depend upon the eligibility of the 

travel from reimbursement and the availability of sufficient funds in the Board’s 

budget to pay for the expenses. In case of the incurrence of travel expenses by the chair  

Before the chair departs or incurs travel expenses as defined in subsection 1.10.3, the 

144

Ashley.Rendon
Highlight



Bylaws of the State Pension Review Board 

Adopted December 8, 2010  

 

 
 

7 
 

chair shall submit the request to the chair of the AdministrativeLegislative Committee 

of the Board for approval. The said committee’s chair shall then coordinate with the 

executive director to determine whether the requested travel expenses may be 

reimbursed, and the approval shall again depend upon the eligibility of the travel for 

reimbursement and the availability of sufficient funds in the Board’s budget to pay for 

the expenses. Any such request, either approved or denied, for reimbursement of travel 

expenses under subsection 1.10.3, shall be reported to the Board by the Board’s staff 

at the next scheduled Board meeting, immediately following the request.  

 

1.10.5 It is further anticipated that a Board member may travel outside the state of Texas in 

accordance with subsection 1.10.3(a) and (b) of this section. The request for 

reimbursement for out-of-state travel expenses shall undergo a dual scrutiny. In 

addition to following the approval procedure under subsection 1.10.4 of this section, 

the request shall be governed by the General Appropriations Act (GAA) applicable to 

that fiscal year, the Legislative Budget Board’s (LBB) limitations for out-of-state 

travel and the Texas Ethics Commission requirements to file with the commission all 

copies of the documents filed with the Texas Comptroller’s office and LBB.    

 

1.10.6 Travel expenses for which the Board member will be reimbursed by another agency, 

organization, institution, or from any other source shall not be reimbursed by the Board 

and shall be excluded from these provisions. 

 

1.11 Board Member Training.  Each person who is appointed to and qualifies for office as a 

member of the Board may not vote, deliberate, or be counted as a member in attendance at 

a meeting of the Board until the person completes a training program in compliance with the 

Code Section 801.1062.  

 

1.11.1 The training program for a new Board member shall provide, but is not limited to, the 

following information: 

a) results of the most recent formal audit of the Board;  

b) Board’s operating budget for the current biennium; 

c) copy of the current Texas Government Code pamphlet published by the Board 

covering the provisions generally applicable to public retirement systems in Texas; 

d) Board’s adopted policy manual encompassing conflict of interest laws, legal standards 

of conduct and other general standards of ethical conduct adopted by the Board; 

e) Board’s adopted Bylaws; 

f) Board’s adopted rules established under Texas Administrative Code, Title 40, Part 17; 

g) current Administrative law handbook, published by the Texas Attorney General’s 

Office; 

h) current Open Meetings Act handbook, published by the Texas Attorney General’s 

Office; 

i) current Public Information Act handbook, published by the Texas Attorney General’s 

Office; 

 

145



Bylaws of the State Pension Review Board 

Adopted December 8, 2010  

 

 
 

8 
 

1.11.2 In addition to receiving information under subsection 1.11.1 of this section, the 

training program shall require every new Board member to complete training in Texas 

open government law encompassing the Open Meetings Act and Public Information 

Act as approved by the office of the Attorney General within 90 days of his or her 

appointment. Every new Board member shall receive links to the formal video training 

courses in Texas open government law offered by the office of the Texas Attorney 

General. Following the completion of the required training, Board members will print 

out a certificate of course completion for each completed course and send a copy to 

the executive director to be filed as a record on behalf of the Board member and shall 

be made available for public inspection as and when requested. 

 

1.11.3 After the completion of the new Board member training in accordance with 

subsections 1.11.1 and 1.11.2 of this article, the new Board members shall undergo a 

supplemental orientation program designed to assist them in further understanding the 

role and functions of the Board. Under the orientation program, the executive director 

shall meet with the new Board member and provide details about the Board’s duties, 

budget, programs, general laws, and clarify any questions the new member may have 

with regard to the information provided under subsections 1.11.1 and 1.11.2. 

Furthermore, the executive director shall provide to the new Board member additional 

administrative documents pertaining to the Board, which shall include, but not be 

limited to, the following: a copy of the minutes of the last three Board meetings 

immediately preceding the date of the appointment of the Board member, all current 

Board publications, including the Biennial Report, Strategic Plan, Legislative 

Appropriations Request and the Guide to Public Retirement Systems in Texas, a copy 

of the Board’s in-house directory, and information on the Board’s website. 

 

1.11.4 In addition to the new Board member training, the Board may establish additional 

Continuing Education Programs or workshops (each a “Program”) for the existing or 

new Board members who have already completed the mandatory training program. 

Any individual Board member or a committee of the Board, or the entire Board may 

request such Programs which may include, but is not limited to, such matters as 

actuarial science, securities investments, pension administration or pension law, 

pension plan design, governmental finance, fiduciary duties, corporate governance, 

standards for good governance and ethics laws, or any other recent developments and 

techniques related to public pension administration, which may enable the Board 

members to better fulfill their duties and responsibilities. Any such request shall be 

submitted in a timely manner in order for it to be included as an agenda item for the 

Board’s consideration in accordance with Article 2, subsection 2.3 of these Bylaws. If 

the requested Program would have costs associated with it, the approval of the Board 

shall depend upon the availability of sufficient funds in the Board’s budget to pay for 

the expenses related to the Program. The executive director shall act as the 

administrator of any such Program initiated by the Board. 

146



Bylaws of the State Pension Review Board 

Adopted December 8, 2010  

 

 
 

9 
 

ARTICLE 2 
Meetings of the Board 

2  

2.1 Meetings of the Board 

 

2.1.1 The Board shall meet no less than three times each year.7 The Board may have as many 

other regular meetings as the Board determines necessary for the proper performance 

of its duties. The proposed date for every regular meeting will be placed as an agenda 

item for the Board’s approval during every regular Board meeting or as soon thereafter 

as practicable. When necessary, and in addition to the provisions of subsection 2.1.6 

of this Article, the Board may add or cancel a regular meeting or change the date, time 

or location of a regular meeting by action of the Board. 

 

2.1.2 Special meetings of the Board may be held either upon the call of the chair of the 

Board, or the call of at least four members of the Board, or upon action of the Board. 

A call for a special meeting under this section must be communicated to the executive 

director with sufficient time to permit posting of the meeting as required by law. The 

call for a special meeting under this section shall specify the date of each special 

meeting and may specify the time and place for each special meeting.  

 

2.1.3 Meetings of the Board shall be held at a place designated by the agenda of each Board 

meeting. 

 

2.1.4 Regular and special meetings shall begin at a time designated by the chair of the Board 

unless a time has been specified in the call for the particular meeting. 

 

2.1.5 Emergency meetings may be called in the same manner as special meetings. The Board 

member who initiates the call for an emergency meeting under this section shall 

provide the executive director with a written reason for the emergency or urgent public 

necessity. An emergency meeting is one which cannot be posted within the seven-day 

advance notice normally required by the Open Meetings Act (Texas Government Code 

Chapter 551, section 551.044, or a successor statute) (the “Act”), but which is needed 

because of “imminent threats to public health and safety or reasonably unforeseeable 

situations requiring immediate action by the government body” or as otherwise 

defined by the Act, as amended, court decision, or other applicable law. Notice for an 

emergency meeting shall be posted no later than two (2) hours before the meeting is 

convened in accordance with the Act (or its successor statute) or other applicable law. 

 

2.1.6 If a catastrophe prevents the Board from convening a properly posted meeting, the 

Board may, pursuant to the Code Section 551.0411, convene in a convenient location 

within 72 hours under the Code Section 551.045 by giving written notice of the date, 

hour, place, and agenda of the rescheduled and /or relocated meeting at least two hours 

 
7 Code §801.109 

147



Bylaws of the State Pension Review Board 

Adopted December 8, 2010  

 

 
 

10 
 

before it begins. For the purposes of this subsection, the term “catastrophe” has the 

meaning assigned in the Code Section 551.0411. In consultation with the executive 

director, the chair of the Board shall specify the date, hour, and place of a meeting 

rescheduled under this subsection to accommodate as many members of the public, 

Board, and staff as possible. 

 

2.1.7 A special or emergency meeting of the Board may be cancelled or rescheduled, or the 

location of the meeting changed, only by action of the Board or by a call of at least 

four members of the Board communicated to the executive director with sufficient 

time for the Board to comply with all the posting requirements for the meeting. Unless 

a time has been specified in the call or action of the Board rescheduling the meeting, 

the chair may set the time of the rescheduled meeting, though any such time must meet 

all posting requirements of applicable law.  

 

 

2.2 Public Comment at Meetings. 

 

2.2.1 The Board will allow reasonable opportunity for public comment to the Board on any 

issue under the jurisdiction of the Board in accordance with Section 801.206 (b) of the 

Code. The chair may determine the total time to allot to public comment at a meeting 

of the Board. 

 

2.2.2 Persons who desire to deliver oral comments at the Board meeting must complete the 

required form, preferably before the public comment agenda item is reached during 

the Board meeting. Each person desiring to deliver oral comments shall have an 

allotted maximum of three minutes to speak. Persons wishing to speak before the 

Board shall provide the following information: 

 

a) Name and address; 

b) The name of the person or group, if any, the speaker is representing; 

c) The agenda item upon which the person wishes to speak, if any; and 

d) If the matter does not relate to an agenda item, a brief description of the 

nature of the matter to be addressed by the speaker. 

  

2.3 Meeting Agendas. 

 

2.3.1 The agenda for each Board meeting shall be set by the chair of the Board and when 

appropriate, by other Board members in consultation with the executive director. At 

least seven calendar days prior to each regular Board meeting, the executive director 

and the staff shall prepare and distribute a copy of the agenda to each Board member 

via electronic mail, including (insofar as is practicable) copies of all reports and other 

relevant written materials to be presented at the meeting. 

148



Bylaws of the State Pension Review Board 

Adopted December 8, 2010  

 

 
 

11 
 

2.3.2 Items may be submitted for inclusion on the agenda of any Board meeting by any 

Board member or by the executive director prior to the posting deadline. The executive 

director shall determine the initial order of the agenda items prior to posting.  Board 

members desiring to add an agenda item are requested to submit it to the executive 

director by 5:00 p.m. not later than fifteen business days before the meeting.  

 

2.3.3 Agenda items may be added to a posted agenda by the chair, by the executive director, 

or by written request of any Board member, provided that the proposed addition is 

submitted to the executive director in time to post the amendment to the agenda in 

compliance with the Act. If the item must be added as an emergency agenda item due 

to insufficient time to post it as a regular item, the request to add the item must include 

a valid reason for the emergency, subject to a determination by the executive director 

in consultation with the assistant attorney general counsel as to whether the emergency 

item is permitted under the Open Meetings Act. 

 

2.3.4 Any member of the Board or the public may inquire at any meeting of the Board about 

any subject or item whether or not the same is on the agenda of the meeting, but any 

deliberation of or decision about the subject of inquiry shall be limited to a proposal 

to place the subject on the agenda for a subsequent meeting.    

 

2.4 Notice of Meetings. The executive director will cause the meeting notices to be posted in 

compliance with these Bylaws and the Open Meetings Act. 

 

2.5 Auxiliary Aids or Services at Meetings. Persons who do not speak English or persons with 

disabilities may request auxiliary aids or services to be provided at a meeting, such as language 

interpreters or interpreters for persons who are hearing impaired, or readers or large print or 

Braille texts for persons who are visually impaired. If the request is made to the Board secretary 

with advance notice of at least three to five (3-5) business days prior to the meeting, such Board 

secretary shall cause reasonable and appropriate arrangements to be made for persons with 

disabilities to the extent required by the law and may exercise discretion to determine any other 

accommodations to be provided (See Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) Amendments 

Act of 2008 (ADAAA) and the Code section 801.206 (a)).  

 

2.6 Procedure. 

 

2.6.1 A quorum of the Board is a majority of the total number of members fixed by the 

enabling statute, present in person, unless otherwise defined by applicable law. A 

quorum of the Board is required for the Board to conduct business. Unless otherwise 

provided by law, a majority vote (i.e., a majority vote of the members present and 

voting at a meeting where a quorum is present) is required for action or decision by 

the Board. Abstentions are not counted in determining the outcome of a vote but are 

counted in determining a quorum. The most recent edition of Robert’s Rules of Order 

Newly Revised, when not in conflict with other Board-adopted rules and policy 

statements, these Bylaws, or other applicable law, may be employed by the chair of 

149



Bylaws of the State Pension Review Board 

Adopted December 8, 2010  

 

 
 

12 
 

the Board or of a committee to govern the parliamentary procedure of all or a portion 

of a meeting of the Board or of a committee. A Board member may request that the 

assistant attorney general who serves as the legal counsel to the Board assist and advice 

the Board or any of its committees regarding interpretation and application of the rules 

of parliamentary procedure. 

 

2.6.2 All members of the Board, including the chair, may vote and make or second motions 

on all matters coming before the Board for consideration. No member shall vote by 

proxy.    

 

2.6.3 The minutes of all Board meetings shall contain each subject of discussion and 

deliberation, all motions, seconds, and the vote, if any, on such motions, order, 

decision or any other action taken. Each Board member shall be given an opportunity 

to record in the minutes his or her vote on a motion and to have included in the minutes 

the reasons stated in the meeting for that vote.  The staff secretary to the Board shall 

transcribe the minutes of Board meetings within a reasonable period after each meeting 

for it to be presented for approval at the next meeting. The minutes approved by the 

Board and signed by the chair shall form a part of the permanent records of the Board.  

 

2.6.4 All meetings of the Board and its committees shall be open to the public at all times 

and shall be held in compliance with the Open Meetings Act. The Board and its 

committees may be permitted to hold closed or executive sessions, subject to the 

requirements of the Open Meetings Act (Texas Government Code, Chapter 551.)    

 

  

ARTICLE 3 

Committees 

3  

3.1 Standing Committees.  In accordance with section 1.9 of these Bylaws, the Board may 

establish standing committees as it may determine from time to time to be necessary or 

desirable for the proper functioning of the Board by amendment of this article. The overall 

purpose of the standing committees shall be to consider various aspects of the Board’s work 

and assist, recommend and guide the Board by reporting their research, study and discussions 

of issues they are charged with.  A quorum of a standing committee shall be a majority of the 

members of the committee. Any committee may convene in joint session with any other 

committee. The Board shall maintain the following standing committees:  

 

3.1.1 Actuarial Committee. The Board shall have an Actuarial Committee, which shall 

normally meet at the call of its chair. The responsibilities of the Actuarial Committee 

shall include, but not be limited to, the following: handle initial interviewing of 

interview prospective actuarial consultants and make recommendations to the full 

Board, review actuarial studies performed by consultants and the staff actuary, review 

the PRB’s Pension Funding Guidelines to Actuarial Soundness  on a continual basis, 

150



Bylaws of the State Pension Review Board 

Adopted December 8, 2010  

 

 
 

13 
 

review and recommend proposed rules, recommend interim studies, and be generally 

involved in actuarial matters before the Board. 

 

3.1.2 InvestmentLegislative Committee. The Board shall have an InvestmentLegislative 

Committee, which shall normally meet at the call of its chair. The responsibilities of 

the InvestmentLegislative Committee shall include, but not be limited to, the 

following: receive and review the budget status report from the Board staff at each 

regular Board meetingidentify investment practice and policy issues affecting public 

pensions, review and recommend proposed rules, recommend interim studies, and be 

generally involved in investment matters before the Board. oversee Board publications 

on matters pertaining to public policy or public business as assigned by the Board and 

undertaken by the staff prior to their distribution, and act as the Board’s liaison with 

legislative and executive agencies.   

 

3.1.3 Education and Research Committee. The Board shall have an Education and 

Research Committee, which shall normally meet at the call of its chair. The 

responsibilities of the Education and Research Committee shall include, but not be 

limited to, the following: provide guidance on the Minimum Educational Training 

Program (See the Code §801.211 and Texas Administrative Code, Title 40, Part 17, 

Chapter 607), review and update policies and procedures, and coordinate with the 

executive director to plan for the online or in-person PRB training sessions. The 

committee’s responsibilities shall also include the following: identify issues affecting 

public pensions which require research including, but not limited to investment 

practices and policies; help turn research into policy recommendations; coordinate 

with the staff to prepare projects, studies, and white papers as required.    

 

3.1.4 Administrative Committee. The Board shall have an Administrative Committee with 

the chair, and vice-chair as the permanent members of the committee. The 

responsibilities of the Administrative Committee shall include, but not be limited to, 

the following: receive and review reports provided by the executive director on 

administrative matters of the Board other than the reports provided under subsections 

3.1.1, 3.1.2 and 3.1.3 of these Bylaws. Administrative matters shall include, but not be 

limited to the following: the responsibilities delegated to the executive director in 

accordance with sections 4.1 and 4.2 of these Bylaws, policies adopted by the Board 

in accordance with section 1.9(q) of these Bylaws clearly separating the policy-making 

responsibilities of the Board and the management responsibilities of the executive 

director and the staff of the Board, executive director’s performance evaluation in 

accordance with section 1.9(s) of these Bylaws, and personnel matters which require 

Board’s involvement. The committee may report to the full Board on any 

administrative matter it deems necessary.   

 

 

3.1.4.1 Administrative Committee Procedures. The executive director 

shall annually report to the committee the current Board policy clearly separating 

151



Bylaws of the State Pension Review Board 

Adopted December 8, 2010  

 

 
 

14 
 

the policy-making responsibilities of the Board and the management 

responsibilities of the executive director and the staff of the Board for review and 

potential update. Any member of the Board outside the committee may provide 

suggestions with regard to committee functions by directing their written 

individual suggestions to the committee’s chair and the executive director within 

sufficient time for the committee to consider such suggestions and make 

appropriate changes if required.  

 

3.2  Special Committees. Special committees other than standing committees established in 

section 3.1 of this article may be created by the chair, with the approval of the Board, as the 

chair believes necessary or desirable to investigate matters or advise the Board. The Board 

shall establish the purpose and responsibilities of each special committee and may establish 

the term for which it shall exist. Special committees shall limit their activities to the 

accomplishment of the tasks for which created and shall have no power to act except as 

specifically conferred by the Board. Such committees shall operate until their tasks have been 

accomplished or until earlier discharged by the Board.  An example of a special committee 

would be a Nominating Committee, which can be established by the Board for the search and 

appointment of the executive director when required.    

 

3.3 Composition of Committees. Depending upon its function, each committee shall be 

composed of a reasonable number of Board members, as appointed by the chair, unless 

otherwise provided by action of the Board or these Bylaws. The chair of the Board shall appoint 

committee members subject to the consent of the Board on or before the Board’s first regular 

meeting of each year or as soon thereafter as practicable. Furthermore, the Board’s chair shall 

designate the chair of each committee who shall serve in that capacity until his or her term as 

committee chair expires, or until his or her earlier resignation, or death, or removal from the 

position of committee chair by the chair of the Board, or the chair appoints a successor chair 

to the committee. However, the chair of the Board shall at no time act as the chair of the 

Legislative Committee. The term of the committee member expires on the date the chair 

appoints a successor committee member to fill the member’s position, or the date on which the 

member’s term as a Board member expires according to the Code and the person is no longer 

holding over and serving as a member of the Board. The chair of the Board may appoint an 

interim successor to a committee member whose Board term has expired, or who is holding 

over as a Board member, but who has resigned his or her committee position, or in case of 

death. Any such interim successor member of a committee may serve until the meeting of the 

Board at which the chair of the Board appoints the required committee member.   

 

3.4 Committee Agendas. The agenda for each committee meeting shall be set in a manner similar 

to a Board meeting agenda, but with the committee chair and members having the same 

authority with regard to the committee agenda of committee meetings that the Board chair and 

members have with regard to the Board agenda of Board meetings.    

 

3.5 Committee Meetings. The Board’s standing committees are charged with supervising public 

business or public policy issues relating to the Board’s work, and with advising the Board on 

152



Bylaws of the State Pension Review Board 

Adopted December 8, 2010  

 

 
 

15 
 

similar matters. Hence, the standing committee meetings will be posted and conducted as per 

the Open Meetings Act (See the Code, Chapter 551.) Absence of eligible committee members 

from scheduled committee meetings will not constitute a ground for removal of such members 

under the Code Section 801.1061(a)(5).        

 

 

 

ARTICLE 4 

Executive Director 

4 You 

 

4.1 Responsibilities of Executive Director.   The Board shall employ an executive director to be 

the executive head of the Board and perform its administrative duties and such other duties as 

may be required by law. The executive director, being the chief executive officer and chief 

administrative employee of the Board, shall perform such other duties as may be established 

by the Board in its policies, resolutions, and other actions. In these Bylaws, the term “executive 

director” means the person appointed by the Board pursuant to the Code Section 801.111 (or 

a successor statute). 

 

  

4.1.1 With respect to the operations of the Board itself the executive director shall:  

 

a) make preparations, including member travel arrangements in accordance with 

section 1.10 of these Bylaws, for all meetings of the Board and its committees ; 

b) under the direction of the chair of the Board or of a relevant committee, prepare 

and distribute the agendas and appropriate documentation for all meetings of the 

Board and its committees; 

c) under the direction of the chair of the Board or of a relevant committee, post 

notices of all meetings and the subject matter thereof as may be required by law; 

d) cause the Board secretary to record, prepare, and index the official minutes of the 

Board and its committees; 

e) index, cross-index to statute, and make available for public inspection all adopted 

rules, and final orders, decisions, and opinions, and other matters, as required by 

Government Code Chapter 2001 Section 2001.004 of the Administrative 

Procedure Act (Vernon 2008), or a successor statute;   

f) file and preserve all official documents, correspondence, and proceedings of the 

Board and its committees in compliance with records retention laws; 

g) maintain, index, cross-index to statute, and make available for inspection the 

official copy of these Bylaws and Board’s Policy Manual, as required by the 

Government Code Chapter 2001 Section 2001.004 of the Administrative 

Procedure Act (Vernon 2008), or a successor statute; 

h) as directed by the Board, establish routine reporting mechanisms and procedures 

to the Board and prepare special reports for the Board;  

i) carry out other policies adopted by the Board; 

153



Bylaws of the State Pension Review Board 

Adopted December 8, 2010  

 

 
 

16 
 

j) assist in new Board member training in accordance with section 1.11 of these 

Bylaws; 

k) administer all Programs established by the Board in accordance with subsection 

1.11.4 of these Bylaws; and  

l) act pursuant to the Texas Administrative Code, Title 40, Part 17, Chapter 603 

Section 603.1 as the Board’s designated personnel upon whom service of process 

under judicial procedures may be served against the Board at the Board’s official 

place of business.     

 

 

4.1.2 The executive director is the chief executive officer of the Board and is responsible to 

the Board for the general administration of its duties and responsibilities in accordance 

with relevant state laws and with Board policies. In the aforementioned capacity the 

executive director shall:   

 

a) manage the daily operations of the Board as its executive head; 

b) assume managerial responsibility and leadership for the planning, operation, 

supervision, and evaluation of the programs and services; 

c) coordinate and interface with the Board and its committees regarding Board 

employee assigned projects and other pertinent matters including Board 

publications and budget;  

d) assume authority and responsibility for the selection, job description, 

assignment of duties, performance evaluation, promotion, and discipline, 

including dismissal of Board employees except as provided in section 1.9 of 

these Bylaws; 

e) assume authority and responsibility to set staff salaries within the limits of state 

law, including the General Appropriations Act, and in consultation with the 

Board;  

f) prepare and submit an annual operating budget for consideration by the Board;   

g) prepare and report the current budget status to the Board during every regular 

Board meeting; 

h) prepare recommendations for policies and rules to be considered by the Board 

and oversee the implementation of adopted policies and rules; 

i) make recommendations to the Board regarding the selection of the actuarial 

consultants when required under the Code, Chapter 802, Subchapter D and in 

accordance with subsection 3.1.1 of these Bylaws; and 

j) provide administrative assistance to the Board in conducting its duties, and in 

carrying out its missions and goals.        

  

4.2 Miscellaneous Duties.  

 

4.2.1 The executive director pursuant to the Code Section 801.114 shall provide to the members 

of the Board, as often as necessary, information regarding their qualification for office, 

including the Code Sections 801. 1021, -.103, and -.1061, and their responsibilities under 

154



Bylaws of the State Pension Review Board 

Adopted December 8, 2010  

 

 
 

17 
 

applicable laws relating to standards of conduct and conflict of interests for state officers, 

including the Texas Government Code Chapters and Sections 572 and 801.1061, Texas 

Penal Code Sections 36.08, 36.10, 39.01 and 39.03, and any amended, new, or successor 

statutes.  

  

4.2.2 The executive director pursuant to Code Section 801.114 shall provide to the Board 

employees, as often as necessary, information regarding their qualification for 

employment, and their responsibilities under applicable laws relating to standards of 

conduct and conflict of interests for state officers including Texas Government Code 

Chapter 572, Texas Penal Code Sections 36.08, 36.10, 39.01 and 39.03, and any amended, 

new, or successor statutes. 

 

4.2.3 In accordance with the Code Section 801.1061(c), the executive director shall notify the 

chair of the Board if he or she has knowledge that a potential ground for removal of a Board 

member exists. The chair shall then notify the appropriate appointing officer or body that 

a potential ground for removal exists. If the potential ground for removal involves the chair, 

the executive director shall notify the vice-chair or the next highest-ranking officer of the 

Board, who shall then notify the appropriate appointing officer or body that a potential 

ground for removal exists. 

 

4.3 Absence of Executive Director. If the executive director will be away from the Board’s 

principal office for a brief period, as contemplated by section 4.4 of this article, the executive 

director may designate the deputy director or any senior staff member of the Board to act in 

his or her behalf generally or for a particular purpose. In the absence of the executive director 

due to incapacity, resignation, removal or otherwise when the duration of the absence is 

unknown and the absence may be extended or permanent, the chair of the Board shall 

temporarily designate the deputy director or any senior staff member of the Board to assume 

the responsibilities and authority of the executive director pending the Board’s permanent 

appointment of the person to serve in the capacity of the executive director. A designee under 

this section shall have the responsibility and authority of the executive director. A member of 

the Board is not eligible for temporary designation or permanent appointment to serve in the 

capacity of the executive director under Texas law.      

 

4.4 Delegating Responsibilities. The executive director shall designate an employee of the Board 

to serve as the staff secretary to the Board to assist in the execution of duties enumerated in 

subsection 4.1.1 of this article and may assign other employees of the Board as necessary to 

assist in carrying out these duties or other duties in accordance with the Code, and other 

applicable law.  

 

 

4.5 Performance Evaluation of the Executive Director. Beginning with calendar year 2020, the 

Board shall evaluate the performance of the executive director on each even-numbered year, 

155



Bylaws of the State Pension Review Board 

Adopted December 8, 2010  

 

 
 

18 
 

before the preparation of the Legislative Appropriations Request (LAR). The evaluation shall 

consist of methods developed by the Board. 

 

ARTICLE 5 

Miscellaneous Organizational Provisions 

 

5  

5.1 Administration of the Board. The administration of the Board is governed by the Code, these 

Bylaws, Board rules, Board policies, and other applicable law. In the event of a conflict 

between these Bylaws and applicable law, the applicable law shall govern to the extent 

necessary to resolve the conflict.   

 

5.2 Budget and Fiscal Year. The Budget of the Board is adopted by the Board and may be 

amended by the Board in any subsequent meetings of the Board in accordance with the 

enabling statute and the General Appropriations Act.   

 

5.3 PRB Rules. The executive director is authorized to draft and submit proposals for the adoption, 

amendment or repeal of Board rules to the Board for its review and approval. Upon the 

approval by the Board the executive director may submit the proposed rule to the Texas 

Register for publication. The executive director shall then provide a copy of the notice of 

proposed rule as it appeared in the Texas Register to the Board members for adoption in 

accordance with the state law.  

 

5.4 Board Policy Manual.  The executive director is authorized to draft and submit proposals for 

the adoption, amendment or repeal of Board policies. Such proposals must be consistent with 

the Board Bylaws that are not subject of the proposal and with applicable law.      

 

5.5 Personnel Policies. Pursuant to the Code Section 801.1111, the executive director or the 

executive director’s designee shall prepare, maintain and disseminate to all employees of the 

Board, written personnel policies and revise the same from time to time, in compliance with 

Board policies, state law and federal law.  The Board is an at-will employer.  

 

5.6 Official Place of Business of the Board. The Board shall maintain its official place of business 

in Austin, which shall be the Board’s principal office for its executive director and staff 

members to conduct the Board’s day-to-day business and to maintain records.   

 

5.7 Administrative Assistance. Individual Board members, primarily the Board chair and vice-

chair, shall be available, as requested by the staff, to advise and assist, but not to direct, the 

Board staff on any day-to-day administrative matter, including but not limited to the 

responsibilities delegated to the executive director in accordance with sections 4.1 and 4.2 of 

these Bylaws. Individual Board members shall not control or supervise the executive director 

or staff, nor shall they supervise or control (which includes making decisions) regarding public 

business or public policy. 

156



Bylaws of the State Pension Review Board 

Adopted December 8, 2010  

 

 
 

19 
 

 

5.8 Actuarial Matters. The Board actuary shall advise the Board’s staff in preparing the 

statutorily required actuarial impact statements during the legislative sessions in accordance 

with the Code Section 802.301, in a timely manner. The Board actuary shall directly 

communicate and coordinate with the executive director in order to effectively advise the staff 

on preparing such actuarial impact statements on proposed public pension legislation, in 

accordance with the Code’s Section 802.301. In the absence of the Board actuary, the Board’s 

staff actuary shall fulfill this function.  

 

6  

7 ARTICLE 6 

Amendment of Bylaws 

 

6.1 Amendment of Bylaws. These Bylaws may be altered, amended or repealed in full and in part 

at any duly posted meeting of the Board by a majority vote of the members present and voting 

at a meeting where a quorum is present and in accordance with section 2.6 of these Bylaws, 

subject to the following requirements:  

  

a. the proposed amendment must be submitted in writing to  the executive director no 

later than 15 business days prior to the date of the meeting at which the amendment 

is to be considered; 

b. a copy of the proposal must be provided to each member of the Board at least seven 

days prior to the meeting at which the amendment is to be voted upon; 

c. the Board must determine that the proposed change would not conflict with 

applicable laws;  

d. the proposed change will not become effective unless the Board determines that 

the proposed change is consistent with the remainder of the Board’s policies or 

adopts a simultaneous change to any inconsistent policy.  

 

157



 

 

 

 

 

10. Committee assignments for 2021  

158



 

 

 

 

 

11. Executive Director’s Report 

  

159



 

 

 

 

 

11a. 2021 Texas Workforce Commission, Civil Rights Division 

Review of Personnel Policies and Procedures 

  

160



Bryan Daniel, Chairman 
Commissioner Representing 
the Public 
 
Julian Alvarez 
Commissioner Representing 
Labor 
 
Aaron Demerson 
Commissioner Representing 
Employers 
 
Edward Serna 
Executive Director 
 

101 E. 15th Street, Guadalupe CRD • Austin, Texas 78778-0001 • (512) 463-2642 (T) • (512) 463-2643 (F) • Relay Texas: 800-735-2989 (TDD) 800-735-2988 (Voice) • www.texasworkforce.org 

Equal Opportunity Employer / Program 

Auxiliary aids and services are available upon request to individuals with disabilities 

 

 

 
VIA EMAIL ATTACHMENT 
 
 

May 28, 2021 
 
Anumeha Kumar 
Executive Director 
Texas Pension Review Board 
300 West 15th Street, Rm. 406 
Austin, TX 78701 
 
Re: CERTIFICATION LETTER - Texas Workforce Commission Civil Rights Division Review of 
Personnel Policies and Procedures System. 
 
Executive Director Kumar, 
 
The Texas Workforce Commission Civil Rights Division (the “Division”) has completed the review of the 
personnel policies and procedures system of your agency/institution of higher learning (“agency”) under 
Texas Labor Code §§ 21.451 – 21.456.  Based on that review, I hereby certify that your agency’s system 
complies with Texas Labor Code Chapter 21. 
 
As specified in the Texas Labor Code, §21.454, your agency must submit a report to the Governor, the 
Legislature, the Legislative Budget Board, and the Civil Rights Division within 60 days.  A sample 
report format is attached. Please provide an electronic copy of the report to the Civil Rights Division’s 
EEO Compliance Monitor. 
 
Although this review is now concluded, your agency is scheduled for its next review in six (6) years. The 
Division may advance or delay this schedule up to one year to account for the abolishment or combination of 
agencies and the creation of new agencies.  In addition, if a risk assessment indicates a need for more 
frequent review, such review may be conducted pursuant to Texas Labor Code §21.453(a-1). Until your next 
review, we are available for technical assistance under Texas Labor Code §21.003(a)(5). 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to work with your staff.  If you have questions, please contact Erin 
Humphreys, EEO Compliance Monitor, at (737) 610-3114 or Erin.Humphreys@twc.state.tx.us. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Ellena E. Rodriguez 
Manager, Outreach, Compliance & Resolutions 
Civil Rights Division, Texas Workforce Commission 
 
Cc: Westley Allen, Accountant 
 
Attachment: Sample Report Format  

161



 

 

 

 

 

11b. Updated Fiscal Year 2021 Operating Budget 

  

162



LBB 
Obj. 

Code
GAA 

BUDGETED
ADJUSTED 
BUDGETED

TOTAL 
BUDGETED

TOTAL      
EXPENDED ENCUMBRANCES

PERCENT   
EXPENDED

REMAINING
BALANCE

PERCENT
REMAINING

METHOD OF FINANCING
General Revenue $1,053,749.00 $1,053,749.00
Contigency Rider for SB 322 $75,000.00 $75,000.00

$0.00 $0.00
Total Method of Financing $1,128,749.00 $0.00 $1,128,749.00

OBJECT OF EXPENSE
Exempt Salaries 1001A $126,730.00 $126,730.00 $95,047.47 75.00% $31,682.53 25.00%
Classified Salaries 1001B $899,228.00 $889,228.00 $559,601.88 62.23% $339,626.12 37.77%
Other Personal Exp / Longevity Pay 1002A $14,600.00 $14,600.00 $4,720.00 32.33% $9,880.00 67.67%
Retirement Deduction .5% Salary 1002B $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $3,273.15 65.46% $1,726.85 34.54%
Benefit Replacement Pay 1004 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $0.00 100.00%
Non-Overnight Meals 1001C $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $0.00 100.00%

Sub-Total Salaries & Wages $1,045,558.00 $0.00 $1,035,558.00 $662,642.50 $0.00 63.38% $382,915.50 36.62%

Professional Fees and Services 2001 $12,500.00 $46,500.00 $46,055.52 $0.00 99.04% $444.48 0.96%
Consumable Supplies 2003 $3,500.00 $500.00 $118.46 $0.00 23.69% $381.54 76.31%
Travel 2005A $26,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $0.00 100.00%
Rent-Building (Record Storage) 2006 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $832.66 $0.00 83.27% $167.34 16.73%
Rent-Machine & Other (Copier/Software) 2007 $15,000.00 $7,100.00 $7,000.02 $0.00 98.59% $99.98 1.41%

$0.00
Operating Costs (Miscellaneous) 2009A $6,214.25 $4,214.25 $3,713.90 $0.00 88.13% $500.35 11.87%
     Telecommunication Services 2009D $2,000.00 $5,500.00 $5,387.43 $0.00 97.95% $112.57 2.05%
     Education and Training 2009B $2,500.00 $1,500.00 $1,250.00 $0.00 83.33% $250.00 16.67%
     Postage 2009C $500.00 $500.00 $271.48 $0.00 54.30% $228.52 45.70%
     Printing 2009E $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $132.85 $0.00 13.29% $867.15 86.72%
     Subscription/Publications 2009G $2,000.00 $9,900.00 $7,410.91 $0.00 74.86% $2,489.09 25.14%
     PHC Deduction 1% Salary 2009H $8,476.75 $7,976.75 $6,486.75 81.32% $1,490.00 18.68%
     Hardware & Software 2009F $2,500.00 $7,500.00 $4,383.31 $0.00 58.44% $3,116.69 41.56%

Sub-Total Operating Cost $25,191.00 $0.00 $38,091.00 $29,036.63 $0.00 76.23% $9,054.37 23.77%

Total Object of Expense $1,128,749.00 $0.00 $1,128,749.00 $745,685.79 $0.00 66.06% $383,063.21 33.94%

OPERATING BUDGET
FISCAL YEAR 2021

As of June 1, 2021

163



 

 

 

 

 

11c. Approval of Fiscal Year 2022 Operating Budget 

  

164



LBB 
Obj. 

Code
GAA 

BUDGETED
ADJUSTED 
BUDGETED

TOTAL 
BUDGETED

TOTAL      
EXPENDED ENCUMBRANCES

PERCENT   
EXPENDED

REMAINING
BALANCE

PERCENT
REMAINING

METHOD OF FINANCING
General Revenue $1,128,749.00 $1,128,749.00
Add'l One-time GR Approp for IT Pojects $300,000.00 $300,000.00
Appropriated Receipts $0.00 $0.00

Total Method of Financing $1,428,749.00 $0.00 $1,428,749.00

OBJECT OF EXPENSE
Exempt Salaries 1001A $126,730.00 $126,730.00 $0.00 0.00% $126,730.00 100.00%
Classified Salaries 1001B $899,228.00 $899,228.00 $0.00 0.00% $899,228.00 100.00%
Other Personal Exp / Longevity Pay 1002A $19,600.00 $19,600.00 $0.00 0.00% $19,600.00 100.00%
Retirement Deduction .5% Salary 1002B $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $0.00 100.00%
Benefit Replacement Pay 1004 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $0.00 100.00%
Non-Overnight Meals 1001C $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $0.00 100.00%

Sub-Total Salaries & Wages $1,045,558.00 $0.00 $1,045,558.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $1,045,558.00 100.00%

Professional Fees and Services 2001 $302,500.00 $302,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $302,500.00 100.00%
Consumable Supplies 2003 $3,500.00 $3,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $3,500.00 100.00%
Travel 2005A $26,000.00 $26,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $26,000.00 100.00%
Rent-Building (Record Storage) 2006 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $1,000.00 100.00%
Rent-Machine & Other (Copier/Software) 2007 $15,000.00 $15,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $15,000.00 100.00%

Operating Costs (Miscellaneous) 2009A $6,214.25 $6,214.25 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $6,214.25 100.00%
     Telecommunication Services 2009D $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $2,000.00 100.00%
     Education and Training 2009B $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $2,500.00 100.00%
     Postage 2009C $500.00 $500.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $500.00 100.00%
     Printing 2009E $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $1,000.00 100.00%
     Subscription/Publications 2009G $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $2,000.00 100.00%
     PHC Deduction 1% Salary 2009H $8,476.75 $8,476.75 $0.00 0.00% $8,476.75 100.00%
     Hardware & Software 2009F $12,500.00 $12,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $2,500.00 100.00%

Sub-Total Operating Cost $35,191.00 $0.00 $35,191.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $35,191.00 100.00%

Total Object of Expense $1,428,749.00 $0.00 $1,428,749.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $1,428,749.00 100.00%

OPERATING BUDGET
FISCAL YEAR 2022

165



 

 

 

 

 

11d. Staff update 

  

166



 

 

 

 

 

11e. Update on virtual meetings 

  

167



 

 

 

 

 

11f. Update on Texas Public Pension Data Center  

  

168



169



170



PRB Online Data Center – Plan Data
available at: https://data.prb.texas.gov/

171

https://data.prb.texas.gov/


172



PRB Online Data Center – Comparative Data

173



174



 

 

 

 

 

11g. 2021 TEXPERS Summer Educational Forum 

 

 

 

 

 

 

175



 

 

 

 

 

12. Call for future PRB agenda items 

 

 

 

 

 

 

176



 

 

 

 

 

13. Date and location of next PRB meeting – Thursday, September 

16, 2021 

 

 

 

 

 

177



 

 

 

 

 

14. Invitation for public comment 

  

 

 

 

 

 

178



 

 

 

 

 

15. Adjournment  

 

  

 

179


	3. MFRRF Partial IPPE and link.pdf
	TAB 1
	TAB 2
	TAB 3
	TAB 4
	TAB 5
	TAB 6
	TAB 7
	TAB 8
	TAB 9
	TAB 10
	TAB 11
	TAB 12
	TAB 13
	TAB 14
	TAB 15
	TAB 16
	TAB 17
	TAB 18
	TAB 19
	TAB 20
	TAB 21
	TAB 22
	TAB 23
	TAB 24
	TAB 25
	TAB 26

	3. MFRRF Partial IPPE and link.pdf
	TAB 1
	TAB 2
	TAB 3
	TAB 4
	TAB 5
	TAB 6
	TAB 7
	TAB 8
	TAB 9
	TAB 10
	TAB 11
	TAB 12
	TAB 13
	TAB 14
	TAB 15
	TAB 16
	TAB 17
	TAB 18
	TAB 19
	TAB 20
	TAB 21
	TAB 22
	TAB 23
	TAB 24
	TAB 25
	TAB 26




